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Report of the Supervisory Committee
The board of directors (“Board of 125 ETm%1E
Directors”) and the supervisory Important Issues
committee (“Supervisory Committee”) 128 piigspe
and each of the directors (“Directors”), i:\in ancial Report
the supervisors (“Supervisors”) and 348 EE

the senior management (collectively,
the “Senior Officers”) of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (the “Company”) hereby
confirm that there are no false
representations, material omissions
or misleading statements contained
in this report, and they, severally
and jointly, accept full responsibility
for the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of the contents of this
report.

Documents Available for Inspection

The chairman (Mr. Zhang Daiming),
financial controller (Mr. Hou
Ning) and the chief of the finance
department (Mr. He Xiaohong) of
the Company hereby declare that
the financial report of the Company
for 2020 is true and complete.

This report has been prepared in
both Chinese and English. In the
event of any discrepancy between
the two versions, the Chinese
version shall prevail.
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ERFENPEEETREERGHAL

Website for annual reports of the Company

WERFEREROER AR (2F)

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED

R

Mr. Zhang Daiming

BERK
Mr. Cao Changqiu

86-533-2166666

86-533-2287508

CQCAO@XHZY.COM

hE ARFME (P EDILRESEm e REXRERIC TR

Chemical Industry Area of Zibo Hi-tech Industry Development Zone,
Zibo City, Shandong Province, The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”)

FEILRESIEmSEERABEIR
No. 1 Lutai Ave., Hi-tech Industry Development Zone, Zibo City,
Shandong Province, PRC

255086

http://www.xhzy.com

xhzy@xhzy.com

(BHER)

Securities Times

http://www.cninfo.com.cn
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Listing information

HB%
H Shares
s
Stock Short Name
K5
Stock Code

AB%
A Shares
&
Stock Short Name
K5
Stock Code

HREMBICEA

Date of First Registration
RBEEILAM

Date of Latest Registration

EEME TR

Place of Registration

H—it HEHRE
Unified Social Credit Code

=ErHRE
Auditors
HE

PRC
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Company Information (continued)

ERBERHMARAR (EEBRPAI))

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”)
SRR B

Shandong Xinhua

00719

FINEHFZ ST
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
Rl

Xinhua Pharm

000756

199349 A30H
30 September 1993

20188H1H
1 August 2018

IWREEEM IETREER
Zibo Municipal Administration of Industry and Commerce of
Shandong Province

91370300164103727C

BRI R EBAT (RSB E ) i MEstan

R4 T U R ARG P L K T8 B R EARRSEED 4R - 100027
ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (special general
partnership), 8/F, Block A, Fu Hua Mansion, 8 Chaoyangmen
Beidajie, Dongcheng District, Beijing 100027, PRC
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Company Information (continued)

EEERN

Legal Advisers

FE

As to Hong Kong Law

R

As to PRC Law

FEERBIT

Principal Banker

HBERE {7 BR L E

Share Registrars of H Shares

LFEHERME

Corporate Information Available at

2 AR T

BERBFERRER

43-595% EA 1212

Charltons 12/F, Dominion Centre 43-59 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

L RBERAFEMEFHATIL R85 2 2 B

TTREZB R L3SREI4EEAR - 100025

Jingtian Gongcheng Associates 34th Floor, 3 Building, Huamao
Center, 77 Jianguo Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing 100025, PRC

PR TERITROBRABDSIER/EZTT
FEILRESIEMREEARRRK25E

The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Co., LTD, Zibo
Zhangdian Branch 2 Renmin Dong Road, Zibo City, Shandong
Province, PRC

BEBFELERAT BEZERNBERI8IFAMAPOI7E
Hong Kong Registrars Limited 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

IR ERERGERATNESTSWES
Secretariat to the Board of Directors Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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S HBENMEBAERE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULT

1. HEHRE 1. Financial Summary
(1) BAOEBEEFHENREREIEMER (1) Principal Financial Data (prepared in accordance with
BIMEEEGERET)(AR%T) China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
(“CASBE”) (audited) (Renminbi (“RMB”))
20205 N19F  FELFEER  0BEEER)  07EEER)  016F(EER)
Chenge as
compared fo 2018 2017 2016

5 Item 2020 019 thatoflastyear  (afteracjustment)  (afteradjustment)  (after adjustment)

BEHA Operating income 6,005,586,643.46  5,606,020,863.30 713% 54464356200  4541,961319.44  4039,560,506.85

filiebee Total profits 411,637,980.75  381,392,620.93 793% 33232750382 272,684,697.51 162,020,123.77

fERER Income tax expense 645469658  58,276,863.40 1072% 5190068350 4817482645 2692121834

FHE Net profits 347,113,284.17 323,115,757.53 743% 280,426,820.32 224,509,871.00 135,098,905.43

VekRER Minority interest income 22,253,726.62 23,149,491.82 (3.87%) 26,112,365.46 12,637,346.34 11,329,664.71

GEREHAARES  Net profts attibutable to

il shareholders of listed
company 324,859,557.55 299,966,265.71 8.30% 265,314,454.86 21,972,524.22 123,769,240.72
SEHNEMATRE  Net profis attibutable to
MBI EEEEES  shareholders of sted
fEHE company after deduction
of non-recurring profit or
loss 290,790,007.23  258,595,194.68 1247% 23302570177 16834897897 100,986,664.19
EEEHEEMRER Net cash fow from
EFR operating activities 420,186,808.35 348,271,406.17 20.65% 323,907,100.38 396,831,270.17 452,312,034.12

ERSRUE(L ) Basic eamings per share 052 048 8.33% 041 035 021

WESHRUE(T /%) Diuted eamings per share 052 048 8.33% 041 035 021

METHFEERGE  Ratio of weighted average TRO0BEE S

retum on net assets Decreased by 0.08
10.50% 1058%  percentage points 9.90% 9.81% 6.38%
N20EX MOER AERWLEREE 2018ER(EEE) 017ER(ERE) 20165 R(EER)
As at Asat Change as Asat Asat Asat
31 December 31 December comparedto 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
5B ltem 2020 2019 that o last year ~(after acjustment)  (after adjustment)  (after adjustment)

GEE Total assets 7,092,952,190.04  6,436,024,609.48 1021% 595250743290 532497348469  4,770,787,225.61

A=t Total liabilities 3,701,662,448.12  3,325,495,154.66 131%  3137459,111.00  2,733558,400.42  2,684,224,885.88

YRR Minority interest 16749592267 141,501,384.01 1837% 11958880977 10265926416 92:832,028.12

SEREHRARRS  Net assets atifoutable to

FEE shareholders of ited
company 3,223,793,819.25  2,969,028,070.81 858%  2,695,459,422.04  2,488,755,820.11  1,993,679,411.61
it - Notes:

1. NEI2019F EH AR — 4T 1. The Company has made retroactive adjustments to the previous financial
EEC - B ARIFEERE year's data due to the merger of enterprises under the same control in
TBPHFRE - 2019.

2. REPREREHEER - AR 2. From the end of the Reporting Period to the date of this announcement,

F12018F AR R BRI B =1 &1
(M EErE D E— BT TR
T2 - FIHBARRD550.88 K ©

5.508 million new A-shares were issued due to the completion of the
exercise of the first exercise period of the A Share Option Incentive Plan
(“Incentive Plan”) of the Company adopted in 2018.

“ECZFER [ URFEREROGERAA
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Summary of Financial and Operating Result (continued)

1. HMEHEE)

]

Financial Summary (Continued)

2020 FERNEEITEMHER (2) Principal Financial Data of 2020 based on quarterly
(AR%T) reporting (RMB)
B—FE BE-FE BEZE EMEE
The first The second The third The fourth
HE ltem quarter quarter quarter quarter
EERA Operating income 1,705,982,914.01 1,579,789,802.56 1,352,743,633.13 1,367,070,293.76
BN ETRAIM Net profits attributable to
A FFE shareholders of listed
company 86,286,544.27 86,025,317.30 783,754,320.04 78,793,375.94

BN TR Net profits attributable
REIBRIELE  to shareholders of
MHIBZEHEFE  listed company after

deduction of non-
recurring profit or loss

ICEEB)ELER  Net cash flow from
ReneEFH operating activities

78,547,417.73 75,733,216.55 62,308,568.63 74,200,804.32

104,929,221.85 95,672,451.49  202,487,188.91 17,097,946.10

it
D LIS B A RA A
REBFEHE L REAR B
BTEEEZR -

Note:

There are no significant variances between the above financial data or its
amount and the relevant disclosures in the quarterly reports and interim report.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |/ 2020 ANNUAL REPORT



ERhEE T ENRRAIEE

S BBENEBBERE (B

Summary of Financial and Operating Result (continued)

2. Extraordinary Items After Income Tax in

EHEEMNBREERESE Accordance with CASBE (RMB):
(FrERE)MT(AR%R®T) :

EHE 2020 & #A 2019F &% 2018F ¢ % A

Item Amount for 2020  Amount for 2019  Amount for 2018 Explanation
FNBEERE B (PECFHEEEREERE (1,945,640.88) (707,420.67) (534,277.39) REETEERN

CopeakEreiiBaY)

Profit or loss from disposal of non-current assets
(including written-off of provisions for assets
impairment)

AR BB M BUR R B (B 3 3 oA
W ERERG - REERNTEE TR
BRI

Government subsidies recognized in current
profit and loss (excluding government grants
which are closely related to the Company’s
business and conform with the amount and
quantities at a national standard)

R—ZH T hEEHEENTFRRMNESH
AH S F AR

Net profit or loss of subsidiaries acquired
through business combination under the
same control from the beginning of the period
to the date of combination

BRRAREREEEBARNBEUESRRESE
B BARSUEREE  RHUeHE
BEENAABEEDES  UREERS
HEREE RHUcHREENAHREES
MEERENIRE W

Except for the normal operations associated
with Company’s effective hedging business,
gain or loss held- for-trading financial assets,
held-for-trading financial liabilities, as well as
incomes gains from the disposal of held-for-
trading financial assets and financial liabilities
and financial assets available for sale

B Eal B IE 2 SN ECf AN AR ST
Non-operating income and expenditure other
than the above items

B PR R
Less: Income tax effect

LR R ERTEEFIE)
Minority interests (after tax)

&t
Total

39,329,497.32 40,952,645.11 21,995,213.23
5,672,855.48 5,226,366.81
8,589,048.00 7,614,057.09 7,154,674.51
(7,095,764.50) (5,143,291.19) (8,602,611.01)
4,773,111.78 7,036,381.14 2,939,058.89
34,477.84 (158,706.35) 11,554.17
34,069,550.32 41,411,071.03 22,288,753.09

Disposal of fixed assets

LENe SRR UN-$
BERBATHEED

Received and
amortized as
government
subsidies recognized
into the current
period

EEtIAMBANFE
w=HI73%

73% of net profit and
loss before merger
of Wanbo Chemical

Investment bonus and
revenue from other
equity interests
instruments

— i —

—

TEER [ WRHERERDERA A
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B BBNERBERE (&)

Summary of Financial and Operating Result (continued)

R EE T ENRRAIEE

FHEREHNRRER A

(FRERE)MT(ARET) :

€ )

g RERENTEEHRE(ARETE
EOATELREREUDNEE1R-
IR TR - IR IEE RN

BaREARERLEEEREMNRENE
e

RRAARREFEHRE (EH
EEiHENER) (AR%T)

Extraordinary Items After Income Tax in
Accordance with CASBE (RMB): (Continued)

Note: During the reporting period, the Company did not list the above items as
ordinary items as defined or listed in “Company information disclosure of
securities for public issuance explanatory announcement No. 1 — non-

recurring profit and loss”.

Items by Fair Value (Prepared in Accordance

with CASBE) (RMB)

LN AT AR
Hed ERBEE ZEDAEEE

AHHERE EUES 4]

Amount as at Amount as at

1 January Change of Total change Provision 31 December

HE ltem 2020 fair value of fair value impairment 2020
TREE: Financial assets:

HEERTERE Other equity instruments Investment ~ 235,474,096.00 176,457,193.30 258,822,016.00

lsuaR s Receivables financing 145,924,204.55 138,638,879.69

ait Total 381,398,300.55 176,457,193.30 397,460,895.69

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT



AR B N IR R AR

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND INFORMATION ON SHAREHOLDERS

i EEERE 1. Changes in Share Capital Structure
Count unit: share
2020%12831H 2019F12A31H
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
BRIPBE (SHEBEFLEH% RO#E  (HBRALI%
Number of % of the total Number of % of the total
BRI ERI Class of shares shares  share capital shares share capital
(share) (%) (share) (%)
—. BREEHHRERA 1. Total number of conditional tradable
shares 11,602 0.002 27,364,370 4.400
BRI State-owned shares
BRENFR Domestic legal person shares 27,352,768 4.398
ARBERERERER Conditional tradable senior
management A shares 11,602 0.002 11,602 0.002
HAt Others
=, BREEEMTERAR 2. Total number of unconditional tradable
shares 621,847,845 99.998 594,495,077 95.600
AR LB (AR) Renminbi-denominated ordinary
shares (A shares) 426,847,845 68.640 399,495,077 64.242
5k EioNE R (HER) Non-RMB-denominated foreign listed
shares (H shares) 195,000,000 31.358 195,000,000 31.358
= Rir#EH 3. Total number of shares 621,859,447 100.00 621,859,447 100.00
REERZ I EEER 2. Change in Shares with Selling Restrictions

2017F10A » A RAFERAFETT
21,040,59108AM% - EFEREEAE
BERAR - IURBREEESAE
tEEREGR)(BERESDRER
717,930,9050% » LR ¥R B/ (5
ERAR-F—HEITHERAE(E
TR E)) R EER% 15 3,109,686% ©
2018F NAIEMEANTESEIL H
(B10RR AT ASAY) 18 - BRmE L
f%23,310,1760% * B T+ GTEIF K
4,042,5920% ° sZE XD E F2020F 10
F 138 2 aBfRsE

In October 2017, the Company issued 21,040,591 A shares through
a non-public offering, of which Juneng Capital Management Co.,Ltd.
- Shandong Ju Ying Industrial Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(LRBREXESABLEERER)) (“Juying Fund”) subscribed
for 17,930,905 shares and the phase 1 Employee Stock Ownership
Scheme of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Employee Stock Ownership Plan”) subscribed for 3,109,686
shares. After implementing capital reserve conversion plan (issuance
of 3 new shares for every 10 existing shares) in 2018, Juying Fund
held 23,310,176 shares and Employee Stock Ownership Plan held
4,042,592 shares. All of those shares were released from selling
restrictions on 13 October 2020.

“ECZFER [ URFEREROGERAA
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RAZB K RRER (&)

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)

3.

BR1ER N

M

()

R2020F 128318 » A A%
HEH32,904F - BIEHRA
H46F AR 32,858F © 1A
202042 A28 A ANA TR E 2 H
32,543F + BIEHRRAR 465 © A
ARA% 32,497 F

R2020F 12 A31 BEHA AR TIK

3.

Shareholders Information

(1) As at 31 December 2020, the Company had on record a total
of 32,904 shareholders, including 46 holders of H Shares
and 32,858 holders of A Shares. As at 28 February 2021,
the Company had on record a total of 32,543 shareholders,
including 46 holders of H Shares and 32,497 holders of A

Shares.

(2) As at 31 December 2020, the top ten shareholders of the

DA TZREBERAT Company were as follows:
Bz ]
Count unit: share
HERX HERR HEERE BEERE
BR&HE BR®E f5HRLLH% HRBE RASHER RENRRRE REDRHNE
Number of shares Number of
held at the end Change over conditional Number of
Nature of % of the total  of the Reporting the Reporting tradable unconditional
Name of shareholders shareholders share capital Period Period shares held tradable shares
ERRREBERAF(ERAR) BEEEA .94 204,864,092 204,864,092
Hualu Holdings Group Co. Ltd.* ¥ State-owned
(*HHC")
EEPREZ (KRB ERAF HiX 31.04 193,048,227 (5,000) 193,048,227
HKSCC (Nominees) Limited H shares
TENREEERARAR LR E 4.75 29,513,016 29,513,016 29,513,016
FHEEFRAGHLE
(BR&#)
Shanghai Chitai Asset Management ~ Fund
Co., Ltd. - Zibo Chitai Chengyun
Securities Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
ERERERERAR-WRERE £ 375 23,310,176 23,310,176
RERAUME(ERER)
Ju Neng Capital Management Fund
Company Limited — Shandong Ju
Ying Industrial Fund Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*
ERRERRARAT(ERRE) HAEA 0.67 4,143,168 4,143,168

Hualu Investment State-owned

Co. Ltd (‘Hualu Investment”)

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT



3.

B SR IR o 43 (18) 3. Shareholders Information (Continued)
(2) M2020F12A31BEFEEARFIK (2) As at 31 December 2020, the top ten shareholders of the
DR+ RREERAT ¢ (8B) Company were as follows: (Continued)
BENE BEOR BHERE BHERE
L E10) BRtE fHRRELBI% BRHE  ANEEER  GHNRGBE GENRGBE
Number of shares Number of
held at the end Change over conditional Number of
Nature of % of the total ~of the Reporting the Reporting tradable unconditional
Name of shareholders shareholders share capital Period Period shares held tradable shares
LRHEREROARAR-F—H  HR:HE 065 4,042,592 4,042,592
BIxksE
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Share Ownership
Company Limited —Phase | Scheme
Employee Share Ownership
Scheme*
wiEg BRERA 0.64 3,996,554 (1,133,320) 3,996,554
Lin Suixian Natural person in
the territory
BRPREEARAR BINEA 0.46 2,861,986 (1505,151) 2,861,986
HKSCC Limited Overseas Legal
Person
{458 BRERA 0.40 2,505,970 2,505,970 2,505,970
He Weilan Natural person in
the territory
2y BERBRA 0.23 1,453,367 1,453,367 1,453,367
Liu Libin Natural person in
the territory
i AT ARKBREAMFRG T FEE R Note: There is no pledge or freeze of the shares held by the top ten

BRAZB R RRER (&)

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)

HORAEBEI

shareholders.

“ECZFER [ URFEREROGERAA
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RAZB K RRER (&)

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)

3. BERIERMNBEGE) 3. Shareholders Information (Continued)
(2) M2020F12A31BEFEEARFIK (2) As at 31 December 2020, the top ten shareholders of the

DR+ RREERAT ¢ (8B) Company were as follows: (Continued)

BT 1045 PR £ 0 £F B RIS AR 1SR As at 31 December 2020, the ten largest shareholders of
the unconditional tradable shares of the Company were as
follows:

Bl R
Count unit: share
BEHXREH
BRERFRHBE
Number of
unconditional BinER
tradable shares Nature of shares

BREE attheend of the [R{PTELE BE

Name of shareholders Reporting Period  Class of shares Number

ERERO 204,864,092 AREE®E 204,864,092

HHCO RMB ordinary share

BEEFREZ(RENERRAT 193,048,227 AN ETINERR 193,048,227

HKSCC (Nominees) Limited Overseas listed

foreign share
e REEERBRAR —KIEER 20,513,016  ARMKLEMK 29,513,016
RPEBFREGROLEBRER)
Shanghai Chitai Asset Management Co., Ltd. - Zibo RMB ordinary share
Chitai Chengyun Securities Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*
EREAERARRR - ILREREE 23,310,176  ARMEER 23,310,176
A2 aBrEBRER)
Ju Neng Capital Management Company Limited — RMB ordinary share
Shandong Ju Ying Industrial Fund Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*

ERKE 4,143,168 AREELER 4,143,168

Hualu Investment RMB ordinary share

IR SR M AR A F — £ —H 4,042,592 ARELEE 4,042,592

BT RS
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited — RMB ordinary share
Phase | Employee Share Ownership Scheme*

WIRE 3,096,554 AREEZER 3,996,554

Lin Suixian RMB ordinary share

BEPREZRRRE 2,861,986 ARBLAR 2,861,986

HKSCC Limited RMB ordinary share

(A48 2,505,970 AREEZER 2,505,970

He Weilan RMB ordinary share

2334 1,453,367 ARBEAER 1,453,367

Liu Libin RMB ordinary share

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT



BRAZB R RRER (&)

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)

3. BREIERNE (M)

R2020F 12 A31 BEHA AR TR
DRTTZBREERINT  (88)

()

Mt -

1.

HEETRERERRE - Az
BEREEZENBRARMEE
#94,143,168A%AM ° 22020
F12A818  #FEEBRHEES
BB AREEARAR (4
BREEZEMBRARERR
&5 B A AN A F]20,827,8004%
HER GRE SN ETINERR) (K96 R 7]
BB 1T A3.35%) * 4,143,168
BEARR (8915 2 A B BITIRA
0.67%) °

EEAATREERER T Ltk
REABRA AR — BRI TBIRORLAR ¢
BREBREREBERNZET
DA AAREERMLAME
i B% 3R 2 ] 2 5 1 72 B gk B 1R
(BER(RNBHRZARE
MRAN) K EFESFEEEER
BgmrmmdtmaslEeERE
WEVREN—RITBA - AR
HMIMNERR 2 R BT ERIRRE
FER(ETRRARBERIRE) 5
EH—RITEA o

BREBRAREBERMNZET
RAGN  AABERRALRE
MR ERERRZE - L
REMGHBRERLMERZ R
BHREBBEE L THAREF
E(ETARBBEERIE) R E
B —HITEA °

BRERLRRE BARAR
o BEFEARBRMNE% A
FHPRARRRERIER

B XA E RIREEATA R
2020F12A31H « HEEMBA
T(TREEE  EF - A2Q7A
NEEITHRABSSAEEAS
(@& ) RARAKAR D kA8 2
B& A (R T-1B R T 8 ) R B i
KR - BEREBEEBAGE
571 & (FEFH KA E 1R H1) EXVED
2R B3N EHE ST B M AR
RIRE BB RAELEE - kA
BRI (EH RS KR 336
R ETE O E M AT s
HREBARAMNEIERE
(EERBBHRATEEZ(E
BHMARIMARARES LT
AN (T EmRAN) -

3. Shareholders Information (Continued)

()

As at

31 December 2020, the top ten shareholders of the

Company were as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

Such figure excludes the 4,143,168 A shares held by Hualu
Investment, a direct wholly owned subsidiary of HHC. As of 31
December 2020, Hualu Investment and Well Bring Limited (“Well
Bring”) are a direct wholly owned subsidiary and an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of HHC respectively. Well Bring owns
20,827,800 H shares of the Company (being overseas listed
foreign shares), representing approximately 3.35% of the issued
share capital of the Company. Hualu Investment owns 4,143,168
A shares of the Company, representing approximately 0.67% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

The following is a description of any association relationship or
concerted actions of the above shareholders under applicable
PRC laws and regulations: Except for Hualu Investment which
is a wholly owned subsidiary of HHC, to the best of their
knowledge, the Directors are not aware as to whether there is
any Association Relationship (as defined in the Rules Governing
Listing of Stocks On Shenzhen Stock Exchange) amongst the
remaining of the abovementioned shareholders, nor if any of
them is a person acting in concert as defined in the Measures
for the Administration of the Takeover of Listed Companies”
(“Administration Measures for Takeover”) issued by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”). In addition, the
Directors are not aware whether there is any association amongst
the shareholders of H Shares of the Company or if any of them
is a person acting in concert as defined in the Administration
Measures for Takeover.

Except for Hualu Investment which is a wholly owned subsidiary of
HHC, the Directors are not aware whether there is any association
amongst the other above-mentioned shareholders without trading
limit condition of the Company, or between the other above-
mentioned shareholders without trading limit condition and the
other shareholders of the Company or if any of them is a person
acting in concert as defined in the Administration Measures for
Takeover.

Save as disclosed above, the only domestic shareholder directly
holding more than 5% of the total issued shares of the Company is
HHC.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware,
as at 31 December 2020, no other person (other than the
Directors, the Supervisors, chief executives or members of senior
management of the Company) had an interest or short position
in the Company’s shares or underlying shares (as the case may
be) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO”) and as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO, or was otherwise a Substantial
Shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the SEHK (the “Listing Rules”) of the Company.
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Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)
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3. Shareholders Information (Continued)

(©)]

Information of Controlling Shareholder

There was no change in the Controlling Shareholder (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company during the Reporting
Period and was still HHC.

HHC, a wholly state-owned company, was established on 28
January 2005. The registered capital of HHC is RMB3.103
billion and its legal representative is Mr. Fan Jun. Social Unified
Credit Code of HHC is 913700007710397120. The scope
of business of HHC is self-funding investment in chemical,
pharmaceutical and environmental protection industries
(business); and management operations and consultancy. HHC
indirectly holds 32.19% shares in Shandong Hualu Hengsheng
Chemical Co., Ltd. and directly holds 21.12% shares in
Shandong Lukang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Shandong Provincial State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission

IR A A RBURF A B B R Bl

Shandong Hualu Group Co., Ltd.

100%

L SR 45 R R 0.25%
LA R A

Shandong Hualu International

Business Center Co., Ltd.

59.16%
100%
P
HHC
99.75% 100%
0
L MA R
China Shandong Group Ltd. EEaXigsy
Hualu Investment
100%
AR 7 12.94% oo
- . 0
Well Bring Ltd.
3.35%
e R
The Company
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Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)
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DIVIDENDS

The Board proposes the profit distribution plan for year 2020 as
follows: the total number of shares of the Company at the reporting
disclosure date was 627,367,447 (of which 432,367,447 shares were
A shares and 195,000,000 shares were H shares). Based on the total
issued shares of the Company of 627,367,447 shares, it is proposed
a dividend of RMBO0.15 (tax inclusive) for every share of the Company
be paid to shareholders. The above mentioned proposed dividends
distribution for year 2020 is subject to approval by shareholders of
the Company. Shareholders and potential investors are advised to
exercise caution when dealing in the securities of the Company.

An announcement containing further details as to, amongst others,
the payment currency and applicable foreign exchange rate for the
proposed cash dividend, the relevant record date and book closure
period will be disclosed in due course.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers

Directors

Mr. Zhang Daiming, aged 58, is a senior economist. He graduated from
Qingdao Science and Technology University, specialising in organic
chemical engineering and obtained a master’'s degree in economics
from Shanghai Financial and Economic University. Mr. Zhang joined
Shangdong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1987 and was previously
a workshop technician, planner of the planning and statistics department
of the Company, the deputy manager and manager of the international
trade department of the Company and the deputy general manager of the
Company, and the chairman of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group
Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of the Company, and Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Europe) B.V., the executive director of Shandong Xinhua
Import & Export Co., Ltd., Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (USA) Inc..

Mr. Du Deping, aged 51, is a researcher. He graduated from the Ocean
University of PRC, specialising in chemistry and obtained a master’s degree
and Doctor of Pharmaceutical Engineering in medicinal chemistry from
Shandong University. He joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in
1991. He was previously a deputy head and head of the workshop, assistant
to the general manager of the Company and deputy general manager of
the Company. Mr. Du is currently a Director and the general manager of
the Company, and the chairman of the board of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd. (“Shouguang”), the executive director of Xinhua (Zibo)
Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd..

Mr. Xu Lie, aged 55, is a senior economist and professor level senior political
engineer, and is a university graduate and has a master of management. He
joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1986 and has been the
deputy director and the director of the office, the deputy head of the office,
and the manager of the human resource department,a director and the
chairman of the labour union of SXPGC. Mr. Xu is currently a Director and
the chairman of the labour union of the Company.

Mr. He Tongqing, aged 51, is a senior economist. He graduated from
the Shandong Polytechnic University, specialising in materials science
and engineering and obtained a MBA from Shandong University. Mr. He
joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1991. His previous
positions included, workshop technician, planner, sales officer, regional
manager, manager of the drug department, marketing director and the
general manager of Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr.
He was elected as a Director of the Company on 22 December 2020 and
is currently a deputy general manager of the Company, and the chairman
of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Trade Co., Ltd. and Shandong Xinhua
Health Technology Co., Ltd, (“Xinhua Health”) the executive director of Zibo
Xinhua Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd. and Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Gaomi) Co.,
Ltd..

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT



EF EFERAEMESREEARG
9 (48)

EE(

B ASAE - B6BR ¢ P E IS BUA K EEMBA
BE - 1084F7 AL MIE - BEILREASE)
EsrEERIE  BIEERIE - EERIE LR
ZREEARAFMNAERNELIE « E5EE
s EEREBREEBRARMBAEESL
EEREERBRATBEKLIEFPAETE
T BRI ALKIE - FELREEERD
FIBNBAEIBFM AT T KRBT E - B
THEEERERARAREFEWE  UERE
MEBHERHBRARES  EEBEFMERE
BIRATESRR - 2020F 12 H22 A &R A
NARESE -

BEEKEE 715 RBEF  aHIRE
B o R EEAEIEESMEHRS Bk BR
BHEETEBAZTIER - BREK  BERERA
AR PRBESMIEAR AL F
Bl EBENREEeWE  PELBRIE
TEHeEHaleRk - BIEPR 2R TE
HERTER  ELRERHERABLE
= BEEERNAERAFTBIES - KESH
SRR NARATBYEE « S EiE
B (RKB)BRHDERANBEILES - 2020F12
A22 AR B AR N BB IENITES -

REBERE 6455 0 LERBRE[BRARE
IR EREBTABANTREL . HEE
BETEMRE A MSESIEL - BB TE
AP A s EtE+ - =B Hood Bk Trg
EIEE L o FAMA S ERTJoslintE PR L
SHEE - EESAIC Frederick A T3 THE
THE  FERBABHERE-FIRE
2012FFQ AT BT RABREEFTR
% o AR T2 B B S TR 5EH
DET - BRERIER - INTEEERDARA A
BYEE ML SNEERNDERAFES -
2020 12 A22 H IR B AN R L IEHTT
EEo

EE. B SAEEABNEIRR (&)

Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Directors (Continued)

Mr. Cong Kechun, aged 56, graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law with an EMBA. Mr. Cong started work in July 1984.
He served as staff member, senior staff member and principal staff
member of the planning department of the Shandong Labor Department,
deputy general manager of the office and deputy general manager of trade
department of Shandong Hualu Group Co., Ltd., office director, assistant
general manager as well as office director, general manager of investment
development department of Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd. (‘HHC”) and assistant
general manager, office director and director of the inspection office of
HHC. Currently, Mr. Cong is the secretary to the board of directors of HHC,
a director of Shandong Lukang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and the chairman
of the board of directors of Hualu International Financial Leasing Co., Ltd..
Mr. Cong was elected as a Director of the Company on 22 December 2020.

Mr. Pan Guangcheng, aged 71, graduated with a university degree and is
a senior engineer. Mr. Pan served as the cadre and director of the Medical
Device Bureau of the Ministry of Health, director and deputy director general
of the Department of Personnel, director general of the Department of
Policies and Regulations of the National Medical Administration, deputy
general manager of China National Medical Equipment Industry Corporation,
secretary to the board of directors of China National Pharmaceutical Group
Co., Ltd., and executive vice president of China Pharmaceutical Industry
Association (“CPIA”). Currently, Mr. Pan is the executive chairman of CPIA,
independent director of North China Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., independent
director of Harbin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd., independent director
of Tianjin Lisheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., and independent director of
Asymchem Laboratories (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.. Mr. Pan was elected as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 22 December
2020.

Mr. Zhu Jianwei, aged 64, is the “Zhiyuan Chair Professor” of Shanghai Jiao
Tong University. He holds a bachelor’s degree in biochemical engineering
from East China University of Science and Technology, a master’s degree
in microbial pharmacy and a doctoral degree in microbial genetics from
Shanghai Research Institute of Pharmaceutical Industry, and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from Hood College in the United States.
He has served as senior researcher of Joslin Diabetes Center at Harvard
Medical School, technical operations director of SAIC Frederick in the
USA and the third dean of the School of Pharmacy of Shanghai Jiao Tong
University. He has been employed as Zhiyuan Chair Professor at Shanghai
Jiao Tong University since September 2012. He is currently the director
and chief scientist of the Engineering Research Center of the Ministry of
Education for Cell Engineering, Antibody and Drugs, independent director of
Zhejiang Medicine Co., Ltd. and director of Zhejiang Hisoar Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhu was elected as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company on 22 December 2020.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lo Wah Wai, aged 57, graduated with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 and
a master’s degree in management science from New Jersey Institute of
Technology in the United States in 1992. Mr. Lo is a practicing member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has more than
20 years’ service experience in auditing and business consulting services, in
which he had more than seven years’ experience in auditing and business
consulting services in an international accounting firm (Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu), two years of which were spent in the United States of America.
Save from serving as an incumbent director of BMI Consultants Limited, Mr.
Lo is also an independent non-executive director of Chongging Machinery
& Electric Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2722) and Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 6868), both of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and non-executive
director of Document Security Systems, Inc. in the United States. He is
currently an independent non-executive Director of the Company as well.

Mr. Ren Fulong, aged 58, is a researcher and practising pharmacist. He
graduated from Shandong Changwei Medicine College in 1985. From 1985
to 1988, Mr. Ren was a resident physician. In 1991, Mr. Ren obtained his
master of medicine from Beijing Medical University and joined Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in the same year. He previously held the
positions of the deputy director and the director of the Company’s research
institute, the assistant to the general manager and the deputy general
manager of the Company, the deputy general manager of SXPGC and
the general manager of the Company, the director and general manager
of SXPGC, and a Director of the Company. He is currently the general
manager of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical branch of Hualu Holdings
Co., Ltd. and the chairman of the board of directors of Shandong Xinhua
Wanbo Chemical Industry Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ren resigned as a Director of the
Company upon expiration of his term of office on 22 December 2020.

Mr. Du Guanhua, aged 63, is a doctor, pharmacology researcher (professor)
and tutor to PhD candidates. Mr. Du obtained a PhD in Pharmacology from
Peking Union Medical College. Mr. Du has been the head of the National
Center for Pharmaceutical Screening since July 1999, the chairman of the
Chinese Pharmacological Society since November 2007. Mr. Du is currently
an independent director of Shandong Luoxin Pharmacy Stock Co., Ltd, and
an independent director of Hebei Changshan Biochemical Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. Mr. Du resigned as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company upon expiration of his term of office on 22 December 2020.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li Wenming, aged 46, graduated from Faculty of Management of
the Dalian University of Technology and obtained a Master of Business
Administration. Mr. Li previously held the positions of officer of Henan
Pingdingshan Zhanhe Health Bureau, market researcher of Beijing CHNMED
Consulting Co., Ltd., manager of the pharmaceutical department of Beijing
Peking University Founder Group. He is currently a partner of Hedun
Consulting Co., LTD, and a deputy secretary general of China Association
of Pharmaceutical Commerce, an non-executive director of Beijing AKEC
Medical Co., Ltd. He is a director of YunNan JianZhidia health multiple shop
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Li resigned as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company upon expiration of his term of office on 22 December 2020.

Supervisors

Mr. Liu Chengtong, aged 49, graduated from the School of Economics
and Management of Tongji University with a master’s degree in Business
Administration and from the School of Law of Shandong University with a
master’s degree in law. He is a senior economist and qualified as a lawyer
and in-house counsel. He has served as manager, deputy general manager
and senior deputy general manager of the planning and development
department, and deputy director of the office of legal affairs of HHC. He
is currently general manager of investment and development department,
department head of legal affairs and deputy general counsel of HHC,
supervisor of Shandong Lukang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., director of
Shandong Lukang Biological Pesticide Co., Ltd., and director of Hualu
International Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. and Hualu Hengsheng (Jingzhou)
Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu was elected as the Supervisor of the Company by the
General Meeting of Shareholders and the Chairman of the Board of
Supervisors on 22 December 2020.

Mr. Tao Zhichao, aged 51, graduated from the School of Law of East China
University of Politics and Law, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law. He
was also conferred a master’s degree in law from Shandong University. Mr.
Tao was previously a partner of Shandong Zhigong Law Firm. Mr. Tao is
currently a director of management committee and senior partner of Beijing
Yingke (Zibo) Law Firm, and an Independent Supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Xiao Fangyu, aged 51, specialized in mathematics and graduated from
Shandong University. He is an asset appraiser and land appraiser. He
has been a staff member and superintendent in Zichuan District Finance
Bureau of Zibo City, senior manager of Shandong Zhenglu Accounting
Firm, department head of Shandong North Asset Appraisal Firm and
deputy director of Jinan branch of Zhongxingcai Guanhua Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Xiao is currently a general manager of Tianjian Xingye Asset
Appraisal Co., Ltd. and an Independent Supervisor of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Supervisors (Continued)

Ms. Hu Yanhua, aged 46, is a senior political engineer, graduated from
Shandong University. She has also received a postgraduate education. She
joined the Company in 1996. Ms. Hu was the deputy secretary of the Youth
League Committee of Xinhua Lukang Pharmaceutical Group Corporation.,
and secretary of the Youth League Committee of SXPGC, and an office
director of labor union and the secretary of the political affairs department.
She is an employee Supervisor of the Company and the secretary of the
party and mass work department.

Mr. Wang Jianping, aged 53, graduated from the School of Pharmaceutical
Engineering of Shenyang Pharmaceutical University and is a senior
engineer. He joined the Company in July 1989 and has held positions in the
Company such as a factory technician, the project leader of the research
department, and head of the fourth synthesis laboratory. He is the Employee
Representative Supervisor and the employee representative of the factory
management committee of the Company.

Mr. Li Tianzhong, aged 58, is a senior engineer. He graduated from the
Shandong Institute of Technology, specialising in industry automation.
He joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1983. Mr. Li has
been the engineer and director of the electric motor workshop, manager
of the trade department, supply and marketing department and drug
department of the Company, Director of the Company, assistant to the
general manager, director and deputy general manager of Xinhua Lukang
Pharmaceutical Group Corporation, director and deputy general manager
of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.. Mr. Li is currently a
deputy general manager of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical branch of
HHC. Mr. Li resigned as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company upon expiration of his term of office on 22 December 2020.

Senior Officers

Mr. Wang Xiaolong, aged 56, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Shandong University of Technology, specialising in automation. Mr. Wang
joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1988 and previously
held the positions of deputy director and director of the electricity workshop,
the director of the machinery sub- factory, the deputy general manger of the
Company and the deputy general manager of SXPGC. Mr. Wang is currently
a deputy general manager of the Company, and the chairman of Shandong
Xinhua Mechanical and Electrical Engineering Co., Ltd..

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Senior Officers (Continued)

Mr. Du Deging, aged 56, is an engineering technology application
researcher. He graduated from Qingdao Science and Technology University,
specialising in organic chemical engineering and obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Wuhan University of Technology
and obtained a master’s degree in chemical engineering from Qingdao
Science and Technology University and PhD. in Chemical Engineering and
Technology from Beijing Institute of Technology. He joined the Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1986. He was a workshop assistant
engineer, a dispatch room assistant engineer, deputy director and director
of the dispatch department, the director of the purchasing department
and assistant to the general manager of the Company. Mr. Du is currently
a deputy general manager of the Company and the executive director of
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Chemical Industry Design Co., Ltd..

Mr. Hou Ning, aged 47, holds a master’s degree in applied accounting and
finance from Hong Kong Baptist University. He is a senior accountant and
a senior economist. Mr. Hou had served as deputy head of auditing division
of Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Group Co., Ltd., head of audit department,
head of investment department of technological development centre,
manager of marketing department and manager of finance department of
Shandong Hualu-Hengsheng Chemical Co., Ltd. Mr. Hou currently serves as
chief financial officer of the Company and a director of Zibo Xinhua — Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Trade Co.,
Ltd..

Mr. Zheng Zhonghui, aged 49, is a senior engineer. Mr. Zheng graduated
and obtained his PhD in Microbiology and Biochemical Pharmacy from
Peking Union Medical College. He joined the Company in 2005. He
previously held the positions of the senior engineer and the deputy director
of the Company’s research institute, and is currently the deputy general
manager of the Company and the director of the Company’s research
institute.

Mr. Wei Changsheng, aged 50, is a senior economist. He graduated
from Jiangxi University of Technology majoring in food machinery and
Tianjin University of Finance and Economics with a master’s degree in
management. He joined the Company in 1992 and has worked as a
workshop trainee, as a clerk and deputy head of the Personnel Division,
as a secretary and deputy director of the workshop branch, the secretary
and vice president of the research institute branch, the assistant to the
general manager of the Company and the head of the management
department of Cadres of Party Committee, the manager of the human
resources department, the director of the office of the Party Committee and
the head of the office of the Company. He is currently the deputy general
manager and the manager of the administrative personnel department of
the Company and head of the management department of Cadres of Party
Committee.
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B EX. SHEBEAENEIBR (E)
Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

EF EFERAEMESREEARG
9 (48)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Senior Officers (Continued)

Mr. Xu Wenhui, aged 44, is a senior engineer. He is graduated from Tianjin
University majoring in chemical engineering. He joined the Company in
1999 and has worked as a workshop assistant engineer, deputy secretary
of the Youth League Committee, workshop secretary and deputy director,
deputy manager and manager of the production and operation department
of Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company Limited (“Shouguang
Company”), assistant to the general manager of the Company and manager
of Shouguang Company. He is currently the deputy general manager of the
Company.

Mr. Cao Changgiu, aged 51, is a senior economist. He graduated from
the Ocean University of China, specialising in economic management and
joined the Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1991. Mr. Cao is the
Company Secretary of the Company.

The term of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers of the Company is
until 22 December 2023.

There are no association relationships among the above persons.
Changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior management and

their respective interests in the securities of the Company were as
follows:

2020512A31H
20204 EATERT 20194
12R31AEARE  RAEHALH %) Z2HER 12731 BFERE
Percentage of the
Number of Shares total issue Shares Number of Shares
24 % (share) as at as at 31 December Change in (share) as at
Name Position 31 December 2020 2020 (%) number of Shares 31 December 2019
BE
Directors
RAH BER 15,470(M#2) 0.0025 i 15,470(M322)
Mr. Zhang Daiming ~ Chairman 174,888(#i£3) 0.0281 Nil 174,888(17723)
HEF HOTESR - BE 151,568 (#f4£3) 0.0244 & 151,568(#1713)
Mr. Du Deping Executive Director, General Manager Nil
#3 FHITES 81,614(H#£3) 0.0131 i 81,614(#7723)
Mr. Xu Lie Non-executive Director Nil
EFRE HITEZ (2020125228 116,592(#f#£3) 0.0187 it 116,592(#1713)
BRI alRgE Nil
Mr. He Tongaing Executive Director (Appointed on 22
December 2020), Deputy General
Manager
ERE JEITEE (R 2020612 4228 *5H it AEE
Mr. Cong Kechun BZE) Nil Nil Nil

Non-executive Director (Appointed

on 22 December 2020)
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and

Senior Officers (Continued)

Changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior management and
their respective interests in the securities of the Company were as
follows: (Continued)

20205 12A31H
20205 EATERT 2019%
12A3AHFBEY  RizEHMOLH%) SEER  12A31BEHERE
Percentage of the
Number of Shares total issue Shares Number of Shares
i3] R (share) as at as at 31 December Change in (share) as at
Name Position 31 December 2020 2020 (%) number of Shares 31 December 2019
BB BUFFHITEER(R2020F12722 58 et B
REZ)
Mr. Pan Guangcheng  Independent non-executive Director Nil Nil Nil
(Appointed on 22 December
2020)
REEfE B IHITES (2020512722 X585 i B
AEZE)
Mr. Zhu Jianwei Independent non-executive Director Nil Nil Nil
(Appointed on 22 December
2020)
EZEE BAUFRTES ESEE) & AFE
Mr. Lo Wah Wai Independent non-executive Director Nil Nil Nil
EEs FEHTES(R2020F 12 A22 A & 58,206/ffi£3) 0.0094 it 58,206(/1723)
1) Nil
Mr. Ren Fulong Non-executive Director (Resigned
on 22 December 2020)
M BUIFHITEER(R2020F12 722 *5E & B
HEET) Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Du Guanhua Independent non-executive Director
(Resigned on 22 December 2020)
ZXH BUFFHITEER(R2020F12722 *BE et ARE
HEEME) Nil N Nil
Mr. Li Wenming Independent non-executive Director
(Resigned on 22 December 2020)
EE
Supervisors
£l EEeXFE(R2020F 124220 % E3i) s AFE
Z1E) Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Liu Chengtong ~ Chairman of Supervisory Committee
(Appointed on
22 December 2020)
FRE EEeTFE(R2020F 12 A22A 8 93,272(1#23) 0.0150 it 93,272(H1:23)
Mr. Li Tianzhong ) Nil
Chairman of Supervisory Committee
(Resigned on 22 December 2020)
sy BUES ESE] & B
Mr. Tao Zhichao Independent Supervisor Nil Nil Nil
TECEEFR [ WRFERERHERDA
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers: (Continued)

Changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior management and
their respective interests in the securities of the Company were as
follows: (Continued)

24

2020%12A31H
20204 HATERT 2019%
12A1AHERY  RizEBMLEE%) ZEHER  12A31BBERE
Percentage of the
Number of Shares total issue Shares Number of Shares
i 2 W% (share) as at as at 31 December Change in (share) as at
Name Position 31 December 2020 2020 (%) number of Shares 31 December 2019
BAE BYES ESEE] & AFE
Mr. Xiao Fangyu Independent Supervisor Nil Nil Nil
BEE BTeE=x 34,977 (P EE3) 0.0056 = 34,977 (H17£3)
Ms. Hu Yanhua Employee Supervisor Nil
T&IF BIE=s FSET ] it AFE
Mr. Wang Jianping Employee Supervisor Nil Nil Nil
HttSHREEAR
Other senior management
T Bl 81,614 (F}zE3) 0.0131 3 81,614(41:23)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong ~ Deputy General Manager Nil
HEE IR e 81,614 (Pik3) 0.0131 3 81,614(47723)
Mr. Du Deging Deputy General Manager Nil
rE HBEEA 116,592(H}5%3) 0.0187 s 116,592(#1713)
Mr. Hou Ning Financial Controller Nil
BB Blaesms 23,318(H}5E3) 0.0037 i 23,318(17£3)
Mr. Zheng Zhonghui  Deputy General Manager Nil
BRE B2 34,977 (H}iE3) 0.0056 i 34,977(H17£3)
(20207 A1 REZ )
Mr. Wei Changsheng  Deputy General Manager (Appointed Nil
on 1 July 2020)
HyE 3484538 (H20204F 7 A1 HEZR ) 46,636 (PitiE3) 0.0075 46,636(417£3)
Mr. Xu Wenhui Deputy General Manager (Appointed Nil
on 1 July 2020)
ERXK EES-p 2,331(F5E3) 0.0004 id 2,331(#1:23)
Mr. Cao Changgiu Secretary to the Board Nil
At Total 1,113,758 0.1791 1,113,758
et - Notes:
1) ARBIEE  EERREMBBARR#EEY (1) All interests in the securities of the Company owned by the Directors,

RABRR -

) R AERL THE15470MARKAD ©

@) BB BARTERTHREEMTE  mA
BMATRETHEE228% -

Supervisors and senior management of the Company are long position in A

Shares.

2) Mr. Zhang Daiming personally holds 15,470 A Shares.

(3) The relevant shares are held under the Employee Share Ownership Scheme of

the Company of which the relevant person is a participant.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior management and
their respective interests in the securities of the Company were as
follows: (Continued)

(4)

So far as the Directors, the senior management and Supervisors are aware, as
at 31 December 2020, no Director, senior management or Supervisor had any
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures
(as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the
Company and the SEHK pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including any interest or short position which any such Director, senior
management or Supervisor is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which was required to be entered in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

For the details of the exercise of share options by the Directors under the
Incentive Plan subsequent to the Reporting Period, please refer to the section
headed “Others” of the Report of the Board of Directors on page 94 to 95.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

EX EEMHEMSHREEARM Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior

& Officers
BRPEBRES(EFERSENHEMNES - Disclosure of the remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
EEMEMSHEEEARME (RN (AR® Officers (before tax) (RMB0’000) under the reporting standards for
B annual reports of CRSC

20205F FE R EM
74 Name Annual remuneration 2020
B= Directors
R Mr. Zhang Daiming 145.64
E Mr. Ren Fulong 108.27
HIEF Mr. Du Deping 113.33
Gl Mr. Xu Lie 95.96
BERE Mr. He Tongaing 96.96
ERE Mr. Cong Kechun 0
M Mr. Du Guanhua 8.00
EgE Mr. Li Wenming 8.00
B ERK Mr. Pan Guangcheng 0
RiEE Mr. Zhu Jianwei 0
EEER Mr. Lo Wah Wai 8.00
EE Supervisors
£ Mr. Liu Chengtong 0
TRAE Mr. Li Tianzhong 94.96
by Mr. Tao Zhichao 3.50
HAE Mr. Xiao Fangyu 3.50
JE BizE Ms. Hu Yanhua 48.45
F&F Mr. Wang Jianping 20.83
HthaREEAR Other senior management
FhEE Mr. Wang Xiaolong 97.96
HEE Mr. Du Deging 95.96
&= Mr. Hou Ning 92.71
B 038 Mr. Zheng Zhonghui 97.51
BRAE Mr. Wei Changsheng 62.38
1w e Mr. Xu Wenhui 82.85
BRK Mr. Cao Changgju 48.56

20200 EEE EENSMERBAENTFE The total remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers in 2020
R 4ERE A ARE1,333.338 7T is RMB13.3333 million.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers

BfER

] AR mE HEA F&A

Name Position Type Date Reasons

By FRTES BE(E 202012 H22H B E

Mr. Ren Fulong Non-executive Director Resigned 22 December 2020 Expiration of term

FRE BE EEEEIFE BE(E 2020412 F22H EHREmBEE

Mr. Li Tianzhong Supervisor,Chairman of Resigned 22 December 2020 Expiration of term
Supervisory Committee

It B IEITES BT 2020%12H22H AR BEIE

Mr. Du Guanhua Independent non-executive  Resigned 22 December 2020 Expiration of term
Director

=S B IERITEF Bi(E 2020412 F22H EHREmBEE

Mr. Li Wenming Independent non-executive  Resigned 22 December 2020 Expiration of term
Director

BRE WITES pE2ET 2020512 A 22H TiEFRZ

Mr. He Tongging Executive Director Elected 22 December 2020 Operational need

B=RA FEMITES EER 2020412 A22H TiEHRZ

Mr. Cong Kechun Non-executive Director Elected 22 December 2020 Operational need

B BYFRITES et 2020512 A22H TERE

Mr. Pan Guangcheng Independent non-executive  Elected 22 December 2020 Operational need
Director

Kz B FHTESR AR 202012 A22H TiEHRE

Mr. Zhu Jianwei Independent non-executive  Elected 22 December 2020 Operational need
Director

El S B EFESER R 202012 A22H TiERE

Mr. Liu Chengtong Supervisor,Chairman of Elected 22 December 2020 Operational need
Supervisory Committee

BRE Bl iase iR BE{E 202057 H1H TiFRE

Mr. Wei Changsheng  Deputy General Manage Appointed 1 July 2020 Operational need

TR BliassiE HE4E 202057 H1H TiEREZE

Mr. Xu Wenhui Deputy General Manage Appointed 1 July 2020 Operational need
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B EX. SHEBEAENEIBR (E)
Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

EF EF REEEZRERMNE

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ positions

W B sRERFr A 18 R and remunerations in controlling shareholder of the
Company
ERREN ERREMRES
24 BREMRRE REMRE R R AR fERRIE AR SHEREREA RS
Remuneration
received from
Name Name of the shareholder Position Beginning date  Termination date shareholder
SR8 IR EREEEBRAEAA EER 2010507 A06H &
Zhang Daiming SXPGC Chairman 6 July 2010 No
#3 LR EBEEERREERT BX 2011414138 &
Xu Lie SXPGC Director 13 January 2011 No
BRE ERIEREEBRLF EES 0 2020F11 A178 =
Cong Kechun HHC Board Secretary 17 November 2020 Yes
ES ERAREEBRAR REBRNBLE RSB 2019F5A17H i
% BEEEER
Liu Chengtong HHC General manager of investment 17 May 2019 Yes
and development department,
department head of legal affairs
and deputy general counsel
RIRHEFR Staff and Remuneration

REB(ERFREMB AR EBEREBERK
B REMEEREBER - WREL G IRBIK
A BEFEIHM - 202012831 B AR%LE
BT A6497T A @ ZFEAEBEL2EETTE
4a%E A AR 583,857 F T © *

The Group’s staff remuneration was determined in accordance with (i) state
policies, (i) the Company’s financial standing in the corresponding period
and (iii) the remuneration level of general society. As at 31 December 2020,
the number of staff of the Group was 6,497, and the total amount of their
salaries and wages for the year 2020 was approximately RMB583,857,000.*

IZEEEE| a0 T The Group’s staff can be categorized by their areas of work as follows:
BIAS
BIREE Area of Work Number of Staff
EEANE Production personnel 3,743
IERMAR Engineering and technology personnel 543
THEREAE Administration personnel 249
MEAB Finance personnel 81
EmMAEAE Research and development personnel 310
HKIEAB Procurement personnel 49
SHEAEBR Sales personnel 1,017
LEEERAAR Quality control and inspection personnel 505
CEl Total 6,497
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

BIRHE#FHE(I&E) Staff and Remuneration (Continued)

BEHERESSWT ¢ The Group’s staff can be categorized by their education level as follows:
BIAE

BEINFEE Education Level by Category Number of Staff

RERIA FBFFE Universities or above 1,302

RNBER Tertiary institutions other than universities 1,970

PE R EE Intermediate institutions and technical schools 2,303

=P RATERE Senior high schools or below 922

CHl Total 6,497

* B IHMAAREEMEEREREN - 1+ . A breakdown of other items including employee welfare, social insurance and

R AREFERAREMHRE[E OB TR
REBFHEFEIF20HEENBRTHE] T
gl e

BI 5

2020%F * AR BHRBHITIERRAREE
REER TFERNBBEIBRBED T
HIE T2020F EH A BIIFT EILREET T
MBER -

2020F E HEK AR BHE B E6G1E -
Z 313,900 A K o RIR400 A RSN E 20
e REMEERR TP EBREES  £EH
BE - EERE  AERAREY - EEEEHE
BRRERHABE - ERNIIMEI - 224
EREREHET - SFEXEETERENIEF
Bl FFEEREIL P RFEER T BEES
HEE - ETLREREERASE - SREA
FEINE -

BB — R R (L AN E AR BESEFI - A0
BEXEEI - RREIHBXREN - BoEHE
EZRAANEERER =’ THEEIINER
TEREHEE - BHDIR TR -

NEABEETEERRD EENE  BESN
MHBEBEIIRR - BRURF T RRIBTHEN
=4 RETAREEBRANEIET -

provident funds is set out under item 23 “Payroll payable” in the Notes to Main
Items in Consolidated Financial Statement in this Report.

Staff training

In 2020, the Company formulated and implemented the education training
plan according to its production and operation management focus and
education training needs analysis.

The Company has completed 61 corporate level education training
programs, and has trained 3,900 employees in aggregate. The Company
arranged a total of 400 employees to attend external trainings. The
Company successively organized training programs for mid-level and
senior management in relation to business concepts, business strategies,
enterprise Party building, compliance with laws and regulations, and
education on anti-corruption awareness for Party members and leading
cadres, enterprise internal training, professional training on safety quality and
environmental protection equipment, young executive management ability
improvement training, medicine basic theory training for youth backbone
staff, safety skills upgrading training for youth staff and high-skilled talents
training, etc.

By making further efforts on job knowledge and fundamental skill training,
strengthening professional training and staff multi-level training, improving
the method of education evaluation and other effective measures, the
Company improved the pertinence and effectiveness of the education and
training and enhanced training efficiency.

The Company has built up an education training system characterized with
standardized management, scientific, practical and efficient operation, which
improved the capability and competency of staff members and ensured the
efficient operation of the Company’s management system.
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BOA K A ER I 2R

(—) REPEEESEREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the CSRC
AFREER 1.  Corporate Governance
HEHEZE Regulatory self-examination
HRAHEE ETARNEEAR The corporate governance practice implemented by the
BT ARREARFTLEEH Company has been in compliance with the relevant rules and
BER o requirements for listed companies in the PRC.
BUEEEITRERH How Independent non-executive Directors performed
their duties
ERAFERN  ARREFEEHE During the year, the Board convened eleven Board meetings.
il es RBVEELES The Independent non-executive Directors’ attendances at the
EmERANT Board mestings are set out below:
satg
WUESEKR E2mRE E@EEAR ZREHE & fEsE
Attendance in
Number of person/written Attendance by
Name meetings resolution alternate Absent Remarks
M 9 9 0 0
Mr. Du Guanhua
EEE 9 9 0 0
Mr. Li Wenming
EEERL 11 11 0 0
Mr. Lo Wah Wai
R 2 2 0 0
Mr. Pan Guangcheng
KRizfg 2 2 0 0
Mr. Zhu Jianwei
ERFEARN  KRARAEETFEZ During the year, the Audit Committee convened four meetings.
ZEeHAMANEE  SBYE The independent non-executive Directors’ attendances at the
EHESRBROT four meetings are set out below:
HEaWHE
BUSFEHR E2mRE EEER ZiEHE BRE R
Attendance in
Number of person/written Attendance by
Name meetings resolution alternate Absent Remarks
HEE 4 4 0 0
Mr. Du Guanhua
FXEH 4 4 0 0
Mr. Li Wenming
B 4 4 0 0
Mr. Lo Wah Wai
R 0 0 0 0
Mr. Pan Guangcheng
PN 0 0 0 0

Mr. Zhu Jianwei
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

How independent non-executive directors performed
their duties (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration and Examination Committee
of the Company convened one meeting. Mr. Du Guanhua and
Mr. Li Wenming and Mr. Lo Wah Wai, then members of the
committee, attended the meeting.

During the year, the Nominating Committee of the Company
convened two meetings. Mr. Du Guanhua and Mr. Li Wenming
and Mr. Lo Wah Wai, then members of the committee,
attended the meeting.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors did
not raise any disputes on the relevant matters of the Company.

Auditing of the 2020 annual report by the Audit
Committee

(1) The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors issued a
written opinion in respect of the financial and accounting
statements issued by the financial department of the
Company in 2020:

The financial and accounting statement of the Company
was prepared with reference to the accounting policy of
the Company. The application of the accounting policy is
appropriate and the accounting estimates are reasonable
and in compliance with the new accounting standards
for business enterprises, the Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises as well as the regulations
promulgated by the Ministry of Finance. The information
of each financial statement consolidated in the financial
statements of the Company is complete and the basis
of consolidation of the statements is accurate. The
Company’s financial statements are objective, truthful
and accurate, without any material misrepresentations or
omissions.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial

statements can be submitted to the certified accountants
engaged for annual auditing.
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RAEBRAMBES RS (F)

Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

(—) RIEPEEE ST REE ()

1. DFREER )
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1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Auditing of the 2020 annual report by the Audit
Committee (Continued)

(2) The Audit Committee reviewed the financial and
accounting statements for year 2020 of the Company
again after the issue of a preliminary audit opinion by
ShineWing in respect of the financial statements for year
2020 of the Company, and expressed their opinion as
follows:

The Company was in compliance with the accounting
standards for business enterprises published by the
Ministry of Finance and regulations in relation to the
financial system of the Company. The preparation
process of the financial statements was reasonable and
compliant with the relevant standards and fairly reflected
the assets, liabilities, shareholders’ equity and operating
results as at 31 December 2020. The information therein
is truthful, accurate and complete.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial
statements for the year 2020 of the Company which were
preliminarily audited by ShineWing can be submitted for
consideration and approval by the Board of Directors.

(8)  Conclusive report of ShineWing in respect of the auditing
of the financial report of the Company for 2020

On 8 January 2021, the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors approved the overall auditing plan for
the financial report of 2020 of the Company which
was discussed and confirmed by the Company and
ShineWing.

ShineWing issued a standard auditing report in relation
to the Company without reservation. The Company
considered that ShineWing had audited in accordance
with the regulations under “Independent auditing code of
certified accountants of the PRC”. There was ample time
for auditing and reasonable allocation of auditing staff,
and they had attained the corresponding qualification.
The audited financial statements fully reflected the
financial condition of the Company as at 31 December
2020 and the operating results and cash flow of the
Company in 2020. The conclusion upon auditing was in
line with the actual circumstances of the Company.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Auditing of the 2020 annual report by the Audit
Committee (Continued)

()

On 30 March 2021 the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors convened a meeting to review the audited
accounts and results announcement of 2020 and
recommended to re-appoint ShineWing as the financial
auditing institution for the year 2021 with a term of one
year.

For a summary of the works performed by the
Remuneration and Examination Committee and
Nominations Committee, please refer to “2. Information
disclosed under the requirement of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Ltd.”

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing
the financial accounts of the Group. Please refer to
the sections “Responsibilities of the Management and
Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements” and “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements” in the Auditors’ Report
in this report for details of the Board’s responsibilities
for preparing the accounts and the auditors’ reporting
responsibilities thereof respectively.

Status of Independence

The Company is independent of its Controlling Shareholder in
respect of its business, assets, management, institutions and
finance. The Company’s production and operation are also
independent.

)

The Company is mainly engaged in the business
of development, manufacture and sale of bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations and chemical products.
The controlling shareholder of the Company undertook
that it would not engage in any business directly
or indirectly in competition with the business of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

(—) RIEPEEE ST REE ()

1. DFREER )
S EIES (1)

@ HEEEFE ARRHEERE
TMEERS BPLEER
BMEERN BRI
EIZ AR RS - AR
BIBEERIN  HthTEE
RS EREE
RARBIES - AREEL
HAREISE R4 o

@ HEABHE ARAES
B AZRIEEEETE
B AKIR - BlRKIRE
BREBABHELTAT
CHEVETEN - 484512 - A
TR AR5 A AR B B L BT
BT o

(4) HEWBE - ERER
RERAE EE® E=E
T EEENEMELER
F BRBARRNBESD
T WAMEBMEELESS
P ERPE AR R DB -

6) EPHIE - NRRRLE
SHIMEERPT W T8
VHEFHZERANPBE
BHIE - BARITRES -

[EFE RIS

AR EZER DR R A E AR
BN FEELEEREBRFEL -

BREKREIN  ARRZIFBEL
EFEANRZHAB T FERE
BFEBRA R FHET o

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)
Status of Independence (Continued)

(2)  The Company has its own independent production and
supplementary production system and facilities. Apart
from certain patent technologies and the trademark
“Xinhua”, which are owned by the controlling shareholder,
the Company owns its own intangible assets such as
industrial property rights and know-how technologies
used by the Company. The Company also has an
independent procurement and sales network.

(8 The Company is independent of its Controlling
Shareholder in respect of the management of its
workforce and their salaries. The Senior Officers of the
Company including the general manager and the deputy
general manager are paid by the Company. The general
manager and deputy general managers do not hold any
position in the Controlling Shareholder of the Company.

(4)  The Company holds its own shareholders’ general
meetings, and has its own Board of Directors,
Supervisory Committee, company secretaries and
management, which are responsible for the different
areas and functions of the Company. The office and the
production area of the Company are separate from those
of its Controlling Shareholder.

(6)  The Company has an independent finance department
with an independent accounting and financial
management system. The Company also maintains its
own independent accounts with banks.

Business Competition

No substantive business competition existed between the
Company and its holding company and its subsidiaries.

Save as disclosed, the non-independent Directors of the
Company are not interested in businesses that compete or are
likely to compete with the Company.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)
Corporate Governance

During the reporting period, the Company continued to enhance
its corporate governance and regulate its operations, so as
to consolidate and deepen achievement from earlier special
campaigns for corporate governance. In strict compliance with
the “Company Law”, “Securities Law”, “Corporate Governance
Guidelines for Listed Companies”, “Rules Governing the Listing
of Stocks on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange”, “Guidelines of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the Internal Control of Listed
Companies” and other relevant laws, regulations and regulatory
requirements, the Company constantly improved its internal
operational mechanism and promoted stringent enforcement
of applicable rules and regulations, ensuring the standard
and effective exercise of decision-making, execution and
supervision powers by the shareholders’ general meetings, the
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Committee based on
their clearly-established responsibilities and orderly operation.
The convening procedures of general meetings and meetings of
the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Committee were in
compliance with the relevant requirements of the Company Law
and the Articles of Association of the Company. Directors and
Supervisors earnestly performed their duties in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations, accountable to the Company
and its shareholders and fully safeguarding the rights of the
shareholders. The management made business decisions in
strict compliance with standardized operational procedures
and various internal control rules, so as to ensure the Company
operated in accordance with rules and systems. The Company
attached importance to the performance assessment and
incentive and constraint mechanisms and emphasised position
performance appraisal system to stimulate the enthusiasm and
creativity of the managers at various levels.

During the reporting period, the Company earnestly and
timely fulfilled its information disclosure obligations under the
principle of “being fair, impartial and open (=A)" and in strict
compliance with the “Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange”, the “Guidelines for Fair
Information Disclosure by Listed Companies” and other relevant
rules and regulatory documents, and ensured the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of the information disclosed and
no false representation, misleading statements or material
omissions contained therein. In addition, insider registration
management was further improved to prevent insider dealings
and ensure fairness to investors.

“ECZFER [ URFEREROGERAA

35



36

NAEE

=55 3

=W7=]

(—) REPEEE SR REE ()
1. SEAEWER )
L EE IR ()

AR BRI A A RE B A

EARBELEBIZIANBTRER
BIMERBLIRY  REHE

KEARBIER  BHERMIGER
IHEEREE  XHERA

ﬁ'$ﬁﬁﬁ%¢¢%%ﬂé%

BB T ARBAEREREE
%X%%ﬁkfﬁ%mmﬂik
o

HEMREBREEARLEZF
REAMBE - tHFHERB GG E
I BmER

HREREEABNER AR
ARS8 B4R ENR
Al » — R D BN EITIRIK

BRAEREEEABNBEEE
LEE - HEHFALE N - T1EE

METLEFAMNEE TSR
BISHEERERF  ARBEEY
RE mERAESgHTER-
FERHE  ESgTHEaR
BIBABETZHFEANERZ £
EERERTIEEBINMERBITE

SRABREFENENR

LLQ&M WEEANB TS

DT BARER TP TIEE
E*%Eﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬂ
& - BT BN K R o

Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)
Corporate Governance (Continued)

The Company had related transactions with its holding
company and its fellow subsidiaries on a continuing basis.
Through the transactions, the Company purchased chemical
raw materials and sold water, electricity, gas and by-products.
The transactions were priced fairly with reference to prevailing
market practices, were not to the detriment of minority
shareholders, and in compliance with the approval procedures
and required announcement procedures for internal related
transactions of the Company.

The establishment and implementation of assessment
and appraisal mechanisms as well as incentive
mechanisms for Senior Officers

The Company selects its Senior Officers from its staff on the
basis of talent and ability. Prior to selecting and appointing
the Senior Officers, the Board of Directors follows a set of
strict selection criteria, which include the assessment of each
candidate’s character, moral standard, coordination ability,
working ability and sense of responsibility. Once nominated
by the Nomination Committee and eventually appointed by
the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors will evaluate the
Senior Officers regularly, particularly in respect of achievements
and their execution of resolutions passed by the Board of
Directors.

By analysing the duties of each of the Senior Officers, the
Company clearly sets out their job nature and scope of
responsibilities and has established a corresponding incentive
and penalty scheme to reward and sanction Senior Officers.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT



(—) RIEPEEE ST REE ()

A ER IR
SRR ERIGR

REEEGRER A ANEHES E
BEAR B ARSI R RS
EmTiE BERATANMENE
FEREEHIR] - ERBREK &
MEEREEE - B AR IR R
MFENBRARAEEEAE - A
BRI i B AT O EE 5B AY N BB )
FHET(E/E - BB R ERE SR
ENAERERTE KEHRAR
ERYEEXLRNERENX -
NREBTHBEENEFEILIES
O RE A AR IR G MR
BT - FHETLIENEREBETE
TR BEEASBRE - AR
- ZEES  EREEE R
MEEERR - WREAENES
RETEETIENETEEAE
BRAMERRRER - HEHER
FREE - REFHERR - EA
BERER - BRAGHESIFFE X
E - fERHEBET - SHEIEN
BN B R R/ MR FE RRAT B Tk
MERBR - WHFHEN S
RETEBT® - FEIIENA
BROABEHFERSLER
RIBREFT - QA WEBEHIFF
ERELEFTTREIRBE
HHMREE - RBIEBEKTNE
FTR =7 PTH A RI N ERIE A X
TEEITBIIRA -

RNAEBRABEFFRE (&)

Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

2.

Internal control
Development of internal control

The internal control leading team, as authorized by the
Board of Directors, is responsible for the organization and
implementation of specific internal control activities, the
development of implementation strategies for internal control,
decision-making on material events and supervision over the
implementation and reports to the Board of Directors in respect
of the development and evaluation of the Company’s internal
control. An internal control evaluation team led by the Audit
Department of the Company and comprising key officers with
ample professional experience was set up to take charge of the
specific implementation of internal control evaluation. The Audit
Department of the Company is responsible for formulating the
work plan for evaluating internal control, which is implemented
after being approved by the internal control leading team.
Pursuant to the work plan and focusing on such key factors
as internal environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication and internal supervision, the
internal control evaluation team carries out a comprehensive
evaluation on the design and operation of the Company’s
internal control, including organization and implementation
of risk identification, survey of deficiencies in internal control,
preparation of the evaluation draft, summarization of the
evaluation results, and preparation of the internal control
evaluation document. During the evaluation process, the
evaluation team timely reports to the leading team in respect
of the evaluation progress and conduct communication and
discussion on the preliminary evaluation results. The internal
control evaluation report prepared by the evaluation team,
after having been reviewed, will be submitted to the Board
of Directors for consideration and approval. Having been
considered and approved by Board of Directors, the internal
control evaluation report then will be disclosed publicly.
ShineWing has been engaged by the Company to conduct
an independent audit on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

2.

Internal control (Continued)

Statement of the Board of Directors on responsibilities in
relation to internal control

The Board of Directors and all Directors of the Company
warrant that there are no false representations, misleading
statements contained in or material omissions from this
report, and severally and jointly accept full responsibility
for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the
information herein contained. It is the responsibility of the
Board of Directors to put in place a sound and effective internal
control mechanism, the establishment and implementation of
which shall be overseen by the Supervisory Committee. The
management shall be responsible for the day-to-day operation
of this mechanism. The objectives of the internal control: to
reasonably ensure that the Company’s business operations is
in compliance with laws and regulations and that the financial
report and relevant information are true and accurate; to ensure
safety of assets; to improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of operations and management, and to facilitate achievement
of the Company’s development strategies. Given its intrinsic
limitations, internal control can only provide reasonable
assurance to the above objectives. Moreover, the effectiveness
of internal control is subject to changes in internal and external
environment and the Company’s operation conditions. The
Company has set up a supervisory system for internal control.
Correction measures will be adopted upon identification of any
defect in internal control.

Basis for establishment of internal control over financial
reporting

This evaluation report aims to assess the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s internal control as at
31 December 2020 pursuant to the requirements of the Basic
Standards for Corporate Internal Control (“Basic Standards”),
Guidance on Application of Corporate Internal Control
(“Guidance on Application”) and Guidance on Assessment of
Corporate Internal Control (“Guidance on Assessment”) jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic
of China and other four ministries and commissions and the
Company’s internal control system and evaluation methods on
the basis of day-to-day monitoring and special supervision of
the Company’s internal control.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

2. Internal control (Continued)
Self-evaluation report on internal control

During the reporting period, the Company has in place
internal controls in all material aspects according to the Basic
Standards for Corporate Internal Control and relevant rules.
As such internal controls were implemented effectively, the
Company’s internal control objectives were fulfilled and no
significant deficiency was found. The Self-evaluation Report on
Internal Control of the Company has been disclosed on Juchao
website (http://www.cninfo.com.cn) on 31 March 2021.

Audit report of internal control

ShineWing is of the opinion that the Company has maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting in all material
aspects pursuant to the Basic Standards for Corporate Internal
Control and relevant rules as at 31 December 2020.

The Audit Report of Internal Control of the Company has been
published on Juchao website (http://www.cninfo.com.cn) on 31
March 2021.

2. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Corporate Governance Code

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
are of the opinion that for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company complied with all code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules published by SEHK.

The Company has always strived to comply with the best practices of
the Code.
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2.

Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Corporate Governance Policies and Related Duties of the
Board

The Company strictly complies with the Listing Rules, and has
incorporated the provisions as set out in the Code as its corporate
governance policies. The Board has the following duties in respect of
corporate governance:

(1)  To formulate and review corporate governance policies and
practices of the Company, and make recommendations to the
Board;

(2)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and Senior Officers;

(8) To review and monitor the policies and practices of the
Company in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  To formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance rules of employees and directors;

(5)  To review the Company’s compliance with the Code.

During the reporting period, the Board is responsible for the
preparation and the fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with CASBE, and designing, implementing and
maintaining necessary internal control to ensure that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Group has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of a sufficient number of
independent non-executive directors and at least one independent
non-executive director with appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors including
one with financial management expertise.

The three independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
submitted confirmation of independence to the Company to confirm
that he/she has strictly complied with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules of the SEHK during the reporting
period. The Company considers each independent non-executive
Director to be independent from the Company.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

2. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors of Listed Issuers (Model Code)

During the reporting period, the Company has adopted a code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors and
Supervisors on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Following specific enquiries made with the Directors and Supervisors,
the Company has confirmed that each Director and Supervisor has
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding securities.

EEg The Board of Directors
(1) EFETHE (1)  The Board consists of
=
SRAEE BER
Mr. Zhang Daiming Chairman
Ei&85e FESTTE S (2020 12 A22 H B (1)
Mr. Ren Fulong Non-executive director (Resigned on 22 December 2020)
HEF WITES - B8
Mr. Du Deping Executive director, general manager
1R FEMITES
Mr. Xu Lie Non-executive director
BRE WITES(020F 12 A22 HEERT) - &liBssrs
Mr. He Tongging Executive director (Appointed on 22 December 2020), deputy general
manager
BERE FHEMITE R (2020F 12 A22HEE )
Mr. Cong Kechun Non-executive director (Appointed on 22 December 2020)
Tt B IEBITE = (20204F 12 A 22 HBRHT)
Mr. Du Guanhua Independent Non-executive director (Resigned on 22 December 2020)
ESE] B IEITE E (2020 12 A 22 A Bk ()
Mr. Li Wenming Independent Non-executive director (Resigned on 22 December 2020)
EEERL BUIHITES
Mr. Lo Wah Wai Independent non-executive Director
ERERK B IFITE H(2020F 12 522 B ER(T)
Mr. Pan Guangcheng Independent non-executive Director (Appointed on 22 December 2020)
RiEE B IEMITE E (20205 12 522 AR T)

Mr. Zhu Jianwei

Independent non-executive Director (Appointed on 22 December 2020)

EEgREMNBERAREE
£ EE RAEEABMET
B e

Brief Introduction of the Board members are set out in the
section headed “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR
OFFICERS AND STAFF”.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

(Z) RBEFEHAXHIMBMRLT 2. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements

AEES LR EE (| of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

EFEEM@) The Board of Directors (Continued)

2 EFEER ZFREEFEHE (2) During the year, the Board convened eleven Board

11k 88 EEFHEER

meetings. The details of Directors’ attendance at the

AMTF : Board meetings are set out below:
BEHE
EEla FEZmREH EmFxR ZiEHE BE  fEsE
Attendance in
Number of person/written Attendance
Name meetings resolution by alternate Absent Remarks
SRAEE 11 11 0 0
Mr. Zhang Daiming
(ERE 9 9 0 0
Mr. Ren Fulong
Y 11 11 0 0
Mr. Du Deping
eyl 11 11 0 0
Mr. Xu Lie
BRE 2 2 0 0
Mr. He Tongging
ERE 2 2 0 0
Mr. Cong Kechun
e 9 9 0 0
Mr. Du Guanhua
Z X 9 9 0 0
Mr. Li Wenming
[EEERL 11 11 0 0
Mr. Lo Wah Wai
R 2 2 0 0
Mr. Pan Guangcheng
FSESE 2 2 0 0

Mr. Zhu Jianwei
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

2. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

The Board of Directors (Continued)

3

Operation of Board

The duties of the Board are to create value for shareholders of
the Company, to confirm the strategies, targets and planning
of the Company, and to take leadership in order to ensure
that the set targets can be met. The Board shall manage the
Company diligently and effectively. The members of the Board
work in accordance with the principles of honesty and diligence
and comply with all relevant laws, regulations, the Articles of
Association of the Company and the relevant requirements
in the best interests of the Company and the shareholders.
With various measures of internal controls and mechanisms
for checks and balances, the duties of the Board and the
management of the Company are clearly defined.

The roles of Board have been defined clearly as guiding
and taking leadership of the company affairs, formulating
strategy and setting targets, as well as projects of business
development. The management of the Company is responsible
for putting into practice resolutions, targets and projects
made by the Board. The Board has formulated the Rules of
Debate for the Board and the Rules of Debate for the general
manager according to the relevant PRC laws and regulations
and the listing rules of stock exchanges both in the PRC and
overseas, in which the duties and powers of the Board are
sufficiently defined and the internal operation procedures of
the Board standardized. Therefore, the Board can sufficiently
perform its function as the decision-maker of the Company.
The procedures for the appointment of the general manager
have been laid down. The powers, scope of work, working
procedures and responsibilities of the general manager have
been specifically defined.

The Group has purchased liability insurance for its Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Officers, and the relevant insurance
covers the potential liability and the costs incurred in connection
with possible legal proceedings. Save as the disclosed, the
Group does not provide any indemnity arrangements for
Directors, Supervisors or Senior Officers.

The Board Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings and such board minutes should be open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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2.

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

The Board of Directors (Continued)

4)

(5)

Information and professional development

The Board of Directors attaches importance to the following
two points: Directors having a good knowledge of the Company
and its business; and devoting sufficient time to the Company
to discharge responsibilities effectively.

The Company will set out clearly the agendas of Board
meetings to ensure that the Directors are briefed on a wide
range of topics. The Directors are also given the opportunity
to visit the Company’s production and business places and
discuss aspects of the business with employees, and regularly
meet the heads of the Company’s main departments. Apart
from internal briefings, the Directors also attend external
seminars. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board
for ensuring the Board procedures are complied with, and
have access to independent and professional advice at the
Company’s expense, where it has been considered to be
necessary for the discharge of Directors’ duties.

Directors’ Training

The Company pays high regard to the continuing trainings of
Directors to ensure they are properly aware of the operation
and business of the Company. During the reporting period,
all the Directors attended compliance trainings for listed
companies organized by the Company. The Chairman and
general manager attended the trainings organized by CSRC.
Financial controller and the Company Secretary attended
trainings organized by Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

The Board of Directors (Continued)
(6) Diversity policy of the Board

During the year, the Board adopted a diversity policy setting
out the approach to diversity of members of the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity of
Board members. It works hard to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
All Board appointments will continue to be made on integrity
and ability basis with due regard to the benefits of diversity of
the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based on
a range of diversified perspectives, including, but not limited to,
business experience; specialized skills and other experiences;
race, international background, gender and age; applicable
regulatory requirements; and issues involving possible conflicts
of interest. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Chairman and chief executive

The Chairman is responsible for convening Board meetings and
ensuring that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.
The Chairman ensures that the Board effectively carries out its
functions and discharges its responsibilities. The Chairman is also
responsible for approving the agenda for each Board meeting, taking
into account any matters proposed by other Directors for the inclusion
in the agenda.

The general manager is responsible for the day-to-day management
and the business performance of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Daiming is the Chairman of the Company; Mr. Du Deping is
the general manager of the Company.

Term of independent non-executive directors

The non-executive Directors of the Tenth Board were appointed for a
term of 3 years commencing from 22 December 2020.
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2.

Members of the Remuneration Committee

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Remuneration and Examination Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration and Examination
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), which is a special
committee responsible to the Board. The Remuneration Committee
comprises of Mr. Zhu Jianwei, Mr. Pan Guangcheng and Mr. Lo
Wah Wai. Mr. Zhu Jianwei is the chairman of the Remuneration and
Examination Committee.

The Company has formulated the “Rules for Operation of the
Remuneration and Examination Committee”. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for formulating the remuneration policy
of Directors and Senior Officers of the Company, determining the
standard of examination of Directors and Senior Officers, assessing
the performance of Directors and Senior Officers during the year
and approving the terms of their service contracts and remuneration
packages and submitting the same to the Board for approval. The
terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee were uploaded
and disclosed on the websites of the SEHK and the Company and
are available upon request.

During year 2020, the Remuneration Committee convened
one meeting for the purpose of passing the “Proposal of 2020
Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors and Senior Officers”,
which were submitted to the Board for approval. Mr. Du Guanhua
and Mr. Li Wenming and Mr. Lo Wah Wai, then members of the
committee, attended the meeting.

The remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers of
the Company is determined with reference to State policies, the
Company'’s profit realized in the corresponding period, individual
achievement and the average income of local residents.

RS

Attendance

FNERKE(FE - R20205F 1222 AEEF) Mr. Li Wenming (Chairman, Resigned on 22

December 2020) 1/1 (100%)
MEZESE LS - K2020%F 12522 H&#(F) Mr. Du Guanhua (Member, Resigned on 22
December 2020) 1/1 (100%)

BEREERXE) Mr. Lo Wah Wai (Member) 1/1 (100%)
KRBEREEE - R20209F 12522H#Z  Mr. Zhu Jianwei (Chairman, Appointed on 22

F) December 2020) 0/0
SEBREREE(EE - R2020F12522H7#Z  Mr. Pan Guangcheng (Member, Appointed on 22

F) December 2020) 0/0
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of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee, which
is a special committee responsible to the Board. The Nomination
Committee comprises, Mr. Pan Guangcheng, Mr. Zhang Daiming, Mr.
Du Deping, Mr. Zhu Jianwei and Mr. Lo Wah Wai. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Pan Guangcheng.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the following:

(@  Formulating the policy for the nomination of Directors or Senior
Officers and the standard for selection of such individuals;

(b)  Preliminarily selecting Directors and Senior Officers and
submitting the nomination proposals to the Board;

(c)  Reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of members of the Board
on a regular basis and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes;

(d)  Assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(e) Making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors or
Senior Officers.

The scope of duties, nomination procedures and the process and
criteria of the Nomination Committee are based on its Terms of
Reference as uploaded to and disclosed on the websites of the SEHK
and the Company and available upon request.
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2.

Members of the Nomination Committee

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

During year 2020, the Nomination Committee convened two meetings
for the purpose of passing the “Proposal of Wei Changsheng and
Xu Wenhui as the deputy general managers of the Company” and
“Proposal of nominating candidates for Non-independent Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors of the Tenth Board of
Directors”, which were submitted to the Board for approval. Mr.
Zhang Daiming, Mr. Du Deping, Mr. Du Guanhua, Mr. Li Wenming
and Mr. Lo Wah Wai, then members of the committee, attended the
meeting.
HiE=E

Attendance

RIS (EFE - K020 12 522 HEE(T)

RRBEEBE)

HBFRERS)

BVRELE (L E - R20204F 12 H22 HEE(T)

EERSTE(EE - R2020%F 12 22 H#EZ
£)

REBEBREBE  R2020F 1222 HEZE
£)

Mr. Du Guanhua (Chairman, Resigned on 22

December 2020)
Mr. Zhang Daiming (Member)
Mr. Du Deping (Member)

2/2 (100%)
2/2 (100%)
2/2 (100%)

Mr. Li Wenming (Member, Resigned on 22

December 2020)

Mr. Lo Wah Wai (Member)

Mr. Pan Guangcheng (Chairman, Appointed on 22
December 2020)

Mr. Zhu Jianwei (Member, Appointed on 22
December 2020)
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

2. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Auditors’ remuneration
ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
was re-appointed as the auditors of the Company in the 2019 annual

general meeting held on 29 June 2020.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
has been re-appointed as the auditors for 25 consecutive years.*

In 2020, the auditors’ remuneration (tax exclusive) for audit services
provided was as follows:

2020 & 20195 %
I5H Item Year 2020 Year 2019
(ABR#T) (AE#T)
(RMB: Yuan) (RMB: Yuan)

EETAIEN & Auditors’ remuneration
—FTRGEA — Audit service fee 613,207.55 613,207.55
—NIEEFT RIS E R — Internal control audit service fees 122,641.51 122,641.51
—EMR%EER — Other service fee 386,792.45 367,924.53
AFr Total 1,122,641.51 1,108,773.59

2020 F E R RIEBEKPMEFER
%R BaR) BNIEETSTME
AT BRMATAREEGBEARE
122,641.51 L(NEHEFE) o

In 2020, the Company engaged ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) for auditing and internal
control and paid auditing and internal control fees of RMB122,641.51
(tax exclusive).
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2.

Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Auditors’ remuneration (Continued)

Other service fee of RMB386,792.45 (tax exclusive) included the audit
service fees for the “Special Explanation on the Occupation of Non-
operating Fund and the Transfer of Other Fund Related” and the
“Independent Auditor’s Letter on Continuous Related Transactions”,
which did not impact the independence of the auditors.

* For the year ended 31 December 2014, SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited and ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) served as the international auditor and the domestic
auditor of the Company, respectively. At the Annual General Meeting
held on 24 June 2015, the appointment of ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the auditor of the
Company was approved by shareholders and there has since been no
separate appointment of international auditor and domestic auditor of
the Company. ShineWing Certified Public Accountants has since been
the only independent auditor after the appointment, and has audited the
financial statements the Company in accordance with CASBE. Details of
the above were set out in the announcements dated 7 May 2015 and 24
June 2015 and the circular dated 8 May 2015 of the Company.

Audit Committee

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company set up an
Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) comprising Mr. Lo Wah
Wai, Mr. Pan Guangcheng, and Mr. Zhu Jianwei. The chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Lo Wah Wai.

With reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, the Board has
set out terms of reference for the Audit Committee, which define the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Company’s
financial report reflects a fair view of the Company. In addition to
reviewing the financial information and statements of the Company,
the Audit Committee is also responsible for liaising with the
Company’s external auditor and overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
procedures.

A copy of the terms of reference for the Audit Committee were
uploaded and disclosed on the websites of the SEHK and the
Company and are available upon request.
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of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee has, together with the management, reviewed
the accounting principles, practices and methods adopted by the
Group and has discussed the auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting of the Company. The Audit Committee has convened four
meetings to review the audited financial statements for 2019, the
unaudited 1st quarterly financial statements for 2020, the unaudited
interim statements for 2020 and the unaudited 3rd quarterly financial
statements for 2020.

The Audit Committee convened a meeting on 30 March 2021 to
review the 2020 audited accounts and annual results announcement.

For the record of the attendance of individual members of the Audit
Committee, please refer to the attendance table set out under the
section headed “Information disclosed under the requirement of
CSRC” of the Corporate Governance Report.

Investor Relations

The Company actively and earnestly carried out work in respect of
the disclosure of information and investor relations and nominated
an individual to deal with the Company’s investor relations.
Meanwhile, the Company strictly complied with the principles of
truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness in the disclosure
of information. The Company also enhanced communication with
investors and made efforts to improve the transparency of the
Company by way of issuing results announcements, publishing
announcements, launching the Company’s website, meeting investors
and analysts and answering investors’ inquiries, etc.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at (http://www.xhzy.com), where information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operation, financial
information, corporate governance and other information are available
for public access.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interests in Shares

So far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and the Supervisors of
the Company are aware, the interests or short position in shares of
the Directors, the Supervisors and the Senior Officers, according to
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are
stated in the description of Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior
Officers’ interests in shares of the Company under the section
“DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND STAFF”.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and
internal controls system and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board requires the management to establish and maintain sound
and effective risk management and internal controls. Evaluation
of the Company’s risk management and internal controls is also
independently conducted by the Supervisory Committee on a regular
basis.

During the reporting period, the Company established the risk
management and internal controls system in all material respects
according to Basic Standards of Internal Control and related
provisions. The Company confirms the effective implementation
of such system reached our risk management and internal control
target, and there are no major defects.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

Save as disclosed above in “Changes in Share Capital and Information
on Shareholders” and so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and
the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31 December 2020,
no other person (other than a Director, Senior Officer or Supervisor
of the Company) had an interest or short position in the Company’s
shares or underlying shares (as the case may be), which are required
to be disclosed to the Company and the SEHK under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.
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of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interest and Short
Positions

Save as disclosed under the section headed “DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND STAFF”, so far as the
Directors, the Senior Officers and the Supervisors of the Company are
aware, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors, the Senior
Officers or the Supervisors of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the
case may be) of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of SFO) which was required to be notified to
the Company and the SEHK pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interest and short position which any such
Director, Senior Officer or Supervisor is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) of which was required to be
entered in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The Board proposes the profit distribution plan for year 2020 as
follows: the total number of shares of the Company at the reporting
disclosure date was 627,367,447 (of which 432,367,447 shares were
A shares and 195,000,000 shares were H shares). Based on the total
issued shares of the Company of 627,367,447 shares, it is proposed
a dividend of RMBO0.15 (tax inclusive) for every share of the Company
be paid to shareholders. The above mentioned proposed dividends
distribution for year 2020 is subject to approval by shareholders of
the Company. Shareholders and potential investors are advised to
exercise caution when dealing in the securities of the Company.
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2.

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Shareholder’s requests to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 93 of the Articles of Association, if shareholders
require the convening of an extraordinary general meeting or a class
general meeting, the following procedures shall be followed:

(1)  Two or more shareholders, who together hold 10 per cent
or more of the shares carrying voting rights at the proposed
meeting, may sign one or several written requisition(s) of the
same form and contents, requiring the Board of Directors
to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
shareholders’ meeting as requested and state the agenda
of the meeting. The Board should as soon as possible after
receiving the abovementioned request convene such meetings.
The percentage represented by the shareholdings of the
requisitioning shareholders shall be calculated as at the date of
the deposit of the requisition.

(2)  If the Board of Directors fails to give a notice convening a
meeting within 30 days of receiving the aforesaid written
requisition, the requisitioning shareholders may themselves
convene a meeting within 4 months of the receipt of such
requisition by the Board of Directors. In so convening a meeting,
the requisitioning shareholders should adopt a procedure as
similar to that of a shareholders’ general meeting convened by
the Board of Directors as possible.

All reasonable expenses incurred in connection with a meeting
convened by any shareholders themselves by reason of the failure of
the Board of Directors to convene a meeting pursuant to a requisition
shall be borne by the Company and shall be deducted from any sums
due from the Company to those Directors in default.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board
In order to put forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,

shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. (The
Company in general does not answer verbal or anonymous enquiries.)

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Primary Contact Persons
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the Company by means of facsimile, email or post. The

details of contact are as follows:

The Company Secretary’s office of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Address:  No. 1 Lutai Ave., Hi-tech Industry Development Zone,
Zibo City, Shandong Province, The People’s Republic of

China
Fax: 86-533-2287508
Email: CQCAO@XHZY.COM

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice, statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address, and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information is subject to disclosure pursuant to laws
and regulations.
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On 14 May 2020, the notice of the annual general meeting of 2019
of the Company was published in Securities Times, Juchao website,
HKExnews and the Company’s website and was served on the
shareholders of H Shares by prepaid post. The general meeting was
convened by the Board of Directors and held at the Company’s
registered office on 29 June 2020 with voting by poll (on site and
via the internet). Eight shareholders (including those voting via the
internet) attended the meeting, representing a total number of
215,900,939 shares and 34.72% of the Company’s then total issued
shares with voting rights. The meeting was convened in compliance
with the provisions of the Company Law of the PRC as well as the
Company’s Articles of Association. The meeting was chaired by Mr.
Zhang Daiming, the Chairman of the Company.

The following general/special resolutions were passed at the annual
general meeting of 2019:

1. To approve the annual report of the Company for the year
2019;

2. To approve the report of the Board of Directors for the year
2019;

3. To approve the report of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company for the year 2019;

4, To approve the audited financial statements for the year 2019;

5. To approve the profit distribution plan for the year 2019;

6. To approve the resolution on the re-appointment of auditors
and authorizing the Board of Directors to determine its
remuneration;

7. To approve the remuneration of the Directors and the
Supervisors for the year 2020;

8. To approve the amendment of the Articles of Association and
the relevant rules of procedure.

An announcement of the above resolutions was published on
Securities Times, Juchao website as well as on HKExnews and the
Company’s website on 30 June 2020.
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Summarised Report of the General Meetings (continued)

On 2 December 2020, the notice of the first extraordinary general
meeting and the first A-Share Shareholders’ Meeting in 2020 and the
first H-Share Shareholders’ Meeting in 2020 of the Company was
published on Securities Times, Juchao website, HKExnews and the
Company’s website and notice was served on the shareholders of H
Shares by prepaid post. The general meeting was convened by the
Board of Directors and held at the Company’s registered office on
22 December 2020. The meeting adopted site and network voting.
Eleven shareholders (including those voting via the internet) attended
the general meeting, representing a total number of 233,431,099
shares and accounting for 37.54% of the then total issued shares with
voting right. A total of nine A-Share shareholders and shareholders’
representatives attended the class meeting of the shareholders of
A shares, representing a total number of 206,459,796 shares and
accounting for 48.37% of the total number of A shares with voting
rights of the Company. A total of two H-Share shareholders and
shareholders’ representatives attended the on-site class meeting
of the shareholders of H-Shares, representing a total number of
28,937,303 shares and accounting for 14.84% of the total number of
H shares with voting rights of the Company. The general meeting was
convened in compliance with the provisions of the Company Law of
the PRC as well as the Articles of Association of the Company. The
general meeting was chaired by Mr. Zhang Daiming, the Chairman of
the Company.

() The 2020 first extraordinary general meeting approved the
following ordinary/special resolutions:

1. To approve the proposed amendments to the Incentive
Plan;

2. To approve the election of Mr. Zhang Daiming, Mr. Du
Deping, Mr. Xu Lie, Mr. He Tongqing and Mr. Cong
Kechun as Non-independent Directors of the Tenth
Board of Directors of the Company by cumulative voting;

3. To approve the election of Mr. Pan Guangcheng, Mr.
Zhu Jianwei and Mr. Lo Wah Wai as Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Tenth Board of Directors of the
Company by cumulative voting;

4. To approve the election of Mr. Liu Chengtong, Mr. Tao
Zhichao and Mr. Xiao Fangyu as Supervisors of the Tenth
Supervisory Committee of the Company by cumulative
voting.
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Summarised Report of the General Meetings (continued)
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() The 2020 first class meeting of the shareholders of A-Shares
approved the following special resolution:

To approve the proposed amendments to the Company’s
Incentive Plan.

(I The 2020 first class meeting of the shareholders of H-Share
approved the following special resolutions:

To approve the proposed amendments to the Company’s
Incentive Plan.

An announcement of the above resolutions was published on
Securities Times, Juchao website as well as on HKExnews and the
Company’s website on 23 December 2020.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders,

| hereby present for your review the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Results and Dividends

In the year ended 31 December 2020, the operating income of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) prepared in accordance with
CASBE was RMB6,005,587,000, representing an increase of 7.13% as
compared with 2019. The Group recorded net profits attributable to the
equity holders of the Company of RMB324,860,000, representing an
increase of 8.30% as compared with 2019. Basic earnings per share was
RMBO0.52.

The Board proposes the profit distribution plan for year 2020 as follows: the
total number of shares of the Company at the reporting disclosure date was
627,367,447 (of which 432,367,447 shares were A shares and 195,000,000
shares were H shares). Based on the total issued shares of the Company of
627,367,447 shares, it is proposed a dividend of RMB0.15 (tax inclusive) for
every share of the Company be paid to shareholders. The above mentioned
proposed dividends distribution for year 2020 is subject to approval by
shareholders of the Company. Shareholders and potential investors are
advised to exercise caution when dealing in the securities of the Company.

An announcement containing further details as to, amongst others, the
payment currency and applicable foreign exchange rate for the proposed
cash dividend, the relevant record date and book closure period will be
disclosed in due course.

Business Review

In 2020, the Group actively responded to the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, intensified market competition and many other factors, seized
opportunities, vigorously promoted the strategies of greater preparations,
internationalization and large-scale research and development, focused
on project implementation, internal reform and basic management to
consolidate the foundation. The operating quality of the Group continued
to improve, major operating indicators made new breakthroughs, and the
annual operating objectives and tasks were successfully completed.

1. New characteristics identified during market development

The advantages of the technology, quality and scale of bulk drugs
as well as the industrial chain have been further enhanced. The sales
volume of leading varieties of caffeine and levodopa increased by 26%
and 25% on a year-on-year basis, respectively. The sales volume of
new bulk drug products such as EPA, Carbidopa and Carbasalate
Calcium increased by 784%, 992% and 283%, respectively.
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Business Review (Continued)

1.

New characteristics identified during market development
(Continued)

The sales volume of ten strategic key preparations increased by
56.27% on a year-on-year basis, among which the sales volume
of the bid-winning categories of Glimepiride tablets, Shutaide (£72=
#53) and Cefradine capsules increased by 68.2%, 52% and 145.3%,
respectively. Five products including Clarithromycin tablets in 6
specifications won the bid for national centralized purchasing.
Baochang (f&#3) and Shutaide were rated as well-known products
in Shandong Province, and the Company was rated as an high-end
brand enterprise in Shandong Province.

By vigorously promoting cross-border e-commerce and Internet
medical services, the revenue from e-commerce business for the year
has doubled on a year-on-year basis.

New achievements made in scientific and technological
innovation

The research and development investment for the year increased by
29.18% on a year-on-year basis. The formation of a new research
and development platform was accelerated. During the year, Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Central South) Clinical and Biomedical Research
Institute*, Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Jinan) Joint Research Institute*
and Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Guangdong) Xidian International
Pharmaceutical Joint Research Center* were established.

A total of 11 products in 16 specifications passed the consistency
evaluation. During the year, edaravone injection obtained the drug
registration approval and the bulk drugs were eligible for listing. The
Company successfully obtained 237 product re-registration approvals
and obtained 8 authorized patents.

The introduction of high-end talent was accelerated. During the
year, two external academicians were introduced into the Company,
one person was selected into the national key talent project, one
provincial key talent team was approved, two PhDs were successfully
introduced, and 124 college graduates were newly recruited. The
Company has formed a high-end talent team consisting of five
academicians, three national talent engineering experts, six Taishan
scholars and 17 PhDs.

The Company was recognized as “Shandong Province Antipyretic and
Analgesic Advanced Manufacturing Engineering Research Center”.
One project was awarded the first prize of Science and Technology
of Chinese Chemical Society, one project was awarded the third prize
of Science and Technology Progress of Shandong Province and one
project was included in the provincial enterprise technology innovation
plan.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Business Review (Continued)

3.

New progress made in the implementation of key projects

The change of production license was completed for the Modern
Medicine Center for International Cooperation phase Il with a
production capacity of 20 billion tablets, and the variety transfer
proceeded in an orderly manner. The purification and decoration
of the high-end injection project was completed and equipment
installation began. Two product projects of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd. were put into trial production. The purification
decoration and equipment installation was completed for the animal
medicine project of Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Gaomi) Co., Ltd., and
GMP certification had begun.

The bidding for an additional 139 acres of land for the No. 2 sub-
factory was completed and a transfer contract was signed. The
application for land certificates in order to reserve more space for
enterprise development had also been stepped up.

International operation reaching a new level

In 2020, the revenue from the Group’s exports reached US$294
million, representing an increase of 12.96% on a year-on-year basis
which was a record high. The sales revenue from the exports of
preparations products increased by 20.58% on a year-on-year basis.

The Modern Medicine Center for International Cooperation phase |
with a production capacity of 20 billion tablets passed the inspection
of the United States Food and Drug Administration with zero defects.
ANDA ibuprofen tablets were exported to the United States market,
and products such as ibuprofen capsules and Loperamide capsules
were directly exported to the European market. The Xinhua-Perrigo
preparation project with a production capacity of 5 billion tablets was
officially put into commercial production, and the export of 300 million
tablets was realized for the year. International cooperation projects on
Oseltamivir capsules and EPA soft capsules were officially launched.

New breakthroughs made in tackling tough reforms

New steps were taken in the reform of mixed ownership. The
Company completed the acquisition of 27% equity of Wanbo
Chemical and formulated and implemented the mid- and long-
term incentive scheme of Wanbo Chemical. On the basis of the
e-commerce business platform of the Company, with the introduction
of strategic investors and professional operations team, Xinhua Health
was established.

Reform of the large departments was actively promoted. The
Company shut down 4 management departments, formulated
the “Sunshine Procurement Management Measures”, established
the office for tender, and established a unified procurement and
distribution platform for pharmaceutical wholesale and retail, as well
as a unified procurement platform for raw materials and packaging
materials for preparations.
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Business Review (Continued)
6. Newly enhanced basic management

The “lifeline” engineering was under stable operation, with no average
or above safety and environmental protection quality accidents
occurring throughout the year. The Company successfully passed
the evaluation of the second-level standardization enterprise in the
Shandong Province with “excellent” ranking, and was selected as a
pilot unit for the construction of the national dual prevention system.
One team of the Company was awarded as the winning team in the
national “Ankang Cup” competition.

Two RTO projects with an investment of more than RMB30 million
for the treatment of VOCs and odors, and the anaerobic ammonia
oxidation project with an investment of more than RMB10 million were
successfully put into operation.

Following the passing of the inspection by the United States Food and
Drug Administration with zero defects by the Modern Medicine Center
for International Cooperation phase | at the beginning of the year, the
Company successfully passed 73 inspections and audits during the
year, and completed the international registration of 10 products.

Prospects

First, with the advancement of a new development pattern where the
domestic big circulation serves as the main body and dual circulations of
domestic and international complementing each other, the consumption-
oriented mode of economic development is gradually taking shape, and
enterprises are ushering in more development opportunities. Second, with
the intensive introduction of various preferential policies, the development
environment and business environment is beneficial for enterprises to
further accelerate reform and innovation. Third, with the development of the
economy and society, the acceleration of population aging and urbanization,
the further enhancement of public health awareness, national health
insurance coverage and payment capabilities, the demand for medicine
continues to grow rapidly, and bio-pharmaceutical, as a strategically
emerging industry, is bound to maintain rapid development.

However, the global landscape is facing more change with increasing
instabilities and uncertainties, such as the COVID-19 pandemic that is still
raging across the globe, rising de-globalization, RMB appreciation and the
skyrocketing prices for international transportation. In terms of the domestic
market situation, the Company’s profitability is facing daunting challenges
in view of the rigid increase of investment in environmental protection and
safety with intensified competition in the pharmaceutical market, as well as
rising price of basic chemical raw materials.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Prospects (Continued)

As such, the key tasks of the Group in 2021 are as follows:

1.

Fully leveraging the leading role in the market

In view of the changes in the pharmaceutical market brought
about by the consistency evaluation and the national volume-
based procurement, the Group gives full play to the comprehensive
advantages of branding, technology, quality, scale and set of
industrial chain, seizes the market opportunities, and intensifies the
market development of bulk drugs. The Group will put extra efforts on
the marketing of featured bulk drugs such as EPA and carbidopa, and
accelerate the cultivation of new growth driver.

The Group will make full use of the advantages of enterprise brand,
quality and technology, actively participating in national and provincial
bidding on the basis of comprehensive study and assessment of
the competitors, and striving to win the bid for large varieties of
preparations. The Group will give full play to the advantages of self-
produced bulk drugs and cultivate branded generic drugs with its
own characteristics. The Group will intensify the academic promotion
and market development of key strategic products, focus on Jiening*
(1 28), Aidite* (3 31F) and other top products, and strive to go big.

The Group will take the establishment of Xinhua Health as an
opportunity to strengthen the strategic cooperation with e-commerce
giants, vigorously promote the cooperation of “internet + medicine
(medical)” and healthcare online payment with local key hospitals,
accelerate the distribution of medical services such as electronic
prescription, remote diagnosis and treatment, and health
management, and accelerate the development of cross-border
e-commerce and new retail development.

Giving full play to the driving force of scientific and
technological innovation

The Group will further increase its investment in research and
development, strive to increase research and development investment
by more than 10% on a year-on-year basis in 2021, and further
accelerate the reform of its scientific research system and mechanism.

The Group will fully implement the “Big Research and Development
Strategy”, further improve the research and development system
and research and development platform establishment, further
enrich and improve the new drugs of pain control, cardiovascular
and cerebrovascular, and anti-cancer in R&D pipeline, accelerate
the application of new preparation technology, further improve the
high-end drug delivery system, achieve breakthroughs in antibody
drugs and major innovative drugs, and strive to obtain another 3 to 4
approvals for new products within the next year.

The Group will effectively integrate the existing resources, speed
up the consistency evaluation of follow-up products especially for
key products, and strive to obtain more than four approvals for
consistency evaluation, such as Amoxicillin capsules.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Prospects (Continued)

3.

Promoting the development of internationalization strategies in
depth and breadth

The Group will give full play to the platform of International
Cooperation Center for Modern Medicine and the advantages
of international talents in technological quality, coordinate the
Company’s resources, speed up the international registration,
strengthen the international marketing team for preparations, and
enhance the tasks in various steps such as attracting investment, joint
venture cooperation, registration and marketing, so as to realize the
rapid growth of international preparations.

The Group will give full play to the production capacity of 20 billion
tablets of International Cooperation Center as soon as possible,
accelerate the landing of more international cooperation projects,
step up efforts to promote all kinds of work, and strive to export the
injection products to the regulated markets in Europe and the United
States as soon as possible.

The Group will attach great importance to the market development of
countries along the Belt and Road, as well as in Southeast Asia, and
take the initiative to target other markets and make breakthroughs
in exporting by setting regulated markets as the highest marketing
target.

Accelerating the implementation of key projects

In 2021, the Group’s project construction investment and external
investment budget is approximately RMB1.5 billion, including the
completion of equipment installation for high-end injection project
within the year. The Group will launch the construction of the
headquarter e-commerce innovation center, No. 2 sub-factory
featured bulk drugs project, Shouguang featured bulk drugs multi-
function center and pharmaceutical intermediate project. On the
basis of vigorously developing the veterinary drug market, Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Gaomi) Company Limited will actively kick start
animal drug project.

Accelerating the upgrade of industrial base

The Group will take lean management as an opportunity, 7S
management and CTPM as effective means to employ modern
management tools to improve production support capabilities and
management standards based on the production management
platform.

The Group will ensure the proper functioning of lifeline engineering.
With the help of modern information technology, the Group will build
an online platform incorporating safety, environmental protection
and quality, realize the linkage analysis and application of data and
video, carry out integrated and global supervision of risk prevention
and control, and make sure that the conditions are visible, events are
under control and behaviors are under management.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Prospects (Continued)
5. Accelerating the upgrade of industrial base (Continued)

The Group will strive to complete the standard implementation
of the“Integration of Informatization and Industrialization” system,
improve the level of informatization, promote the establishment of
smart enterprises; build digital workshop, complete 45 automated
and continuous transformation; further coordinate the Company’s
ERP, OA, energy online management system, video monitoring
management system, equipment management system, etc., improve
the functions of existing systems, tap the data analysis capability
of each system, and build a comprehensive data control platform;
continue to accelerate the IT-based professional management and
accelerate the realization of professional management for digital
transformation.

6. Continuously enhancing the growth momentum and
development vitality

The Group will conscientiously implement the Company’s tasks in
comprehensive deepening reform and reforms of three systems,
further streamline the organization personnel, improve work efficiency,
and establish the normalized mechanism in which management
personnel can be promoted or demoted, employees can be recruited
or sacked, and the salaries can be increased or decreased.

The Group will implement efficiency management in human resources,
measure human resources efficiency with financial performance
indicators, and improve the effectiveness of human resource
management by quantitative evaluation.

The Group will promote the innovation and reform of management
mode, explore and implement excellent performance management,
continue to promote organization and process restructure, and
carry out lean production, knowledge-based management and other
management innovation.

With the dedication and commitment among the Group, the Board firmly
believes that the Group will fully achieve the 2021 target and make a good
start for the “14th Five-Year Plan” with excellent performance!

Zhang Daiming
Chairman
Zibo, Shandong Province, PRC 30 March 2021
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Please refer to the section headed “Business Review” on page 59 to 62 for
further information on the review of the Group’s business.

The Board of Directors hereby submits to the shareholders the report of the
Board of Directors for 2020 and the audited accounts of the Company and
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

1. Management Discussion and Analysis

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company

The Group is mainly engaged in the development, production
and sale of pharmaceutical raw materials, preparations, medical
intermediate and other products. The profit of the Group is
mainly attributable to its principal operations.

Sales Analysis

Under the CASBE, the Group had an operating income of
RMB6,005,587,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Sales of chemical bulk drugs, preparations, and medical
intermediates and other products accounted for 42.72%,
43.39%, 13.89% respectively of the total sales of the Group,
representing an increase of 0.13 percentage points, a decrease
of 2.86 percentage points, and an increase of 2.73 percentage
points respectively as compared with that of last year.

In 2020, the sales revenue of the Group’s chemical bulk drugs
amounted to RMB2,565,565,000, representing an increase
of 7.45% as compared with that of last year. The increase
was mainly because the Company actively responded to the
changes of the situation this year, seized market opportunities,
and actively developed the API market.

The sales revenue of preparations was RMB2,605,609,000,
representing an increase of 0.49% as compared with that of
last year. The growth was mainly due to the Company actively
participated in the national procurement with large quantities,
continued to promote the development strategy of large-scale
preparations, and maintained the market share of the leading
varieties of preparations.

The sales revenue of medical intermediates and other products
was RMB834,413,000, representing an increase of 33.41%
as compared with that of last year. The main reason for the
increase was that this year's e-commerce business integrated
various channel resources, increased online service efforts,
and a breakthrough in the development of cross-border export
business.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Results Analysis

For the year ending 31 December 2020, the net profits
attributable to equity holders of the Company prepared
in accordance with the CASBE was RMB324,860,000,
representing an increase of 8.30% as compared with that of
last year. The main reason for the increase was that in this
year the Company seized the market opportunities, vigorously
developed the market, continued to promote cost reduction
and efficiency increased, organised steady and scientific
production, strengthened scientific and technological progress,
and solidified basic management which resulted in continuous
positive development in production and management.

Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
accordance with CASBE

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of the Group were
RMB7,092,952,000, representing an increase of 10.21%
compared with the beginning of the year. The increase in total
assets was mainly due to operating profits generated this year.

As at 31 December 2020, the prepayments of the Group
were RMB48,958,000, representing an increase of 64.43%
compared with the beginning of the year. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in prepayment for purchases in the
current year to ensure normal production and operation.

As at 31 December 2020, the short-term borrowing of the
Group was RMB200,420,000, representing a decrease
of RMB339,580,000 compared with the beginning of the
year. The non-current liabilities due within one year was
RMB422,617,000, representing an increase of RMB73,619,000
compared with the beginning of the year. The long-term
borrowing was RMB462,738,000, representing a decrease of
RMB127,041,000 compared with the beginning of the year. The
long-term payments was RMB638,556,000, representing an
increase of RMB588,269,000 compared with the beginning of
the year. The main reason for the change was the optimization
and adjustment of the debt financing structure in order to
reduce the financing cost in this year.

As at 31 December 2020, the total liabilities of the Group were
RMB3,701,662,000, representing an increase of 11.31% from
the beginning of the year. The main reason for the increase
was that in order to ensure the funds needed for production,
operation and project implementation in this year, there was an
appropriate increase in the scale of liabilities with interest.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
accordance with CASBE (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the total equity attributable to
the shareholders of the Company was RMB3,223,794,000,
representing an increase of 8.58% from the beginning of
the year. The increase was primarily due to operating profits
generated this year.

The Group’s selling expense amounted to RMB631,597,000
in 2020, representing a decrease of 19.97% as compared with
the same period last year, and the main reason for the decrease
was that the Company continues to strengthen the control of
sales expenses in this year, and the market development and
terminal sales costs decreased.

The Group’s research and development expense amounted to
RMB298,347,000 in 2020, representing an increase of 26.74%
as compared with the same period last year, and the increase
was mainly attributable to the continuous strengthening of
scientific and technological innovation and continuous increase
in investment in terms of research and development, new
products and new technology development.

The Group’s financial expenses amounted to RMB83,710,000
in 2020, representing an increase of 72.33% as compared
with the same period last year, and the increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in exchange losses as a result of
exchange rate fluctuations in the current year.

The Group’s asset impairment loss amounted to
RMB45,159,000 in 2020, representing a decrease of 43.30% as
compared with the same period last year, and the main reason
for the decrease was the continuous strengthening of asset
management and the improvement of operational efficiency, as
well as the decrease in asset impairment.

The Group’s operating profit amounted to RMB422,485,000 in
2020, representing an increase of 9.05% as compared with the
same period last year; the gross profit was RMB411,638,000,
representing an increase of 7.93% as compared with the same
period last year; the net profit attributable to the shareholders of
the Company was RMB324,860,000, representing an increase
of 8.30% as compared with the same period last year. The
main reason for the increase is set out under “Results Analysis”.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
accordance with CASBE (Continued)

The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities in 2020
was RMB420,187,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
RMB71,915,000. The increase was mainly due to the increase
in operating profit in the current year and the continuous
strengthening of inventory management and the improvement
of inventory operation efficiency.

The Group’s net cash inflow from financing activities was
RMB35,036,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
RMB81,267,000. The main reason for the increase was that the
non-wholly-owned subsidiary Xinhua Health received part of the
investment funds in this year.

The Group’s operating revenue classified by products and by

By F ERFEWA S Emm ~ S geographical location in accordance with CASBE (RMB):
BIERARET) -
2020 20195
Year 2020 Year 2019
HER hex
& BALE Ex KALLE AR
Proportion Proportion  Change as
in operating inoperating ~ compared to
HH ltem Amount revenue Amount revenue last year
e ONCH Operating revenue 6,005,586,643.46 100%  5,606,020,863.30 100% 7.13%
AT By industry
ERHE Chemical bulk drugs 2,565,565,374.15 42.72%  2,387,708,276.49 42.59% 7.45%
27 Preparations 2,605,608,706.18 43.39% 2,592,850,920.07 46.25% 0.49%
BEDERREM Medical intermediates and
other products 834,412,563.13 13.89% 625,461,606.74 11.16% 33.41%
PER By product
FREREERME Raw material pharmaceuticals
such as antipyretic and
analgesic 2,565,565,374.15 42.72% 2,387,708,276.49 42.59% 7.45%
FE 58 BRESZE Preparations such as tablet,
injection, capsule etc. 2,605,608,706.18 43.39% 2,592,850,920.07 46.25% 0.49%
BEAERREM Medical intermediates and
others 834,412,563.13 13.89% 625,461,666.74 11.16% 33.41%
SHE By geographical location
HE(EEE) China (including Hong Kong) ~~ 3,910,198,881.93 65.11%  3773,944,989.83 67.32% 3.61%
e Americas 821,695,334.87 13.68% 745,536,078.08 13.30% 10.22%
BT Europe 892,422,450.57 14.86% 632,661,151.99 11.29% 41.06%
Hff Others 381,269,976.09 6.35% 453,878,643.40 8.09% (16.00%)
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1.

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)
TEXBRERLES R (E) 1. The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)
EERA B RIHE HEAIREE A Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
RHBERRDH(E) accordance with CASBE (Continued)
2020F (N A]EEIRA K EXF The Group’s operating revenue classified by industry, by
JB10% LA _FRITTH « Edn i iE product and by geographical location in accordance with
ERARET) - CASBE in 2020 is as follow (RMB):
SRBAL  ERARM k1
ERBA ERRF iiE LERMER LRSS LERGER
Change in
operating Change
income as Change in in gross
compared to operating costs  profit rate as
the same as comparedto  compared to
Gross profit period the same the same
5B Item Operating revenue ~ Operating costs rate last year period last year period last year
PR By industry
{tERHE Chemical bulk orugs 2,565,565,374.15  1,616,136,056.14 37.01% 7.45% 9.33% (1.08%)
2 Preparations 2,005,608,706.18  1,833,712,060.42 29.62% 0.49% 6.39% (391%)
BETERREM Medical intermediates and other
products 83441256318 741,141,620.21 11.18% 3341% 39.92% (4.13%)
it Total 6,005,586,643.46  4,190,989,726.77 30.22% 7.13% 12.32% (3.22%)
PER By product
BREEESRNE Pharmaceutioals raw material such as
antipyretic and analgesic 2,566,565,374.15  1,616,136,006.14 37.01% 745% 9.33% (1.08%)
FE 8 BEASHE  Preparations such as tablet, injection,
capsule etc. 2,005,608,706.18  1,833,712,060.42 29.62% 0.49% 6.39% (3.91%)
BETHERAM Medical intermediates and others 834,41256318  741,141,620.21 11.18% 33.41% 39.92% (4.13%)
it Total 6,005,586,64346  4,190,989,726.77 30.22% 7.13% 12.32% (3.2%)
HHE By geographical location
HE(RER) China (including Hong Kong) 391019888198 2,602,219,590.78 33.45% 361% 6.43% (1.76%)
i Americas 82169533487 611,475227.64 25.58% 10.2% 22.99% (7.73%)
B Europe 892,422,45057  683,904,699.95 23.37% 41.06% 58.58% (8.46%)
i Others 381,269.976.09  293,390,208.40 23.05% (16.00%) (18.03%) 191%
At Total 6,005,586,64346  4,190,989,726.77 30.22% 7.13% 12.32% (3.22%)
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

(—) EEEEHE S () 1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)
1. IEXFHERHEESKRRGE 1. The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)
EERA B RIHE HEAIREE A Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
RHBERRDH(E) accordance with CASBE (Continued)
2020F F B EmEHTFIER Production, sales and inventory of the main products in 2020
(RMB)

T%9E HH BHfr 2020 20194 [ EE 3
As compared
Industry category  Item Unit 2020 2019 to last year
LRk 52 #4552 Sales volume  HEton 31,089 30,567 1.71%
Chemical bulk drugs ~ “EE = Production lAton 32,881 32,300 1.80%
EE1F ZInventory Eton 4,329 4,655 (7.00%)
il $4& ESales volume & 5 (0°000) 696,758 696,615 0.02%
Tablet A E 2 Production £ F(0°000) 691,672 733,807 (5.74%)
EE7F ZInventory & /7 (0°000) 182,991 188,077 (2.70%)
7 $HE ESales volume £ 37(0°000) 31,716 37,986 (16.51%)
Injection 4 7 2Production & 7(0'000) 29,409 27,450 7.14%
[E57F & Inventory #32(0°000) 9,305 11,612 (19.87%)
Bz $#4E 8 Sales volume  E41(0°000) 68,673 63,629 7.93%
Capsule HE E = Production 1 (0°000) 66,208 67,251 (1.55%)
[E1F £ Inventory EH(0°000) 10,915 18,380 (18.42%)

2020F EH2, 118 L E Rl %
BARNEIEERPBIERSITA -

In 2020, the Company had 2,118 tonnes of chemical bulk drugs
for production of preparations.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

(—) BEEEWF RS K (F)

1.

Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

TEXBRERLES R (E) 1. The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)
EERA B RIHE HEAIREE A Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
RHBERRDH(E) accordance with CASBE (Continued)
20204 15 B & 51 2E Rl 2 ) & The structure of operating cost in accordance with CASBE
E NI AON =) (RMB)
TENERNE Industry and Product Category
2020 2019%
Year 2020 Year 2019
HEE hE%
1R28 RE &8 BELE 8 KALE LU
Proportion Proportion  Change as
in operating inoperating  compared to
Industry category Item Number cost Number cost last year
BETX [RATR} 2,884,722,698.94 68.83%  2,710,370,014.04 72.64% 6.43%
Pharmaceuticals industry Raw material
BEE AR 1,306,267,027.83 31A7%  1,021,015,322.84 27.36% 27.94%
Pharmaceuticals industry Other costs
At Total 4,190,989,726.77 100.00% 3,731,385,336.88 100.00% 12.32%
2020 2019%
Year 2020 Year 2019
HEE hE%
ERSR HH & BELE ki KALE RIELIER
Proportion Proportion  Change as
in operating inoperating ~ compared to
Product category Item Number cost Number cost last year
ERHE RRERASRHNE 1,616,136,056.14 3857%  1,478,202,494.80 30.61% 9.33%
Chemical bulk drugs Raw material pharmaceuticals
such as antipyretic and
analgesic
e RE - $H - BRASHE 1,833,712,050.42 43.75% 1,723,498,691.79 46.19% 6.39%
Preparations Preparations such as tablet,
injection, capsule etc.
BETHERL D EERERREMD 741,141,620.21 17.68% 529,684,150.29 14.20% 39.92%
Medical intermediates Medical intermediates and
and other products others
At Total 4,190,989,726.77 100.00% 3,731,385,336.88 100.00% 12.32%
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EEEWE (B
Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Liquidity and analysis of financial resources and capital
structure under the Listing Rules published by the SEHK

As at 31 December 2020, the current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 112.84% and the quick ratio (quick
assets/current liabilities) of the Group was 65.62% while the
accounts receivable turnover rate (accounts receivable turnover
rate = operating revenue/average trade and bill receivables
X 100%) was 1,742.73% and the inventory turnover rate
(inventory turnover rate = cost of sales/net amount of average
inventories X 100%) was 371.75%.

The current ratio and quick ratio increased from those at the
end of the previous year. The main reason was the reduction
of current liabilities due to the optimization of debt structure in
this year. The Group’s demand for working capital did not show
significant seasonal fluctuation.

The Group’s main sources of funds were loans and operating
profits. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total amount
of outstanding loans was RMB1,691,197,000. As at 31
December 2020, currency funds of the Group amounted to
RMB855,771,000. The Group has a good credit record with
banks and has sufficient credit lines from banks at its disposal.
Therefore, it can meet the liquidity requirements at any time.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s subsidiary Xinhua
(Zibo) Real Estate Co., LTD., has a housing loan deposit of
RMB700,000 and a regulated advanced sales amount of
RMB41,321,000; and the Company’s subsidiary Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Import and Export Co., LTD. has a
letter of credit deposit of RMB200,000. The Company and its
subsidiary Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
charged their respective currency funds of RMB82,697,000
and RMB8,290,000 to the bank for arrangement of
bank acceptance bills. The Company’s fixed asset of
RMB93,306,000 was charged as security for loans. The Group
does not have ownership of the Group’s right-of-use asset in
the amount of RMB4,549,000. Save as disclosed, the Group
did not have other charged assets.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Liquidity and analysis of financial resources and capital
structure under the Listing Rules published by the SEHK
(Continued)

On 20 April 2020, the Company acquired a 27% equity interest
of Wanbo Chemical with a listing price of RMB15,906,834.
The Company’s shareholding of Wanbo Chemical increased
from 73% to 100%, and Wanbo Chemical became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. As at 31 December 2020,
the total assets of Wanbo Chemical was RMB83,042,000,
and the owners’ equity was RMB55,755,000. In 2020, the
operating income of Wanbo Chemical was RMB112,872,000,
representing an increase of 3.70% as compared with that
of last year. In 2020, the net profit of Wanbo Chemical was
RMB8,903,000, representing an increase of 20.75% as
compared with that of last year. The business operations of
Wanbo Chemical was in good condition.

On 17 July 2020, the Company jointly invested and established
“North Health and Medical Big Data Technology Co., Ltd.”
(JbFfEBEREEREBR AR (hereinafter referred
to as “North Health”) with relevant investment parties. The
subscribed registered capital in North Health by the Company
is RMB100,000,000, accounting for 4% of the total capital of
North Health. As at 31 December 2020, the Company invested
RMB30,000,000 in accordance with the provisions of the
articles of association of North Health.

During the Reporting Period, the Company invested and
established Xinhua Health with the assessed assets of
RMB24,201,200 and its own capital of RMB24,798,800
(a total of RMB49,000,000), accounting for 49% of the
investment. As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of
Xinhua Health was RMB244,311,000, and the owners’ equity
was RMB72,556,000. In 2020, the operating income and
the net profit of Xinhua Health were RMB379,872,000 and
RMB9,695,000 respectively. The business operation of Xinhua
Health was in good condition.

Save as the transactions stated above, the Group did not have
any material investment, acquisitions or any disposal of assets
during the Reporting Period.

The breakdown of the performance results of the Group is
listed in the section headed “Analysis of operating results and
financial situation in accordance with CASBE”.
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EEEWE (B
Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Liquidity and analysis of financial resources and capital
structure under the Listing Rules published by the SEHK
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the number of staff employed by the
Group was 6,497, and the total amount of salaries and wages
for 2020 was RMB583,857,000%.

The asset-liability ratio of the Group was 52.19% (asset-liability
ratio = total liabilities/total assets X 100%). The current bank
deposits of the Company primarily serve as working capital for
projects implementation, production and operation.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a gross gearing ratio
(i.e. gross debt divided by adjusted capital) of 52.51%, and
a net gearing ratio (i.e. net debt divided by adjusted capital)
of 25.96%. For this purpose, gross debt is defined as total
borrowings and net debt is defined as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents, and adjusted capital defined as all
components of equity attributable to shareholders other than
designated reserves.

The assets and liabilities of the Group were mainly recorded in
RMB. For the year 2020, the revenue from the Group’s exports
was approximately US$294,131,000, which was subject to
risks associated with exchange rate fluctuations. Therefore, the
Group has taken the following measures to lower the risks of
exchange rates fluctuations: (1) the Group has increased the
price of its export products to reduce the risks of exchange
rates fluctuations; and (2) when entering into material export
contracts, the Group has made advanced arrangements that
the risks associated with exchange rates fluctuations shall
be borne by both parties if the fluctuation exceeds the range
agreed by both parties.

* A breakdown of other items including employee welfare, social
insurance and provident funds is set out under item 23“Payroll
payable” in the “Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement in this Report”.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company

As at the end of 2020:

(1)

The total registered capital of Zibo Xinhua—Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited was US$20,949,000,
and the Company holds 50.1% of its equity interest.
This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing and
selling Ibuprofen bulk pharmaceutical products. As at
31 December 2020, the total assets of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB298,280,000, and the
equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB250,537,000. In 2020, the
operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB217,518,000. The net profit of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB36,517,000. The operating income
and the net profit are both around the same compared
with that of last year.

The total registered capital of Shandong Xinhua Medical
Trade Company Limited was RMB48,499,000, and
the Company holds 100% of its equity interest. This
subsidiary is mainly engaged in the operation of prepared
Chinese herbal medicine decoction, traditional Chinese
medicine, chemical preparations, chemical raw materials,
antibiotics, biochemical medicines, chemical bulk
drugs (except vaccines), anesthetics, anti-psychotic
drugs, pharmaceutical precursor chemicals, protein
assimilation preparations, peptide hormones, medical
toxic drugs (except Chinese herbal medicine), etc. As
at 31 December 2020, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB460,252,000, equity attributable
to shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB4,892,000. In 2020, the operating income of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB2,150,653,000, is
around the same compared with that of last year. The
net profit was RMB321,000, representing a decrease of
54.62% as compared with that of last year. The decrease
was mainly due to the increase of the income tax
expenses.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

©)

The registered capital of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Import and Export Company Limited
was RMB5,000,000, and the Company holds 100% of
its equity interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in
raw materials and intermediates, chemical products sales
and the import and export of goods and technologies.
As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB77,416,000, and
the equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB24,530,000. In 2020, the
operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB226,940,000, representing a sharp rise as compared
with that of last year. The net profit of the subsidiary was
RMB8,038,000, representing an increase of 38.25%
as compared with that of last year. The main reason for
the increase in operating income and net profit was that
the company seized market opportunities and actively
developed sales resources.

The registered capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Shouguang) Company Limited was RMB230,000,000,
and the Company holds 100% of its equity interest.
This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing and
selling chemical products. As at 31 December 2020,
the total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB885,889,000, and the equity attributable to
shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB527,960,000. In 2020, the operating revenue was
RMB777,661,000, representing a decrease of 6.17%
compared with that of the last year,the main reason
was that the price of products had been reduced by the
epidemic and the market in this year. The net profit of the
subsidiary was RMB43,103,000, representing a slight
increase as compared with that of last year.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

©)

The registered capital of Xinhua Health is
RMB100,000,000 and the Company holds 49% of its
equity interest. The main operations of the subsidiary
are internet data services, internet sales (except sales of
goods requiring licenses), internet information services
for pharmaceuticals and internet information services
for medical devices, etc. As at 31 December 2020,
the total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB244,311,000, and the equity attributable to
shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB72,556,000. In 2020, the operating income of
the subsidiary was approximately RMB379,872,000.
The net profit of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB9,695,000.

The registered capital of Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Design Institute Company Limited is RMB6,000,000
and the Company holds 100% of its equity interest.
This subsidiary is mainly engaged in the business of the
design of medical projects. As at 31 December 2020,
the total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB36,073,000, and the equity attributable to
shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB23,565,000. In 2020, the operating income was
approximately RMB40,993,000, representing an
increase of 41.95% as compared with that of last year.
The net profit of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB5,373,000, representing a sharp rise as compared
with that of last year. The increase in operating income
and net profit was mainly attributable to the increase in
the scale of the design services.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

(7)

The registered capital of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Europe) B.V. was EUR769,000 and the
Company holds 65% of its equity interest. This subsidiary
is mainly engaged in the business of bulk pharmaceutical
and intermediates. As at 31 December 2020, the total
assets of the subsidiary was RMB41,728,000, and the
equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary was
RMB27,813,000. In 2020, the operating income of the
subsidiary was RMB197,663,000, representing a slight
rise as compared with that of last year. The net profits
of the subsidiary was RMB9,418,000, representing an
increase of 31.73% as compared with that of last year.
The main reason for the increase in operating income
and net profit was that the company seized market
opportunities, promoted cost reduction and efficiency,
and the gross profit margin of products rose slightly.

The total registered capital of Xinhua (Zibo) Real
Estate Company Limited was RMB20,000,000, and
the Company holds 100% of its equity interest. This
subsidiary is mainly engaged in the business of real
estate development and sales. As at 31 December 2020,
the total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB304,438,000, and the equity attributable to
shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB36,149,000. In 2020, the operating income of
the subsidiary was approximately RMB96,385,000.
The net profit of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB16,114,000. Operating income and net profit
increased significantly compared with that of last year.
The main reason for the increase was that part of the real
estate met the income recognition conditions and the
sales income increased in this year.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

C)

(10)

The total registered capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Gaomi) Company Limited was RMB19,000,000,
and the Company holds 100% of its equity interest.
This subsidiary is mainly engaged in the business
of powders for injection and tablets. As at 31
December 2020, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB123,884,000 and the
equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB3,615,000. In 2020,the
operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB46,256,000,representing an increases of 21.83%
as compared with that of last year. The net profit of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB990,000,representing
an increase of 34.24% as compared with that of last
year. The increase in operating income and net profit was
mainly attributable to the Company steadily promoting
the development strategy of bulk drugs and the growth in
product sales.

The total registered capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(USA) Inc was US$1,500,000, and the Company holds
100% of its equity interest. This subsidiary is mainly
engaged in pharmaceuticals, chemicals, health products
research and development, certification and import
and export business etc. As at 31 December 2020,
the total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB18,872,000, and the equity attributable to
shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB17,471,000. In 2020, the operating income of
the subsidiary was approximately RMB41,556,000,
representing a slight increase as compared with
that of last year. The net profit of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB1,685,000,representing an increase
of 35.33% as compared with that of last year. The main
reason for the increase in operating income and net
profit was that the company seized market opportunities,
promoted cost reduction and efficiency, and the gross
profit margin of products rose slightly.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

(1)

(12)

The Company holds 100% equity interests in Shandong
Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.. The registered
capital of Xincat Pharmaceutical was RMB84,930,000
and its major scope of business includes tablets
(inclusive of cephalosporins, inclusive of penicillins,
inclusive of anti-cancer agents), hard capsules (inclusive
of cephalosporins, inclusive of penicillins), granules
(inclusive of cephalosporins, inclusive of penicilling),
dry suspension (inclusive of cephalosporins). As at
31 December 2020, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB198,660,000 and the equity
attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB132,313,000. In 2020, it achieved
operating revenue of RMB170,783,000, representing a
decrease of 35.46% as compared with that of last year.
The decrease in operating income was mainly due to
the decrease in market demand for drugs due to the
impact of COVID-19. The net profit of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB11,784,000,representing an increase
of 16.21% as compared with that of last year. The
main reason for the increase in net profit was that the
company has actively strengthened the control of costs
and expenses in this year, and costs and expenses have
decreased.

The Company holds 100% equity interests in Shandong
Xinhua Mechanical and Electrical Engineering Co.,
Ltd. with a registered capital of RMB8,000,000. It was
mainly engaged in electrical equipment engineering,
installation and test of chemical equipment and electrical
equipment, as well as sales of mechanical, hardware
and electrical equipments. On 31 December 2020, the
total assets of the subsidiary were RMB15,000,000 and
the equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB10,473,000. In 2020, it achieved
operating revenue of RMB15,911,000, representing an
increase of 6.65% as compared with that of last year.
The increase in operating income is mainly attributable to
the improvement in the company’s equipment installation
and sales revenue. The net profit of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB493,000,representing a slight
decrease as compared with that of last year.

“ECZFER [ URFEREROGERAA

81



82

ExeRE (B

Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

(—) BEEEWF RS K (F)

2. BEERTFAFEERERERGER

(13)

RARARZELRIHEER
1 ZABR A &1100% A% HE 4
% MAREMERARKE
46,624F 0 0 EBEEE
BAEREB P 2T H
R ZRFEIR - MEREM
SIEHMEERBE -
MR2020F 12 A31HZA
REEE BARKS3,042
T FEEEZAAR
¥ 55,755F L ° 20204F
EEREERABARE
112,872F 70 REFRH
EHB.70%  BERFFEA
ARS,903F T » BMEF
B E EF120.75% @ &
ARFMNBEEAHETERRE
EAFEERARTS N
EABRER -

[EZHF2ETRARNEIBHBHE
BIRFEREMEN - 1.9) ¢

Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

(13)

The Company holds 100% equity interest in Shandong
Xinhua Wanbo Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. with a
registered capital of RMB46,624,000. Its principal
businesses include the production and sale of
such chemical raw materials as dimethyl sulfate,
isobutylbenzene, 1,8-diazabicyclo(5,4,0)undec-7-ene and
tetramethylguanidine. As at 31 December 2020, the total
assets of the subsidiary was RMB83,042,000, and the
equity attributable to shareholder of the subsidiary was
RMB55,755,000. In 2020, the operating income and the
net profit of Wanbo Chemical were RMB112,872,000 and
RMB8,903,000 respectively, representing an increase
of 3.70% and an increase of 20.75% respectively as
compared with that of last year. The main reason for
the increase in operating income and net profit was to
actively explore the market and strengthen the control of
costs and expenses in this year.

The “Main financial information of important subsidiaries not
wholly owned” is listed in item 1.(3) under endnote VIII to
Financial Statement in this report.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

3.

Analysis of core competitiveness

The Company has a development history of nearly 80 years.
The Company is a leading production and export base for
antipyretic analgesic drugs in Asia.

Q)

Complete industry base. First, the scale advantage
is outstanding. It has developed seven major
pharmaceutical product series, namely 5A series,
caffeine series, Ibuprofen series, aspirin series, Dopa
series, Barbitone series and pipemidic acid. Second,
the supporting advantages are obvious. The Company
has established an industrial chain ranging from fine
chemical raw materials to bulk pharmaceuticals, and the
main pharmaceutical intermediates are self-supporting,
which is beneficial to cost control and supply guarantee.
The main products of the preparations include pipemidic
acid tablets, Antondini, Nimodipine tablets, etc., resulting
in the obvious advantages of the self-produced bulk
pharmaceuticals. Third, the techno-economic indicators
have leading edge. Traditional products such as aspirin,
Ibuprofen, caffeine, and analgin are widely used in new
technologies, new processes and new equipment,
breakthroughs in key technologies of new products
such as enzymes meloxicam, tramadol, Phenobarbital,
Glimepiride, rabeprazole, carbidopa, enzyme, etc.
were achieved, the industrialization of new hormonal
technology has begun, further strengthening the market
competitiveness of the products. Xinhua Pharmaceutical
is the “Single Champion in the Manufacturing Industry” in
the manufacturing industry in Shandong Province.

Advantages of internationalization. The Company is one
of the top five pharmaceutical export enterprises in the
PRC and has established long-term strategic cooperation
relationships with over 200 well-known multinational
enterprises including Coke, Mitsubishi, GlaxoSmithKline
and Bayer. The Company is one of the first 15 pioneering
enterprises which implement a global strategy and the
top ten enterprises in the PRC in terms of export of
preparations, and has cooperated with Bayer, Perrigo,
Roche, etc. in preparation. The Company has set up
subsidiaries in Europe and the United States and is
accelerating the process of internationalization.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

3. Analysis of core competitiveness (Continued)

©)

Brand and quality advantages. The “Xinhua” label is a
well-known trademark in the PRC, which is recognized
as a major Chinese brand for export sales (£ 251 &
FEEMTEH DA by the Ministry of Commerce of
China. The Company has established a system which is
in line with the cGMP quality assurance and all API, solid
preparations and injections have passed the new GMP
certification. 18 bulk drugs were registered with the FDA
of the US, 11 APIs were awarded the CEP certificate of
the European Union and 4 APIs passed the GMP test of
the European State. The solid preparation production line
passed the MHRA test and the FDA test of the US.

Increasing innovation capability. The Company has
established a relatively complete scientific research and
development system for new medicines, with National
Enterprise Technology Centre, academician workstation,
postdoctoral workstation and Taishan scholar post.
The Company is a national high and new technology
enterprise, a key high and new technology enterprise
under the National Torch Program, Industrial Model
Enterprise (Shandong) of the National Comprehensive
Technology Platform for New Drug R&D, one of the
second batch of pilot enterprises in the innovative sector
and Shandong Technology Innovation Demonstration
Enterprise. The Company focuses on the “Industry-
University-Research” integration, and conducts R&D
cooperation with more than 50 domestic and overseas
scientific research institutions.

The Company has established six research and
development platforms, including new drug delivery
systems, small molecule innovation and transformation,
antibody and antibody coupling, precision medical,
translational medicine, nutritional supplements, as well
as a number of bases for small scale and medium
scale testing for research and there are more than 100
products of the Company under development.

Fully functional production park. The Company has gradually
developed five functionally defined parks, namely, the
headquarters (preparation), No. 1 factory (bulk drugs), No. 2
factory (bulk drugs), Shouguang Park (chemical) and Gaomi
Park (medicinal preparation). Unless otherwise specified,
the figures in the Management Discussion and Analysis are
rounded to the nearest thousandth.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Working Report of the Board

During this year, the Board of Directors passed resolutions on
eleven occasions:

M

On 20 March 2020, the tenth meeting 2020 of the Ninth Board
was convened at the Company’s registered office, and the
relevant information was published in Securities Times, Juchao
website, HKExnews and on the Company’s website on 23
March 2020.

On 30 March 2020, the Company convened the first
extraordinary meeting 2020 of the Ninth Board by written
resolution, and the relevant information was published in
Securities Times, Juchao website, HKExnews and on the
Company’s website on 31 March 2020.

On 21 April 2020, the eleventh meeting of the Ninth Board was
convened at the Company’s registered office, and the relevant
information was published in Securities Times, Juchao website,
HKExnews and on the Company’s website on 22 April 2020.

On 23 June 2020, the Company convened the second
extraordinary meeting 2020 of the Ninth Board by written
resolution, and the relevant information was published in
Securities Times, Juchao website, HKExnews and on the
Company’s website on 24 June 2020.

On 1 July 2020, the Company convened the third extraordinary
meeting 2020 of the Ninth Board by written resolution, and the
relevant information was published in Securities Times, Juchao
website, HKExnews and on the Company’s website on 2 July
2020.

On 21 August 2020, the twelfth meeting 2020 of the Ninth
Board was convened at the Company’s registered office, and
the relevant information was published in Securities Times,
Juchao website, HKExnews and on the Company’s website on
24 August 2020.
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(Z) ESEITEHRE ) 2. Working Report of the Board (Continued)
1. EFEER  FLFESEHRT 1.  During this year, the Board of Directors passed resolutions on
B+—XRE&® - (1) eleven occasions: (Continued)
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Board was convened at the Company’s registered office, and
the relevant information was published in Securities Times,
Juchao website, HKExnews and on the Company’s website on
23 December 2020.

On 28 December 2020, the Company convened the first
extraordinary meeting 2020 of the Tenth Board by written
resolution, and the relevant information was published in
Securities Times, Juchao website, HKExnews and on the
Company’s website on 29 December 2020.

The Board’s of the resolutions passed at general meetings

The annual general meeting 2019 convened on 29 June 2020
considered and approved the Special Resolution on 2019 Profit
Distribution Plan, distributing a final dividend for the year 2019 to all
shareholders at RMBO0.12 per share (tax inclusive) on 621,859,447
Shares. There were no distribution of bonus shares and no share
capital increase converted from reserves. The above bonus and
dividend distribution was completed in early August 2020.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others
Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers

The biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Officers are set out in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors,
Senior Officers and Staff” in this report.

Public Float

The Company has complied with the requirement in respect of the
public float during this reporting period and up to the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and
Supervisors are set out in item (IV) 1. under endnote Xl to the financial
statements in this report.

Highest Paid Individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
2020 were three Directors and two middle-level members of the
management. For details please see item (IV) 2. under endnote X| to
the Financial Statements of this report.

Benefits acquired by Directors and Supervisors by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of Group companies

At no time during the reporting period has the Company, its
holding company or its fellow subsidiaries become a party to any
arrangements to enable any of the Directors, the Supervisors, or
their spouses or children under 18 years of age to take advantage by
acquiring shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

None of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and the Supervisors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Company, its holding company, its controlling
shareholder and subsidiaries of the controlling company has entered
into any contracts in relation to the Company’s business in which any
Directors or Supervisors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan

On 28 December 2018, the 2018 first extraordinary general meeting,
the 2018 second class meeting of the shareholders of A shares and
the 2018 second class meeting of the shareholders of H shares were
held during which the Incentive Plan was considered and approved.
On the same day, the ninth session of the Board and the 2018 eighth
extraordinary meeting of the Company approved the granting of
16.25 million share options to 185 eligible grantees.

On 22 October 2020, the Board has resolved to propose to amend
the Incentive Plan adopted on 28 December 2018 by amending the
relevant terms regarding “occurrences in relation to the Participants”
in order to comply with the requirements under “Notice on Issues
concerning Regulating the Implementation of the Equity Incentive
System by the State-Controlled Listed Companies” issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22 October
2020 and circular dated 2 December 2020.

As at December 28, 2020, one of the grantees of the Company’s
Incentive Plan left due to personal reasons. According to the
provisions of the Incentive Plan, such person is no longer an eligible
grantee, and the total of 50,000 share options granted but not yet
exercised were cancelled. Accordingly, in January 2021, the total
number of grantees under the Incentive Plan has been adjusted from
185 to 184, the number of options granted has been adjusted from
16,250,000 to 16,200,000, and 50,000 share options have been
cancelled.

A brief summary of the terms of the Incentive Plan is set out below:
(1)  Purpose

The Incentive Plan is intended to further provide and enhance
the mechanisms of the Company for providing long-term
incentives to eligible participants (including Directors, senior and
mid-level management members and core staff members of the
Company), with the view to retain talent and provide them with
incentives for greater involvement in the long-term development
and prospects of the Company, which is effectively aligned with
the interests of shareholders of the Company.
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3. Others (Continued)

2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan (Continued)

2

3

The participants

Participants of the Incentive Plan include Directors, members of
senior management and mid-level management and core staff
members of the Company.

Any eligible participants who is a Director or senior management
member must have been appointed by shareholders of
the Company or the Board. An eligible participant must be
employed or engaged by the Company by a binding contract
at the time of grant of share options or at the time when his or
her performance is being evaluated for considering his or her
entitlement to grant of share options of the Company.

Eligible participants of the Incentive Plan do not include any
independent Directors, the Supervisors, any shareholder or
actual controller of the Company who individually, or together
with their respective spouses, parents and/or children, holds
more than 5% in the issued share capital of the Company.

Further, during the validity period of the Incentive Plan,
participants shall not also be participants of an equity incentive
scheme of another company whose securities are listed on
a stock exchange, and persons who are participants of such
other incentive schemes during the life of such schemes shall
not be participants of the Incentive Plan.

Maximum number of shares

The underlying shares of the Incentive Plan shall be ordinary A
shares issued to eligible participants pursuant to the terms and
provisions of the Incentive Plan.

The total number of the A shares which may be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Incentive Plan
is 16,250,000 A shares (representing approximately 2.61% of
the total number of issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2018). This does not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 28
December 2018, being the date of the shareholders’ meeting
which approved the Incentive Plan.

Upon satisfaction of terms and conditions of the exercise of the
share options, each share option of the Company shall provide
its holder with the right to purchase one A share at the exercise
price (being RMB5.98 per A share) during the period when the
Incentive Plan is in effect.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, 16,250,000 share
options had been granted, but none of such share options has
been exercised. As such, the total number of A shares available
for issue under the Incentive Plan remains at 16,250,000 A
shares (representing approximately 2.59% of the total number
of issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report).
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2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan (Continued)

4)

5)

(6)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of A shares issued and which may fall to
be issued to a participant (pursuant to the exercise of share
options under the Incentive Plan and any other share option
incentive plans of the Company) must not exceed 1% of the
total issued share capital of the Company.

Vesting period

Share options shall have vesting periods of 24 months, 36
months and 48 months from the date of grant respectively.

Exercise period of share options under the Incentive Plan

Share options under the Incentive Plan are exercisable in three
tranches from expiry of 24 months from the date of the grant.
Details of the exercise periods are set out below:

BITESFRELLE
Proportion of the
share options that
may be exercised

B —ETTHEH

First exercise period

B {ETTHEHS

Second exercise period

E={ATTHEH

Third exercise period

BT HR24E A HER S A RERT B L3618 A An&E
RHBEHIE

Commencing from the first trading day after the expiry of the 24th
month from the date of grant, and ending on the last trading
day of the 36th month from the date of grant

BT BE36EA RN HER S B RERT B 4818 A AB&E
RHHEEHIE

Commencing from the first trading day after the expiry of the 36th
month from the date of grant, and ending on the last trading
day of the 48th month from the date of grant

BT HR481E A2 H1ER 5 A RER T B 6018 A AR &KE
RHHEEHIE

Commencing from the first trading day after the expiry of the 48th
month period from the date of grant, and ending on the last

trading day of the 60th month period from the date of grant33%

34%

33%

33%

RXFIENR S B AFRERY
ETRAE FERE o BIRET
TTHEERBENARREITRDITED
R R EE - A NERT
—ITHEHATTHE -

HZE2020%12 A28 » AR EHE
FHEHEZREHENE —EAS
FHEER -

“Trading days” have the meaning ascribed thereto under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Share options which are granted and
exercisable but which are not exercised within the relevant
exercise periods shall lapse and may no longer be exercisable
in subsequent exercise periods, or at all.

As at 28 December 2020, the first vesting period for the
Company to grant share options to the grantees expired.
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3. Others (Continued)

2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan (Continued)

(7)

©

)

Conditions of grant and exercise of the shares options

The grant and exercise of the share options are subject
to various conditions. These include, without limitation, no
occurrence of certain events (such as violation of laws and
regulations by the Company), the ascertaining of certain
performance targets (including targets for operating revenue
and average return on net assets during the exercise periods)
by the Company, and that the relevant eligible participants
are in good standing and not restricted by applicable law to
participate in the Incentive Plan. Further details are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 12 December 2018.

Amount payable on acceptance and period within which
payment must be made

The exercise price in respect of the share options under the
Incentive Plan, being RMB5.98 per A share, is payable upon
exercise of share options.

Since the 2018 and 2019 annual profit distribution plan of the
Company has been implemented and based on the provisions
of the Incentive Plan and the authorisation of the 2018 first
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders, the second A
share class meeting of shareholders in 2018 and the second
H share class meeting of shareholders in 2018, the Board
shall adjust the exercise price under the Incentive Plan. The
exercise price of the Company’s share options was adjusted
from RMB5.98 per share option to RMB5.76 per share option.
For details, please refer to the Company’s overseas regulatory
announcement dated 28 December 2020.

Basis for determining exercise price

Subject to Note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules, the
exercise price of a share option shall be at least the higher of (a)
the closing price of the H Shares as stated in daily quotations
sheet (with the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) on the business day on which the share options are
granted; and (b) the average closing price of the H Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of share options.

“ECZFER [ URFEREROGERAA

91



92

ExeRE (B

Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

(Z) HAbtH (48)
2018 AR B S MM 81 (40)

©)

(10)

T8RS RE T % (18)

FELLER b TR TEAR
REESRE b ER T3 B
BEE

0] Z4%2018%F11 AGEHKRE
BT RSB (RS
BDAIZEXSH  ARE
FERFINR S EE(BEA
LHATRERZANSARK
ERXRGBRBEREEZENEAA
RERSHEARNEAR
R5EE)  BERARA
R¥5.987T :

i) EBEEALEHN20BRS
H  ARERZFHIZ 5
& - ERARAKRKES.64
i

iy BEALEHARERXSAH -
ARBRFERRZFTRI UL TI(E - BD
TRRAR AR5.977C

vy ALHASEXSAE @ AR
AR IE - BlE
AR AR¥5.8170 « &

V) 2017FEREBERENFTH
BEFE  MARKES3.99

JC °

FEAERE - BB E T ZRE
HRETEEEERABRARY
5.987T °

BB BIFHR

HEEEMNERRER T AL
i REIGOEAREEMBERE
TR TR R HARF
ERHE) -

E—THBERARRIBHA
201812128 Z B °

3.

Others (Continued)

2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan (Continued)

©)

(10)

Basis for determining exercise price (Continued)

On such basis, the exercise price shall not be less than the
nominal value of the shares, and shall be the higher of:

(i) the average of the trading prices of the A shares (being
the total daily trading turnover on the last trading day
immediately preceding the date of announcement
of the Incentive Plan (namely 6 November 2018 (the
“Announcement Day”)) divided by the total daily trading
volume on the last trading day immediately preceding
the Announcement Day) quoted on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange on the last trading day immediately preceding
the Announcement Day, being RMB5.98 per A share;

(ii) the average of the trading prices of the A shares quoted
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the last 20 trading
days immediately preceding the Announcement Day,
being RMB5.64 per A share;

(i) the closing price of the A Shares quoted on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange on the last trading day immediately
preceding the Announcement Day, being RMB5.97 per A
share;

(iv)  the average of the closing prices of the A Shares quoted
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the last 30 trading
day immediately preceding the Announcement Day,
being RMB5.81 per A Share; and

(v)  the net asset value per share attributable to shareholders
for year 2017, being RMB3.99.

On the basis of the above, the exercise price of the share
options pursuant to the Incentive Plan was determined to be
RMB5.98 per A share.

Validity period of the Incentive Plan

The validity period of the Incentive Plan commences from the
date of grant of share options and shall last for a period of 60
months or until the date on which all the share options have
been exercised or lapsed, whichever earlier.

Further detailed terms of the Incentive Plan are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 12 December 2018.
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MmN A IS T RO B R R 20205 Y Share options granted under the Incentive Plan and
] movements during the year 2020
2020 BT B T RO R AR R 1B I Particulars and movements of share options under the Incentive Plan
£ 0N during the year 2020 were as follows:
BRAERE
Number of share options
#2020 720205
BHRER 1818 720205EE #2020 E 12A31H
RIETTEE ARITHE & eS| ARITHE
Exercise Outstanding Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
EBA RHAM price per asat  duringthe  during the as at
Grantees Date of grant share option 01.01.2020 Year 2020 Year 2020 31.12.2020
EER
Chairman
SRR 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 300,000 300,000
Zhang Daiming
BE
Directors
E1aH 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 270,000 270,000
Ren Fulong
MY 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 270,000 270,000
Du Deping
1751 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Xu Lie
BRE 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
He Tongaing
EREEAS
Senior Officers
T 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Wang Xiaolong
MEE 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Du Deqing
HEG 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Dou Xuejie
&= 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Hou Ning
g 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Zheng Zhonghui
BRE 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 160,000 160,000
Wei Changsheng
RxE 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 160,000 160,000
Xu Wenhui
BRXK 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 160,000 160,000
Cao Changaiu
FEBEEABRZOERAR
(HeH 2B EREZEAN) 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 13,340,000 13,340,000
Mid-level management and core staff
members (172 grantees in total)
16,250,000 16,250,000
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3. Others (Continued)

Subsequent to the Reporting Period, the Company issued ordinary
A shares in the Company to the eligible grantees in January 2021.
During the first exercise period of share options, there were 184
eligible grantees in total and the number of exercised share options
amounted to 5,508,000, with an adjusted exercise price of RMB5.76

AR : per share option. The relevant information is as follows:
E—EfTHEY
AITIEEBRER
HEsE
Number of FIERRITR
bigid:0)i share options BEpEwE
Hif{E®E exercisable during  Total number of
iR &EBA 14 Number of share the first exercise outstanding share
No. Grantees Position options granted period options
1. RACER BEER
Zhang Daiming Chairman 300,000 102,000 198,000
2. SR Y JRIENITESE
Ren Fulong Former Non-executive
Director 270,000 91,800 178,200
3. BT WITEF - 258
Du Deping Executive Director &
General Manager 270,000 91,800 178,200
4, =5 FRMTES
Xu Lie Non-executive Director 220,000 74,800 145,200
5. v Bl AR
Wang Xiaolong Deputy General Manager 220,000 74,800 145,200
8. HIEF BlgEse
Du Deqing Deputy General Manager 220,000 74,800 145,200
7. BRE HITES - BRI
He Tongqging Executive Director
& Deputy General
Manager 220,000 74,800 145,200
8. EEME IR 4BAETE
Dou Xuejie Former Deputy General
Manager 220,000 74,800 145,200
9. RrE MHBEEA
Hou Ning Financial Controller 220,000 74,800 145,200
10.  EBRIE BllEasie
Zheng Zhonghui Deputy General Manager 220,000 74,800 145,200
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(=) HEfthiFR (1) 3. Others (Continued)
E—ETRE
AI{THEAIBE R
HEsE
Number of FIERRITR
ERaRRE share options BEREwE
HI{EBE exercisable during Total number of
iR REBA | 1ivd Number of share  the first exercise outstanding share
No. Grantees Position options granted period options
1. BR4E Bliacig
Wei Changsheng Deputy General Manager 160,000 54,400 105,600
12, HXE Bliazes?
Xu Wenhui Deputy General Manager 160,000 54,400 105,600
13.  ®BEX EEgwE
Cao Changgiu Secretary to the Board 160,000 54,400 105,600
i\
Subtotal 2,860,000 972,400 1,887,600
HMAR(I71A)
Other staff members (171 grantees) 13,340,000 4,535,600 8,804,400
ait(Et184A)
Total (184 grantees) 16,200,000 5,508,000 10,692,000
MARFERAE - NABRESE 24 At the date of this annual report, the Company had 10,692,000 share
10,692,00017 H AT HIAXZ HARE - 47 options outstanding under the Incentive Plan, which represented
ERANKERAEBARNATDETRMOD approximately 1.70% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the date
1.70% - of this annual report.
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[ 7R -

MBME

REDESTENRRENTEENBE
hEEFFENEE  BEMAGHN
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LFEZFR SRR

BREFESTERGRAEEEZ=2018
FI2ABLFEERNEBR L™
NEIR R AFE R A ARK250,833F
TT  IRBRARAR2018EEEEHAFEHNE
10%IREVAE B N ES AREE20,799
FoT s BEEEEEI621,859,447 AE
o MEBRRIKE018FEREKEE
AR AREE0. 10T (5 F) ©

REFESHERGRASEEHZ=2019
FI2ATBALFEERNEBER LT
NAIREAFEFE A AR®299,066T
TC 0 WBRARNAR2019F B A FHE
10%IRBVEATE BB ATES ARE22,840
Fir EE9EE 621,859,447 K
2 M EREIKRE2019F KR EF
AR A2TT(ER) ©

Accounts

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
financial position of the Group and the Company as at 31 December
2020 prepared in accordance with CASBE are set out in the financial
statements in this report.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group prepared
in accordance with CASBE for the last five financial years is set out in
section headed “Summary of Financial and Operating Results”.

Cash dividends of the Company in the past three years

According to the CASBE, the Group recorded the net profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company of RMB250,833,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018. 10% of the net profit of
the Company achieved in 2018 was transferred to the statutory
surplus reserves amounting to approximately RMB20,799,000. The
Board proposed to distribute a final dividend for the year 2018 to all
shareholders at RMBO0.10 per share (tax inclusive) on 621,859,447
shares.

According to the CASBE, the Group recorded the net profit
attributable to shareholders of Company of RMB299,966,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019. 10% of the net profit of the Company
achieved in 2019 was transferred to the statutory surplus reserves
amounting to approximately RMB22,840,000. The Board proposed
to distribute a final dividend for the year 2019 to all shareholders at
RMBO0.12 per share (tax inclusive) on 621,859,447 shares.
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Others (Continued)

Cash dividends of the Company in the past three years
(Continued)

According to the CASBE, the Group recorded the net profit
attributable to shareholders of Company of RMB324,860,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020. 10% of the net profit of the Company
achieved in 2020 was transferred to the statutory surplus reserves
amounting to approximately RMB23,586,000. The Board proposed
to distribute a final dividend for the year 2020 to all shareholders
at RMBO0.15 per share (tax inclusive) on 627,367,447 shares. The
proposed distribution of dividends and conversion of capital reserve
to share capital are subject to consideration and approval at the
annual general meeting.

#fy  ARKET

Unit: RMB

PHEESH L& ftEmEP

HwERPBER BERLTLTE

LHATIRRE B REYBRHIE

Dantie@(ER) PR (RER) B9ELEE (%)

Net profit

attributable to % of net profit

the shareholders attributable to

of the Company the shareholders

Cash dividend in consolidated of the Company

amounts  statements(after in consolidated

SHLEE Year (including tax) adjustment) statements

2020%F 2020 94,105,117.05 324,859,557.55 28.97

20194F 2019 74,623,133.64 299,966,265.71 24.88

20184 2018 62,185,944.70 255,314,454.86 24.36
2020 EF BB TAE 2020 plan for profit distribution and conversion of capital

EHDL627,367,447 BEE MR ER
HIREE2020F K HR E R ARKE0.15
TT(ER) - WEBRENREEFBEF
VN e

FERBREBEMERSHERA

REBRARRAFEWEDON 2 EE
BN BHMARMEEN - 39k T
50

reserve into share capital

The Board proposes to distribute a final dividend for the year 2020
to all shareholders at RMBO0.15 per share (tax inclusive), based on
the total issued shares of the Company of 627,367,447 shares. The
proposed distribution of dividends and conversion of capital reserve
to share capital are subject to review and approval at the annual
general meeting.

Principal Activities and Operations by Geographical Area
The turnover of the Group and the Company in various geographical

areas is set out in item 39 under endnote VI and item 5 under endnote
XVII to the Financial Statements in this report.
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Others (Continued)

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on
Shareholders

Changes in share capital and shareholders are set out in the section
headed “Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on
Shareholders” in this Report.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year 2020 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Shareholder’s Equity in the Financial Statements in this report.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movement in the fixed assets of the Group and the
Company during 2020 are set out in item 11. under Note VI to the
Financial Statements in this report.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2020 are set out in items 19, 26, 28
and 30 under endnote VI to the Financial Statements in this report.

Capitalised Interest

During the year, there was RMB6,304,000 in respect of loans
borrowed by the Group for financing its projects-in-progress.

Staff Quarters

The Group did not sell any staff quarters to its staff during the year
ended 31 December 2020 but has been paying a contribution of 10%
of the basic wages of the Group’s staff to the housing provident fund
managed by the Shandong Province Zibo Municipal Finance Bureau
in accordance with the relevant regulations implemented by the PRC
government since 1 January 1998. For the year ended 31 December
2020, contributions to the housing provident fund made by the Group
in this respect amounted to approximately RMB43,052,000.
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Others (Continued)
Staff Basic Medical Insurance

Pursuant to the “Plan for Implementation of Basic Medical Insurance
System for Urban Employees” promulgated by the Shandong
Provincial Government and the “Schedule for Establishment of
Medical Insurance System for Urban Employees” implemented by
Zibo Municipal Government, the Company implemented the Basic
Medical Insurance System for Employees in December 2004. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the total contribution of the Group to
the staff medical insurance was approximately RMB30,867,000.

Preferential Tax Treatment

In 2008 the Company and XinCat Pharmaceutical were recognised as
the first batch of hi-tech enterprises in Shandong Province. According
to the Measures for the Administration of Recognition of Hi-tech
Enterprises, the certificate of national high and new technology
enterprises would be valid for three years. The qualifications will be
reassessed three years later.

According to the formal notice (Lu Ke (2021) No. 10) issued by the
Department of Science and Technology of Shandong Province,
Shandong Province Finance Bureau, State Administration of Taxation
Shandong Taxation Bureau, the Company and XinCat Pharmaceutical
are recognised as new and high technology enterprises during the
year, and the certificate numbers are respectively GR202037002800
and GR202037003952, and the recognition would be valid for three
years. According to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax, the Company and XinCat Pharmaceutical
could enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15% with regard to their
enterprise income tax during the year.

Designated Deposits
For the year ended 31 December 2020 the Group had neither placed
any deposits with any non-banking financial institutions, nor had
it placed any designated deposits. The Group does not have any
overdue time deposits.

Important Issues

Important issues of the Company for the year 2020 are set out in the
section headed “Important Issues” in this report.
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3. Others (Continued)
Top Five Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the percentages of purchases
and sales attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and five
largest customers were 19.74% and 10.31% of the Group’s total
purchases and total sales respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the percentages of purchases
and sales attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and largest
customer were 8.99% and 3.70% of the Group’s total purchases and
total sales respectively.

LRE|EEHEREA Major Suppliers of the Company
RIS LEERRAELA
ek Proportion to
serial Annual Total
number HEFHEE Name of suppliers Purchase Amount Purchase
AEET) (%)
(RMB)
1 WRERBHMEIRNBRAT Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Chemical 127,344,834.23 8.99
2 Vinati Organics Limited Vinati Organics Limited 61,409,571.12 4.34
3 MILHENRBE L TIERAR Hebei Chengxin Jiutian Pharmaceutical Chemical
Co., Ltd. 38,230,426.58 2.70
4 BTRL-BHXBEREMLF Yangzi Petrochemical - BASF Co. Ltd 28,644,972.88 2.02
5 LR B R AR (D A B Shandong Hongrui Pharmaceutical Technology
Co. Ltd. 23,967,699.12 1.69
CH Total 279,597,503.93 19.74
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

AXFRHHERRAKXER (&) Top Five Suppliers and Customers (Continued)
REEEHEFFEA Major Customers of the Company
5 HEEHERELA
serial HEH Proportion to
number EFR&HE Name of customers Sales Amount  Annual Total Sales
(AR¥T) (%)
(FMB)
1 R NG| Perrigo Company Medical Co., Ltd. 222,431,547.22 3.70
2 F.Hoffmann-La Roche AG F.Hoffmann-La Roche AG 112,117,015.73 1.87
3 MEREBEBRART Zibo Zhongsheng Medical Co., Ltd. 104,000,691.70 1.73
4 ErRNBEYTER AT Jinan Tongke Pharmaceutical Logistics
Co., Ltd 96,567,505.78 1.61
5 Galpharm International Limited Galpharm International Limited 83,863,795.07 1.40
A&t Total 618,980,555.50 10.31
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As far as the Directors are aware, save as Perrigo Company holding
49.9% equity interests in Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical
Company Limited*, a subsidiary of the Company, which constitutes
related party relationships with the Company; and Shandong Hualu
Hengsheng Chemical Industry Company Limited is a subsidiary of
HHC, the controlling shareholder of the Company, which constitutes
related party relationships with the Company, none of the directors
and their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), or shareholders
who own more than 5% of the share capital of the Company have
an interest in any of the above customers or suppliers of the Group
during the year.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2020 neither the Company

nor its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

“ECZFER [ URFEREROGERAA

101



102

ExeRE (B

Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

(Z) AR (&)

BB

AR RH) A B B B TR AR 5

ATBGEHE

AEELXNBEREEHTEEERENR
RBES - WIRREHBUTRR TN
RBE - AEEEATAHEEEZRENK
RBESHANRRBAEETIES
TENBEBRENI16% o &K F&
T AR EMG AR IKE THERIK
BRIZ L - i mtEEEMRKER
ESBHHREEFNIBERRAIEASR
X o REE2020F12A31HIEZFE
A REBEBMOESEEZE LRIRER
B A ANREEA9 787 T T °

ARERNBARCEEER

RRREEGN2010FEAETZDAB T
(WBEEABAELERGE)  —&
ARBASAIT - REERTNFHEERE
e

HEREER

DR MREREE  ERE g HERER
fEap - ERBAERD JARRA - ERE
EFTHSNETHEEME  RERE
FEEA BT P HEFSNR
HRENE AR BRRERERR
24E  RBR2EMEREEE -

EERERBE TIER - RRIBILEBEERE
BETEE  MAEERILRARELE
¥ - FIRBIRETR - RARER RS
PERE BB TISO14001IREE
BREREZ  EETILREEREEA
HEEE RAILREGREDRSBLE
IREIF AL o

Others (Continued)
Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Pension Scheme Arrangements

The Group participates in the State Social Retirement and Pension
Insurance Scheme (the “Scheme”) and pays the insurance premium
in accordance with the particular regulation issued by the local
municipal government whereby it is required to make an annual
contribution of 16% of the total salaries and bonuses paid to staff.
In turn, the local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retirees of the
Group. Premiums paid to the Scheme are listed in the profit and loss
statement as expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
total contribution of the Group to the Scheme was approximately
RMB49,787,000.

Insiders Registration and Management on Insider Information

In 2010, the Board of the Company considered and approved the
Insiders Registration and Management System on Insider Information
(REEBENBEAERLEESIE), which has since been rigorously
implemented. No cases of non-compliance was reported during the
year.

Social responsibility

Taking “protecting health and benefiting community” as its corporate
missions, the Company has made great efforts in fulfilling its social
responsibility in aspects such as saving lives, curing the sick and
product quality, protecting legitimate rights and interests of its
shareholders and creditors, employees, customers, suppliers and
other stakeholders, attaching great importance to environmental
protection and safety production, and actively participating in social
welfare undertakings.

In respect of energy saving and emission reduction, the Company
was honored the advanced enterprise in energy saving in Shandong
Province twice for reasons of decreasing energy consumption. As to
environmental protection, the Company was the first pharmaceutical
enterprise in China to pass the ISO14001 environmental management
system certification audit, and acquired Class A clean production
certificate in Shandong Province, making it a qualified entity in terms
of standardized management of hazardous waste in Shandong
Province.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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EEEWE (B
Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)
Social responsibility (Continued)

In accordance with trading principles of honesty and trustworthiness,
reciprocity and mutual benefit and legal and regulatory compliance,
the Company has maintained good relationships of cooperation with
suppliers and distributors to provide consumers with quality products
and services. While endeavoring to achieve sustainable development,
the Company has strengthened strategic partnerships with customers
through holding meetings with suppliers and customer seminars, thus
making mutual cooperation more efficient and harmonious and closer.

The Company strictly implemented the PRC Law on Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution ( {FZE A R HFE A &5 240554
/%)), the PRC Law on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution (
(REEAR MBS EA7A)), the PRC Law on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Noise ( {/F# A R FEFBIIRIFEE &5 40556
%)), the PRC Law on Cleaner Production ( & A R MBI E 4
EEJE)), the Integrated Emission Standards for Air Pollutants ( CX&5
Fe4r A BEUIZHEY), the National Catalog of Hazardous Wastes ( €&
RIEBEEY)E8%)) and other laws and regulations.

The Company values the growth and development of its employees
and has put more efforts in education and training for various talents.
As such, the Company is named as the talent training base for the
pharmaceutical industry in Shandong Province, one of the top 100
Chinese enterprises in education and China’s corporate training
demonstration base. The Company’s golden blue-collar training base
passed the review of the Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau of Shandong Province and was approved as the first prime
workstation for technicians of Zibo City.

In such major disasters or accidents of the nation as the “SARS”,
Wenchuan earthquake, “April 28th” Jiaoji Railway crash, Yushu
earthquake and especially Novel coronavirus pneumonia, the
Company had been prompt to make RMB5 million worth of medicinal
donations, thus putting into practice its corporate social responsibility
and commitment.

In future development process, the Company will, as always, be a

law-abiding operator, contribute strongly to the community, and play
an active role in the sustainable development of society.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

(=) HEfthiFR (1) 3. Others (Continued)
EITHMALE R EMER Performance of other social responsibilities
RARF - ERFARDEEFE TS The Company, its holding subsidiary, Xinhua-Perrigo, Xinhua
BEBRETA 7 MERE(ER)E Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) and Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical
RAF - IWRFEZBCTERARE Co., Ltd. are on the List of Key Pollutant-discharging Units announced
RSB REBPIAMRER S EA - by the Ministry of Environmental Protection.
AREFLT TERRIRBATIN BiTRARS it}
2 HER #ink HEOHE HENAHER HHRE HinmE faiE] HENHHeE Bt
Implemented
Names of Key Number of Standards for Approved Total
Name of Company  Pollutants and Special ~ Discharge Discharge Distribution of Discharge Discharge of Total Amount of Amount of Excessive
or Subsidiary Types of Pollutants Mode Outlets Discharge Outlets Concentration Pollutants Discharge Discharge Discharge

URFERERDE Bk (BREE &  BKEEER 2 —AREHKDEE AR (EREE B (BRER) -OW:(L2REE -AF (EREE &
BA7 i BARES ﬁ%ém BRIM0ER/  REMS0ER/  BEBIMMG0E/  83/F £R
L TH18% - foEREEMR A ERORSR FOERESM masE/E-
0%/ F 4685/ F - 300/ -
Shandong Xinhua ~~ Wastewater: chemical  Continuous Two main Main wastewater outlet  No. 1factory: COD  Wastewater: COD No. 1factory: total ~ No. 1factory: 835 None
Pharmaceutical oxygen demand, wastewater wastewater of No. 1factory: No. ~ Concentrationless ~ concentration less amount of COD less  tons/ year of
Company Limited ~ ammonia nitrogen. discharge outlet 13, Huagong Road, than 400 mg/L; than 500 mg/L; than 450 tons/year; ~ COD; 75.15 tons/
Hi-tech Industry Ammonia nitrogen ammonia nitrogen total amount of year of ammonia
Development Zone, concentration less concentration less ammonia Nitrogen nitrogen.
Zibo City. than 30 mg/L. than 45 mg/L. less than 30 tons/
year.
LRFERERDE Bk (BFEE & BKEEER 2 “HRERKD KR AR tEREE  HR:{BFEE &
B2 fe HERERD tl[a BRSO,/ M5/ E F
ARE200% - FIEAGENR  A8051E/Fe
300/ -
Shandong Xinhua ~~ Wastewater: chemical  Continuous Two main Main wastewater outlet No‘Zfactory‘ COD Wastewater: COD No. 2 factory: total ~ No. 2 factory: 994.5  None
Pharmaceutical oxygen demand, wastewater wastewater of No. 2 factory: No.  concentration concentration less amount of COD less  tons/ year of
Company Limited ~ ammonia nitrogen. discharge outlet 229, Changguodong ~ less than 400mg/ ~ than 500 mg/L; than 300 tons/year; ~ COD; 89.51 tons/
Road, East Chemical  L;ammonia nitrogen  ammonia nitrogen total amount of year of ammonia
Industrial Zone, concentration less concentration less ammonia nitrogen nitrogen.
Zhangdian District, than 30mg/L. than 45 mg/L. less than 30 tons/
Zibo City. year.

2K 29K A FTREE  BRCFTRELR  -ARETRELSE AR BRUMER &

BEINMOZR/  BMRG0ER/L BR0E/Fo 95254/% -

WRFESERNE BR:BEMARNGL  BRESAN
K2R FERAE  Z8

i - A5l B 5 Thk e B Elingent  EAM3GE/
e it « o £o
Shandong Xinhua ~ Exhaust gas: volatile Exhaust gas Therearemore  No. 1 factory, No. 2 No. 1factory: NMHG ~ Exhaust gas: NMHC ~ No. 1factory: totl -~ No. 1 factory: 52.54  None
Pharmaceutical organic compound emission at Exhaust factory concentration less concentration less amount of NMHC tons/ year of VOC.
Company Limited ~ (VOC) (calculated interval outlets. than 40 mg/m?. than 60 mg/m*. concentration less 1.35 tons/year of
according to Please refer than 50 tons/year. particulate matter.
Non-methane to appendix of total amount of
hydrocarbons, the emission particulate matter
“MHC”), sulfur dioxide, permit. concentration less
nitrogen oxide, than 1 tons.
particulate matter.
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3. Others (Continued)

EITH M SR Ea1ER (8] Performance of other social responsibilities (Continued)
AREFLR IEARIRBRTRN BiTHARY it ]
1] &R A HEnBE #HOAHRER HHRE #ymE HunE HENHHER  HRER
Implemented
Names of Key Number of Standards for Approved Total
Name of Company  Pollutants and Special  Discharge Discharge Distribution of Discharge Discharge of Total Amount of Amount of Excessive
or Subsidiary Types of Pollutants Mode Outlets Discharge Outlets Concentration Pollutants Discharge Discharge Discharge
LERFERERGE BRERUARN0.  EREDMN. BERENNEE R AR- K FRRAE E‘ﬁ FRRETE  OH: HRRAR "T BEltEE B
BA7 Pl i 2% TEH BEIMOER/  BIRE0ER/T  BEIRG0E/ 11103988,/ % -
e5 - RElLD - B VR UFK: ZEILE )5)% ZElRR E EHEE :@bﬁm 198
e B BEIMOER/  BOWS0ER/L MATE/F: A /% REKD
Rk REND Ak A8khE 0.8%/5 B
REOROER/  RIRI00ER/T B 8 H930%E/ 5
ﬂH B FhBHARE &) \MWE/ £
FieEs /1 NMOZR /LA
Shandong Xinhua ~~ Exhaust gas: volatile Exhaust gas Therearemore  No. 1 factory, No. 2 No. 2 factory; NMHC ~ Exhaust gas: NMHG ~ No. 2 factory: total -~ No. 2 factory: None
Pharmaceutical organic compound emission at Exhaust factory. concentration concentration amount of NMHC 108.98tons/
Company Limted ~ (VOC] (calculated interval. outlets. less than 40 mg/ less than 60 mg/ concentration year of VOG;
according to Please refer m? ;sulfur dioxide m? ; sulfur dioxide less than 80 tons/ 11.98 tons/year
Non-methane to appendix of concentration concentration year; total amount of sulfur dioxide;
hydrocarbons, the emission less than 40 mg/ less than 50 mg/ of sulfur dioxide 32.83 tons/year
“MHC"), sulfur dioxide, permit. m?, nitrogen oxide m?, nitrogen oxide concentration of nitrogen oxide;
nitrogen oxide, concentration less  concentration less ~ less than 7 tons/ 3.28 tons/year of
particulate matter. than 80 mg/m* than 100 mg/m*; year; total amount particulate matter.
;particulate matter particulate matter of nitrogen oxide
concentration less concentration less concentration less
than 8 mg/m”. than 10 mg/m". than 13 tons/year;
total amount of
particulate matter
concentration less
than 2 tons/year.
HEFE-ANEY Bk (EREES-  BIEEAN- 1 REG EKEALR  (ERERREIR Bk (2REE) (EREEEEIR  [ERERNE/ &
SERERLT FELERORRL  s002R/ACER RERS00EE/  S0M/E 8B, FEE1E/
ARRH- 2K 5\15%%/ foo RERNMSE ROSH/% 23 12,60/
RER - /14 iR/ 8RR8I/
e iﬁmrmoz BR/AERN MME/E £
/% RI0ER/F -
Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo~ Wastewater: chemical ~ Continuous 1 Wastewater discharged  COD concentration ~ Wastewater: COD Total amount of 90 tons/year of None
Pharmaceutical oxygen Demand,efc. wastewater into the sewage less than500 mg/L. ~ concentration less COD less than COD.1.44 tons/
Company Limited discharge. treatment plant of ammonia nitrogen than or equal to 30 tons/year.total year of total
the No. 1 factory less than 15mg/ 500 mg/L; ammonia  phosphate less than  phosphate.
from the Department ~ L;total phosphate nitrogen less than 0.5 tons/year;total 12 6tons/
of Environmental less than 2mg/ 45mg/L; total nitrogen less year of total
Protection of Litotal nitrogen less ~ phosphate less than 2tons/year. nitrogen.8. ttons/
Shandong Xinhua than 30mg/L. than 8mg/L; total ammonia nitrogen T year of ammonia
Pharmaceutical nitrogen less than ton/year. Nitrogen.
Company Limited. 70mg/L.
MENE-AARY ERERUMERN  EREEHE- 5 REZECRER K ERHERYRE) BRBRUARD  BIUAAMMY BRMARIGS B
SEREERA (VOCY)e 2ER HEEEE  He0ER/15 REIR60ZR/  W/E- /%>
i o Ko URke
Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo  Exhaust gas: volatile Exhaust gas 5 API Composite VOC concentration ~ Exhaust gas: VOC ~ Total amount of VOC 3.8 tons/year of None
Pharmaceutical organic compound emission at plant, Purified lessthan 60 mg/L. ~ concentration less less than 1 tons/ VOC.
Company Limited ~ (VOC). interval, plant,Preparation than 60 mg/m®. year.
Production Base.
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(=) HEfthiFR (1) 3. Others (Continued)
EITH M SR Ea1ER (8] Performance of other social responsibilities (Continued)
AREFLR IEARMRNAFRN BiTHARY it ]
1] &R A HnkE #HnAHER HHRE R HynE HEMHHEE  HRER
Implemented
Names of Key Number of Standards for Approved Total
Name of Company  Pollutants and Special  Discharge Discharge Distribution of Discharge Discharge of Total Amount of Amount of Excessive
or Subsidiary Types of Pollutants Mode Outlets Discharge Outlets Concentration Pollutants Discharge Discharge Discharge
HEREEHAER Bk (EFEE AR EEEN 1 KRR {tEZEEH400 &
£ 5 £1/f 5R)
RoER/F 4
BIReER/ 7
BRINI0ER/
#o
Xinhua Wastewater Continuous 1 Main wastewater outlet  COD less than 400~ COD 400 mg/L; Total amount of COD ~ COD concentration ~ None
Pharmaceutical (chemical oxygen discharge mg/L; ammonia ammonia nitrogen lessThan2.95ton/ 217366 tons/
(Shouguang) Co., ~ demand, ammonia nitrogen less than 25 mg/L; total year, ammonia year, ammonia
Ltd. Nitrogen,gtc). 25 mglL; total phosphate 8mg/ nitrogen less than nitrogen 0.76
phosphate less L; total nitrogen 00568 ton/year. fons.
than 8mg/L; total 70mg/L.
nitrogen less than
70mg/L.
FEREENER BR:CELE 8L FEER 13 WhEoF ZRE —EROMS0E  CENES0ER/V CEREINeE- A ZElkEsoE/ &
A7 0 FRREES - fA-DkEWTE -8 R/UAK RE  BK RERMI0  EkBIResEe  F RELD
RABSIE &R (Lh0M002R/  2R/I5% % 15,018/ 5
fi- TRk FERE BREMNER/
Blii0ER/T  TFR
ke
Xinhua Exhaust outlets :suffur ~ Discharge at 13 Pyrazolone: 2; Ziurea:  Sulfur dioxide less Sulfur dioxide 50 mg/  Total amount of sulfur  Total amount of None
Pharmacetical dioxide, nitrogen Interval 2; DK workshop: than 50 mg/m?; m?, nitrogen oxide dioxide lessthan 6 sulfur dioxide
(Shouguang) Co., ~ oxide, NMHC, etc.. 7; chloropropionyl nitrogen oxide less 100 mg/m*; NMHC ~ tons/ year; nitrogen ~ 13.04 tons/ year;
Ltd. chloride: 1; sulfuric than 100 mg/m*; 120 mg/m®, oxidelessthan 8.5 nitrogen oxide
acid: 1. NMHC less than tons/year. 15.01 tons/year.
120 mg/m”.
LFFEERIIE BR:CELE BRE BEEM 3 FR-PECE CF CERBIMMOR  CEREIRSR  ZERE024ME/ ZENEINE/ &
Bad Bih B 28 BRI /URKCEE R/Upk-BE O GoBEUERD £ ERUAR
fthe BEEMING3)  MEEMING0E  008H/F BA 140038/
FR/U0% B R/UMKCEN M0omaB/ & BH0ssiN/
nReeER/  BNMORR/L AERN005E/ £ A& N64
upkREn Rk -AEkm) Ee /%>
PMRTRR/TH RM00RR /LR
Shandong Xinhua ~ Exhaust outlets Discharge at 3 dimethyl sulfate sulfur dioxide less sulfur dioxide less  sulfur dioxide less sulfur dioxide None
Wanbo Chemical (sulfur dioxide, CI2, Interval 2,8-diazabicyclo than 16 mg/m?, than 50 mg/m?, than 0.2243 tons/ less than 3.33
Co,, Ltd. ammonia). 5,4,0) undec-7-ene volatile organic volatile organic year, volatile tons/year,
1. compound (VOC) compound (VOC) organic compound  volatile organic
lessthan 8.39 mg/  less than 60 mg/ (VOC) less than compound
m’, particulate m’, particulate 0.085 tons/ year, (VOC) less than
matter less than 4.6 matter less than 10 particulate matter 4,093 tons/
mg/m®, nitrogen mg/m?, nitrogen less than 0.0713 year, particulate
oxide less than 27 oxide lessthan 100 tons/ year, nitrogen ~ matter less than
mg/m?. mg/m’. oxide less than 0.05  0.651 tons/year,
tons/year. nitrogen oxide less
than 4.64 tons/
year.
* BANEERBEHIGER - . Shouguang Company’s daily exhaust emissions meet the standard.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment
facilities

(1)

Waste water treatment

The Company has in place three sewage treatment facilities
with treatment capacity of 12,000 tons/day. Xinhua-Pewigo has
in place one sewage treatment facility with treatment capacity
of 400 tons/day. Shougwang has in place six sewage treatment
facilities with treatment capacities of 3,000 tons/day. Such
sewage treatment facilities can all fully meet the requirement of
consistently reaching the wastewater discharge standards.

The production wastewater produced by each production
workshop is first pretreated by specified facilities at the
workplaces: the Company separates, recycles and reuses
organic substances from waste water rich in organic
substances through methods like absorption and filtration,
separation by extraction and evaporative fractionation; recycles
ammonia nitrogen from wastewater rich in ammonia nitrogen
through stripping process, and recycles inorganic salts from
highly saline wastewater by means of MVR and CWO. Then
the production wastewater after pretreatment is discharged
into the production wastewater collection tank (pool) of the
workplaces, where the wastewater will be monitored and
sampled by the Company’s environmental protection unit. If
the sampled wastewater reaches the internal control indicators
of the Company, the Company’s environmental management
personnel will open the production wastewater inlet valve to let
the wastewater flow towards and mix with domestic sewage
and be transported to sewage treatment systems of No. 1
factory, No. 2 factory and general factory for biochemical
treatment, after which the wastewater will be discharged into
the water purification plant of Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited.

The two outlets of the Company were equipped with
standardised online monitoring facilities, which are operated
by authorized qualified entities. Online monitoring data of
wastewater discharge will be uploaded real-time to the
Environmental Automatic Monitoring and Control System of
Shandong Province and will be published and managed real-
time by the Environmental Protection Office of Shandong
Province.
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Others (Continued)

Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment
facilities (Continued)

(1)

Waste water treatment (Continued)

The production wastewater generated by Xinhua Perrigo was
pretreated by special facilities in production processes firstly,
wastewater with high content of organics realizes a separation
between organics and aqueous phase through evaporation
fractionation and other methods to recycle the organics.
Highsalt wastewater recovers inorganic salts through MVR
method. After flowing into the Company’s high concentration
wastewater pool, the pretreated production wastewater
then entered water-collecting well though special conveying
pipelines. After mixing with sanitary sewage, it then enters
the Company’s sewage treatment system for biochemical
treatment. After a qualified monitoring by the Company, then it is
discharged into the sewage treatment plant of the No.1 factory
of the Company.

Production wastewater generated by production workshops
of Shouguang company was pretreated by special facilities
in production processes firstly: COD and ammonia nitrogen
are removed from wastewater with high content of COD and
salt through high-temperature wet oxidation and salt is then
removed through MVR evaporation. Then the production
wastewater enters sewage treatment system. Wastewater
with high content of ammonia nitrogen and salt produces by-
products of desalination and ammonia-nitrogen reduction
through MVR evaporation. Pre-treated production wastewater
enters the gathering tank (pool) of each workshop separately.
After it meets the Company’s internal control target through
environmental monitoring and sampling of the Company, the
sewage treatment center of the Company will open the inlet
valve of production wastewater to transport to its biochemical
wastewater treatment system and finally discharge into
Shouguang Huayuan Water Co., Ltd..

Shouguang company has installed a standard online monitoring
facility at its main wastewater outlet and entrusted qualified
units to operate the facility. The online monitoring data of
wastewater discharge is uploaded to Weifang Environmental
Monitoring Center in real time and published on a regular way.
Weifang Environmental Protection Bureau is in charge of the
implementation of online real-time management.

Wanbo Chemical has established sewage storage facilities with
the storage capacity of 300m?, and has entered into a sewage
treatment agreement with Xinhua Pharmaceutical, allowing the
sewage of Wanbo Chemical to enter the treatment center of
Xinhua Pharmaceutical for treatment.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment
facilities (Continued)

2

Waste gas control and treatment
We mainly apply source point control:

First, we have adopted “double pipe” technology to rid of foul
smell of chemical raw materials arising from products loading,
unloading, and transporting.

Second, we use the closed exhaust elastic breathing bag
(referred to as breathing bag) technology to reduce the acid gas
and volatile organic gas emissions.

Third, we turn the exhausting in the reaction process into
closed circulation to prevent gas emissions.

Fourth, we have applied such technologies as carbon fiber
adsorption/resolving and condensation recovery to recycle
organic solvent in the exhaust gas.

Fifth, we use water absorption, alkali absorption or joint
absorption and other technologies to recover soluble medium
in the exhaust gas.

Sixth, we use photoelectric/photo-oxidative catalytic
purification, low-temperature plasma technologies to destroy
the molecular structure of organic gases in order to control
chemical odor and improve the surrounding environment.

Seventh, we use LDAR technology to monitor seven categories
of components including various kinds of containers and
pipes that can produce leakage points of VOC easily, and we
will repair leakage points where VOC leak exceeds a certain
concentration so as to control the pollution of dynamic or static
seal points to the environment.

Eighth, we the Company uses important exhaust gas treatment
facilities like VOC monitor and VOC warning monitor for factory
boundary, to monitor on real-time basis the chemical odor and
the results of waste gas treatment.

Ninth, the Company uses RTO, sewage treatment plant waste

gas and part of the workshop organic waste gas to conduct
RTO incineration treatment.
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Others (Continued)

Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment
facilities (Continued)

3

Hazardous Wastes Treatment

The hazardous waste treatment of the Company: First, building
incineration facilities to dispose of hazardous wastes by itself.
Second, in accordance with the requirements of the Procedures
of Joint Management of Hazardous Wastes Transfer in Zibo
City (CEEmEEmEBEEEETEIEF)), rendering
qualified entities to dispose of part of the hazardous waste to
strictly implement transfer processing system and transfer plan
approval system.

As required by the “Transfer Manifest Management Procedures
of Hazardous Waste in Zibo City (Shandong Province)”, Xinhua
Perrigo strictly implements transfer manifest system and
transfer plan approval system and transport hazardous waste
to qualified units for entrusted disposal.

The hazardous waste treatment of Shouguang company: The
first method is building its own incineration facility to dispose
ketene dimer residue by itself; the second method is that
the company, in accordance with the requirements for the
storage and transfer of hazardous waste, strictly implements
transfer manifest system and transfer plan approval system
and transport some of its hazardous waste to qualified units for
entrusted disposal.

Wanbo Chemical has standardized the construction of
hazardous waste warehouse as required to strengthen the
standardized management of hazardous waste. As required by
the “Transfer Manifest Management Procedures of Hazardous
Waste in Zibo City (Shandong Province)”, Xinhua Wanbo strictly
implements transfer manifest system and transfer plan approval
system and transport hazardous waste to qualified units for
entrusted disposal.

All construction projects of the Company and its subsidiaries
have passed environmental impact assessments and other
environmental administrative licenses.

The Company and its subsidiaries have formulated the
“Emergency Response Plan for Environmental Emergencies”,
which includes six parts: comprehensive emergency plan for
sudden environmental incidents, special emergency plan for fire
and explosion accidents, emergency plan for material leakage
accidents, special emergency plan for hazardous waste and
disposal plan for environmental emergency site.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment
facilities (Continued)

(3) Hazardous Wastes Treatment (Continued)

The Company has separately formulated the “Self-monitoring
Plan of No. 1 Factory” and the “Self-monitoring Plan of No.
2 Factory”. Xinhua Perrigo, shouguang company and Xinhua
Wanbo have formulated their respective “Self-monitoring Plan”.

The Company started to plan to establish its environment
management system in September 1999. The system passed
the environment management system certification of China
Certification Center in 2000, and passed the reassessment and
review of the environment management system in 2003, 2006,
2009, 2012, 2015 and 2017 respectively. In 2019 and 2020,
its environment management system passed the certification of
two new- version systems of environment and quality.

The Company entrusted Shandong Jiayu Testing Technology
Co., Ltd. and Shandong Neolithic Testing Co. Ltd, two
independent third parties, to conduct exhaust emission test
on its No. 1 factory and No. 2 factory, and they were up
to standard. Xinhua Perrigo entrusted Shandong Fangxin
Environment Monitoring Company, an independent third party,
to conduct exhaust emission test of the Company, and it was
up to standard. Shouguang company entrusted Shandong
Weike Testing Co., Ltd., an independent third party, to test the
exhaust outlets of workshops on a regular basis, and they were
up to standard. Wanbo Chemical has entrusted Shandong
Dingli Environmental Testing Co., Ltd. to regularly conduct
organized and unorganized exhaust gas testing, and they were
up to standard.

Establishment and implementation of the accountability
system for material errors in annual reports

In order to improve the Company’s standard operation level and
strengthen the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of information disclosure, the Accountability System for Material
Errors in Annual Reports was considered and approved at the 10th
meeting of the sixth Board of Directors of the Company in 2011,
which has enhanced the accountability of the persons in charge of
information disclosure of annual reports and improved the quality and
transparency of the information disclosure of annual reports. During
the reporting period, the system was rigorously implemented and
there was no correction required of any material accounting errors,
supplement of material omissions or modification of profit alerts/
warnings.
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3.

Others (Continued)

Principal Risks and Response Measures

(1)

Risks associated with industry policy changes: As the
pharmaceutical industry is highly regulated and China is
deepening the reform of healthcare system with relevant policies
and regulations gradually being formulated and improved. The
introduction of policies may have impact on the research and
development, production and sales of the Group to various
extents, for example, factors including the adjustments to the
Medical Insurance Catalogue, Consistency Evaluation and with
quantity purchase may have certain impact on the Group.

Response measures: The Group will pay close attention to and
study relevant industry policies to catch up with the changing
trends of the industry timely, in order to regulate its production
and management, strengthen its core competitiveness and
actively respond to industry policy changes.

Risks associated with new drug research and development:
Generally speaking, the development of drugs has to undergo
preclinical studies, clinical registry application, clinical trials
approval, clinical trials, production registration filing, on-
site assessment, production approval, etc., which involve
many processes and lengthy period of time, therefore the
approvals are uncertain and there is a risk in the research and
development. Also, it is uncertain whether effective sales could
be established in the market after the product is successfully
developed.

Response measures: The Group will further optimise the
innovative R&D system by introducing and cultivating high-end
talents, continuously improving the R&D level, optimising the
R&D structure with the focus placed on promoting the research
and development of key products under research. Meanwhile,
the Group will strengthen the secondary development of key
products, improve the research level and reduce production
costs, thereby enhancing the competitiveness of products.

Risk associated with lower price: After the drug product has
been approved for the launch, it has to go through medical
insurance approval and tendering to gain market access, which
makes the pharmaceutical enterprises face greater downward
pressure on drug prices. Meanwhile, due to the industry
policies such as macroeconomics, market competition, medical
insurance budget, the drop may be exposed to the risk of a
price drop.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

3. Others (Continued)

Principal Risks and Response Measures (Continued)

Response measures: Firstly, the Group will pay close attention
to the development of the tenders to swiftly respond and
adjust the tender plan. Secondly, the Group will conduct post-
marketing clinical studies on some of the key products to
strengthen their market competitiveness. Thirdly, the Group
will continue to innovate and develop drugs of urgent clinical
need with high added value, further develop the product under
production with market potential, and optimise the layout of
products to ensure the substantiality of the Company.

Risk associated with supply and price fluctuation of raw
materials: chemical raw materials, supplemental materials, and
packaging materials have been affected by various factors
such as macroeconomics, monetary policy, environmental
management, natural disasters, etc., which may lead to
restrained resource supply or significant fluctuation in the
prices, and affect the profitability of the Group to a certain
extent.

Response measures: On the one hand, the Group will
strengthen monitoring and analysis of the market, rationally
arrange inventory and procurement cycle to reduce risks. On
the other hand, the Group will make proactive efforts to realise
technology breakthroughs and effective cost reduction.

Environmental risk: A certain amount of sewage, wasted gas
and wasted residue will be generated during the production
of API. With the improvement of environmental protection
supervision by national and local environmental protection
authority and the enhancement of social environmental
protection awareness, the environmental protection
requirements for APl manufacturers are becoming higher
and higher, and the cost of environmental protection are
continuously increasing. Many pharmaceutical companies are
even faced with the problems of production suspension and
production limit.

Response measures: The Group has always been in strict
compliance with the requirements of national environmental
policies and regulations, and will continue to increase
investment in environmental protection and promote the
upgrading and transformation of environmental protection
facilities. The Group will keep carrying out safety training and
education, strengthen internal control standards, strengthen
the monitoring of key sewage discharge points, reduce the
environmental risks, and match the emissions policy.
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Others (Continued)
Related Transactions

Significant related transactions carried out in the normal course of the
Group’s business are summarized as follows:

20205 20194
X Item 2020 2019
(AR#TT) (AR¥T)
(RMB) (RVB)
HBEEERATIREMELT  With direct holding company and its
subsidiaries
—EiEFRE — Payment of annual trademark licence fee 9,433,962.00 9,433,962.00
— B TRE — Purchase raw materials 127,344,834.23  139,107,784.76
— R R RBIE R — Purchase raw materials and preparations
products 8,684,502.61 4,536,058.81
—HE TR R SRR 22 — Sale of chemical raw materials and bulk drugs 2,875,663.77 1,145,221.25
—SHEB N RIBHEL TS — Sale of power and provision of services 297,169.81 59,433.97
HEEELx With affiliated business
— RN — Purchase raw materials 12,272,455.74 17,602,695.71
—SHEB N RIRESH — Sale of power and provision of services 8,940,410.36 11,945,727.28
BEASHERXZERS Total transaction matters approved by
shareholders’ meetings 169,848,998.52 1883,830,883.78
HREEERATREMEZAT  With direct holding company and its
subsidiaries
—BRY - Receiving of services 2,837,570.95
- fﬁ’iibjj NIRRT — Sale of power and provision of services 10,951.77 24,853.24
— ¥ ERFEE — Payment of borrowing interest 18,441,037.72 4,380,000.00
&t Total 18,451,989.49 7,242,424.19
BERBATRS With non-holding companies
—HEL IR 5 — Sales of chemical raw materials 222,431,547.22  243,928,087.54
&t Total 222,431,547.22  243,928,087.54
et Grand total 410,732,535.23  435,001,395.51

ARREE(BRBIUIFNTES) R

FHlRZ ST BB E K BRERIRRE—
MR IGTETT - 2019 E 120204
EREERBBARRRERNSHE L
fR o

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
confirm that the above transactions were carried out in the ordinary
and usual course of the Group’s business and on normal commercial
terms. The aggregate amount of the above transactions for each of
the years 2019 and 2020 did not exceed the annual cap approved in
the general meetings of the Company.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Connected transactions subject to annual reporting
requirement under the Listing Rules

(1)

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules issued a letter
without qualifications containing its conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided to the SEHK.

(1)

On 29 October 2015, the Company and Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited
(“SXPGC”) entered into an agreement in relation to the
Company and/or its subsidiaries selling water, power
and steam and by-products of production processes to
and procuring accessories for repairing and maintaining
equipment, packaging services and materials and
chemicals raw materials from SXPGC and/or its
subsidiaries for a period of three years from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2018 (the “SXPGC Agreement”).
The Company and SXPGC and HHC entered into an
agreement on 22 October 2018 for renewing the SXPGC
Agreement which was entered into on 29 October 2015.
The renewed SXPGC Agreement will last for a period of
another three years commencing from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021. In relation to the Agreement,
the annual cap for the year 2020 is RMB156,000,000.
The actual amount incurred in 2020 was approximately
RMB21,223,817.87. HHC holds and owns 32.94%
of the total issued share capital of the Company and
is currently the largest shareholder and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. HHC is a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. As a result, the
transactions under the SXPGC Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions. The same has been
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
29 October 2015 and 22 October 2018.
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Connected transactions subject to annual reporting
requirement under the Listing Rules (Continued)

(1)  Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

@

On 7 December 1996, SXPGC, the controlling
shareholder of the Company granted the Company the
exclusive right to use the Trademark (the “Trademark
Licence Agreement”) for its existing and future products
in and outside the PRC at an initial annual fee of
RMB600,000, increasing at the rate of an additional
RMB100,000 per year until the annual fee reaches the
cap of RMB1,100,000. Thereafter, the annual fee shall
remain at the level of RMB1,100,000 until the agreement
is terminated. On 23 March 2012, the Company and
SXPGC entered into the Supplemental Trademark
Licence Agreement which amends and supplements
the Trademark Licence Agreement. Pursuant to the
Supplemental Trademark Licence Agreement, the annual
licence fee for the Company to use the Trademark is
RMB10,000,000 for the period between 1 April 2012
to 31 December 2014. Other terms of the Trademark
Licence Agreement remained unchanged. On 27 October
2014, the Company and SXPGC entered into the 2014
Supplemental Trademark Licence Agreement. Pursuant to
the 2014 Supplemental Trademark Licence Agreement,
the annual licence fees payable by the Company for using
the Trademark are RMB10,000,000 for each of 2015,
2016 and 2017 and the annual licence fees shall be paid
by the Company to SXPGC on or before 30 June of each
of 2015, 2016 and 2017. Other terms of the Trademark
Licence Agreement remain unchanged. The Company
and SXPGC entered into a supplemental agreement on
30 October 2017 for extending the use of the trademark
under the Trademark Licence Agreement. Save for the
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Connected transactions subject to annual reporting
requirement under the Listing Rules (Continued)

(1)  Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

@

(Continued)

trademark fee payable on or before 30 June 2018, 2019
and 2020, other terms of the abovementioned trademark
licensing arrangements remain unchanged. The
Company paid the 2020 annual fee of RMB10,000,000
in accordance with the Supplemental Trademark Licence
Agreement. HHC absorbed and merged with SXPGC On
26 November 2018. The Company and Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Branch Company, a branch company
of HHC, entered into a supplemental agreement on 22
October 2020 for extending the use of the trademark
under the Trademark Licence Agreement. Save for the
trademark fee payable on or before 30 June 2021, 2022
and 2023, other terms of the abovementioned trademark
licensing arrangements remain unchanged. As Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Branch Company is a branch
company of HHC and therefore is a connected person
of the Company, the transactions contemplated under
the Trademark Licence Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions. In relation to the above
continuing connected transactions, the Company issued
announcements on 28 October 2009, 23 March 2012,
27 October 2014, 30 October 2017 and 22 October
2020.
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Connected transactions subject to annual reporting
requirement under the Listing Rules (Continued)

(1)  Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

©)

On 29 October 2015, the Company and Shandong
Hualu Hengsheng Chemical Company Limited (“Hualu
Hengsheng”) entered into an agreement pursuant to
which the Company and/or its subsidiaries purchase
certain chemical products from Hualu Hengsheng and/or
its subsidiaries (the “Hualu Hengsheng Agreement”). The
Hualu Hengsheng Agreement is for a term commencing
from the date when approval thereof has been obtained
both at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company and at Hualu Hengsheng’s board meeting
(or shareholders’ meeting) and ending on 31 December
2018. The Hualu Hengsheng Agreement is terminable by
either party with a three-month’ prior written notice. An
agreement to increase the annual cap for the year 2018
was signed on 19 April 2018. The Company and Hualu
Hengsheng entered into an agreement on 22 October
2018 for renewing Hualu Hengsheng Agreement which
was entered into on 29 October 2015. The renewed
Hualu Hengsheng Agreement will last for a period
of another three years commencing from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021. The annual cap for the
Hualu Hengsheng Agreement for 2020 is increased
to RMB330,000,000. The actual amount incurred in
2020 under the Hualu Hengsheng Agreement was
RMB127,344,834.23. HHC holds 100% equity interest of
Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Group Company Limited.
Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Group Company Limited
held 32.19% of the total issued share capital of Hualu
Hengsheng and is the largest shareholder thereof.
As at 31 December 2020, HHC directly and indirectly
held 36.96% of the total issued share capital of the
Company and is the largest shareholder of the Company.
Accordingly, Hualu Hengsheng, being an associate of
HHC, is a connected person of the Company and the
transactions contemplated under the Hualu Hengsheng
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions.
The same has been disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 20 April 2018 and 22 October 2018.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Connected transactions subject to annual reporting
requirement under the Listing Rules (Continued)

(1)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(4)  On 23 June 2020, the Company and Shandong Lukang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (IR B E B DGR A F)
(“Shandong Lukang”) entered into a supply of goods and
service agreement (the “Shandong Lukang Agreement”)
in relation to the purchase of preparation products and
bulk drugs, and the sale of pharmaceutical intermediaries
and bulk drugs and provision of engineering design
services for the period commencing from 11 March 2020
to 31 December 2020. The annual cap for the Shandong
Lukang Agreement Agreement for 2020 is increased
to RMB30,000,000. The actual amount incurred in
2020 under the Shandong Lukang Agreement was
RMB11,857,336.19. Shandong Lukang is a subsidiary
of HHC. As at 31 December 2020, HHC directly and
indirectly held 36.96% of the total issued share capital
of the Company and is the largest shareholder of
the Company. Accordingly, Shandong Lukang is a
connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Shandong Lukang Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions. The
same has been disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 23 June 2020.

Confirmation from the auditors in respect of the above
connected transactions

The auditors of the Company have examined the above continuing
connected transactions, and provided a letter to the Board under
Rule 14A.56 of Hong Kong Listing Rules stating that:

The auditors did not notice any matter which caused them to
believe that the above transactions had not been approved by
the Board of the Company;

In respect of transactions for provision of goods or services by
the Group, the auditors did not notice any matter which caused
them to believe that the above transactions had not been
conducted in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

The auditors did not notice any matter which caused them to
believe that the above transactions had not been conducted
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

The auditors did not notice any matter which caused them to
believe that the amounts of such transactions had exceeded
the Group’s annual cap of transactions for the year ended
31 December 2020. The disclosed related party transactions
with associates in the auditors’ report were not continuing
connected transactions or connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. All the transactions mentioned
in this section were connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined by Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions

To optimize the Company’s debt structure and strengthen the
guarantee of capital for its development, on 30 March 2020,
the Company entered into a funding agreement with HHC, the
Company’s controlling shareholder. HHC publicly issued corporate
bonds of RMB1 billion in March 2020, of which RMB600 million
was provided for the use of the Company without asset collaterals
provided by the Company and its subsidiaries. The use term of the
above funds was three years. The due date is 27 March 2023.

On 20 April 2020, the Company entered into an equity transfer
agreement with HHC, the Company’s controlling shareholder, to
acquire 27% equity interest of Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical
& Industrial Co., Ltd. (the “Wanbo Interest”) with a listing price of
RMB15,906,834. By acquiring the Wanbo Interest, the Company
can further enhance resources consolidation and improve its overall
competitiveness and capability of sustainable development.

On 17 July 2020, the Company jointly invested and established
“North Health and Medical Big Data Technology Co., Ltd.” with
relevant investment parties (including Shandong Lukang). The
subscribed registered capital in North Health by the Company is
RMB100,000,000, accounting for 4% of the total capital of North
Health. By entering into the investment agreement, the Company will
be able to gain access to the healthcare-related big data, which is
expected to be conducive to the Company’s product research and
development, clinical development as well as e-commerce business.
Shandong Lukang is a subsidiary of HHC, the Company’s controlling
shareholder, and therefore is a connected person of the Company.
Therefore, the transactions contem-plated under the agreement
constitute connected transactions.

On 7 December 2020, the Company invested and established Xinhua
Health with the assessed assets of RMB24,201,200 and its own
capital of RMB24,798,800 (a total of RMB49,000,000), accounting for
49% of the investment. The other investing parties include, inter alia,
Hualu Investment. The establishment of Xinhua Health is conducive to
the Company’s continued development of high-quality products and
enhancing the Company’s capabilities in creating value. In addition,
by cooperating with other experienced Investors in developing
the new e-commerce business, the Company does not need to
invest substantially in its initial development of new e-commerce
business. Hualu Investment is a wholly owned subsidiary of HHC,
the Company’s controlling shareholder, and therefore is a connected
person of the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the agreement constitute connected transactions.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)
Connected Transactions (Continued)

Please refer to relevant announcements dated 30 March 2020,
20 April 2020, 17 July 2020 and 7 December 2020 available at
the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (www.
hkexnews.hk) for details of the above-mentioned con-nected
transactions.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
confirmed the abovementioned transactions were carried out in the
ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business and on normal
commercial terms, according to the corresponding agreement of the
relevant transaction, and that the terms are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The
aggregate amounts of the above transactions during the reporting
period did not exceed the respective annual caps approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

Auditors

The accounts of the Company and the Group for this year prepared
in accordance with PRC accounting standards have been audited by
ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (certified public accountants
in the PRC).

The Company intends to re-appoint ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants as auditors of the Company for the year 2021 at the
2020 annual general meeting to be held in 2021.

AREEG® By order of the Board
EFER Chairman
RS Zhang Daiming

FRER L SR ST - 202183 A30H Zibo, Shandong Province, PRC 30 March 2021
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To All Shareholders,

In 2020, all members of the Supervisory Committee of the Company have
performed their duties in protecting the interests of the Company and its
shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the Company Law of
the PRC, the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of Association”)
and the relevant PRC laws and regulations in an active, diligent and faithful

manner.

The Supervisory Committee has convened seven meetings during the
reporting period:

1. On 20 March 2020, the tenth meeting of the Ninth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s office, in which the
following resolutions were passed:

v

@

To consider and approve the report of the Supervisory
Committee for the year 2019;

To consider and approve the annual report and results
announcement of 2019;

To consider and approve the audited financial report of 2019;
To consider and approve the resolution about writing off and
provision of assets impairment allowance of 2019;

To consider and approve the resolution about related
transactions of 2019;

To consider and approve the self-assessment report of internal
control of 2019;

To consider and approve the resolution on the changes in
accounting policies;

To consider and approve the resolution about the related
transaction of bidding for 27% of the equity of Shandong
Xinhua Wanbo Chemical Co., Ltd..

2. On 21 April 2020, the eleventh meeting of the Ninth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s office to approve the
first quarterly report of 2020.

3. On 21 August 2020, the twelfth meeting of the Ninth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s office to approve the
interim report of 2020.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT



(f0) 20209F10A22BERR{EFEHAEN
EEECE+=Ag%  TBEROT
TREE

(1) FEHBBAAR020FF=FE
BENZER

@ THRBBTHENEIC(AF2018
FABRBE REABE) =

-
ER

(1) 2020F11 A19BUEER R R EBH

FNEEEE2020FEF — NEHaE

ERBATHENEERETRESSES
RIZBARIRE -

(X) 2020F12A22BERATHEMBHE T+
@%%@% /Aan#iﬁt %uﬁLLTﬁgﬁ/\
BRIAFBLABTIARAE+EES
SXRHNBER -

() 2020F12A28B LAEZEF AT B
FHEEEES2020FF —NEREE
F BRI TR

(1) TRBBENFAE2018FAKRK
SHIRE B BIITREER - BB
ﬁ%%i&&%%%%%l&%

7 BRI RS

2 EZRBENAF2018FARA
EHRRE BT &5 — (A TREERTT
AR BRED R ZR) o

AEBQEAFEIEARRESSEH B
AARBEREAEEERRAZROFHAER
R EBRRARER  REFAAATN
BRAIR M&Emﬁékim%ﬁamﬁ&m
EEE o RANBIRESIMORIEITIEE

EEeRE (&)

Report of the Supervisory Committee (continued)

4. On 22 October 2020, the thirteenth meeting of the Ninth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s office, in which the
following resolutions were passed:

(1)  To consider and approve the third quarterly report of 2020;

(2)  To consider and approve the resolution about the day-to-day
related transaction of annual trademark licence fee;

(8)  To consider and approve the resolution of amending the 2018
A Share Option Incentive Plan of the Company;

5. On 19 November 2020, the Company convened the first extraordinary
meeting 2020 of the Ninth Supervisory Committee by written
resolution, to approve the resolution on Nominating Candidates for
the Tenth Board of Supervisors.

6. On 22 December 2020, the first meeting of the Tenth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s office, to approve the
resolution of a motion concerning the election of Mr. Liu Chengtong as
Chairman of the Tenth Board of Supervisors of the Company.

7. On 28 December 2020, the Company convened the first extraordinary
meeting 2020 of the Tenth Supervisory Committee by written
resolution, in which the following resolutions were passed:

(1)  To consider and approve the resolution on the adjustment
of the exercise price, the list of eligible participants and the
number of options granted and the partial cancellation of the
options in the 2018 A share option incentive scheme;

(2)  To consider and approve the “Resolution on the Fulfillment of
Exercise Conditions for the First Exercise Period of the Share
Option Incentive Scheme of the Company in 2018”.

Members of the Supervisory Committee attended the Board meetings of
the Company and exercised effective supervision as to whether business
decisions made by the Board of Directors were in compliance with the
laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and in
line with the development of the Company and also in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. The Supervisory Committee considered that
the Board of Directors exercised its powers in accordance with the law.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee (continued)
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In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the related transactions that
were conducted during the year were fair and reasonable.

The Supervisory Committee has carried out its duties diligently. The
Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed the accounts and the Report
of the Directors to be submitted by the Board of Directors to the 2020
annual general meeting and has not found anything contained therein to
be questionable. In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the financial
report for the year 2020 reflects the true financial position and results of the
Company.

There were no major litigation matters in this year.
During the year, the Company maintained effective internal control over

financial reporting in all material respects in accordance with the Basic
Standards for Corporate Internal Control and other relevant provisions.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Chairman of Supervisory Committee
Liu Chengtong

Zibo, Shandong Province, PRC 30 March 2021
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IMPORTANT ISSUES

The Group has no material litigation or arbitration in which it was
involved or material litigation or arbitration which was pending or
threatened against the Group during the reporting period.

On 20 April 2020, the Company acquired 27% equity interest of
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. with a listing
price of RMB15,906,834 and completed the change registration. On
17 July 2020, the Company jointly invested and established “North
Health and Medical Big Data Technology Co., Ltd.” with relevant
investment parties. The subscribed registered capital in North Health
by the Company is RMB100,000,000, accounting for 4% of the total
capital of North Health. During the Reporting Period, the Company
invested and established Xinhua Health with the assessed assets of
RMB24,201,200 and its own capital of RMB24,798,800 (a total of
RMB49,000,000), accounting for 49% of the investment.

Apart from the above transactions, the Group did not have any
material investment, acquisitions or any disposal of assets during the
reporting period.

In the reporting period, there was no trust or subcontracting of assets
between the Company and other companies. The lease of assets
between the Company and other companies is listed in item 13 and
10 under endnote VI to the Financial Statements.

During the reporting period, there was no significant guarantee and
undischarged significant guarantee made by the Company.

During the reporting period, there had been no investment made in
wealth management products by the Company.

During the reporting period, the Company, its directors and senior
management had not been subjected to the disciplinary measures of
regulatory authorities.

Disclosure of undertakings by the Company or its shareholders
holding more than 5% shares of the Company: Nil.

Undertakings made by shareholders when refinancing:

(1) The first phase of the Employee Stock Ownership Scheme of
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited undertook
that no transfer would be made within 36 months from the date
of listing of new shares issued in the non-public issuance of
Shares of the Company.

(2)  Shandong Ju Ying Industrial Fund Partnership (Limited
Partnership) undertook that no transfer would be made within
36 months from the date of listing of new shares issued in the
non-public issuance of Shares of the Company.

Related transactions are set out in endnote Xl to the Financial
Statements in this report.
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Important Issues (continued)

10.  1ZEAD 10.  Auditors
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The auditors of the Company and their remuneration are set out in the
section headed “Auditors’ remuneration” disclosed in the “Corporate

126

1. FBBEEM EMATRERLARET) 11, Information about shareholding in other listed companies (RMB)
11 REHREE
EHNKIE EHEE NREEHE R EL Bl BXIEEE REHRR EREE
Change of
Initial Proportion of  Book value of Profit/loss  shareholder’s
Stock investment  equity interest end of of this equity of
Code Stock Short Name amount in investee this period period this period
601601  FEIK{R
China Pacific Insurance 7,000,000.00 0.06%  192,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 2,380,000.00
601328  XRi@R{T
BankComm 14,225,318.00 0.01% 36,822,016.00 2,589,048.00  (8,034,268.00)
At
Total 21,225,318.00 228,822,016.00 8,589,048.00 (5,654,268.00)
12, REHBESGHAF BB BHEEDE 12.  The information about reception of research, communication or
a interview during the reporting period :
R E&AR EaHzmy ARHEFERES
The object type
Reception time Mode of reception of the reception Index of the basic facts of the research
202043 H23H Wi Bi s 7 520203 A25 A E#E A
23 March 2020 Internet, Telephone  Institution Please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 25 March 2020 on http://www.cninfo.com.cn
for the details
202043 A24H Bk Ei g # 520203 A25 0 EME A48
24 March 2020 Internet, Telephone  Institution Please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 25 March 2020 on http://www.cninfo.com.cn
for the details
13.  2018FARMEEE LSBT EERBER 13.  The progress of the 2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan

Governance and Internal Control Report”.

2018412 A28H ARARI2018F £ — X
FERE AR RS ~ 20184F 5 — RAREERI
R AT - 2018F 5 = KHAFE IR
AEEHBBT2018FARBREZ Y
BEtE c BAARRENEEES2018
FE)RGREEETEIA2018F12A4
28ABETH  RFAIKFAN1858
BYE R T1,625 8 DR ZHRE - 2019
F1AOBRAREEMEMBTIERS: A
2019-02¢F 2 F12018F AR A% 2= B #E
BRI TR TR AE)

On 28 December 2018, the 2018 first extraordinary general meeting,
the 2018 second class meeting of the shareholders of A shares and
the 2018 second class meeting of the shareholders of H shares
considered and approved the 2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan;
on the same day, the eighth extraordinary meeting 2018 of the
Ninth Board of Directors of the Company determined 28 December
2018 as the grant date, granting 16.25 million share options to the
qualified 185 incentive participants. On 9 January 2019, the Company
published the Announcement on Completion of Registration of Grant
of 2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan of the Company numbered
2019-02 on the website of CNINFO.
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FroReFMENLEEFSE TR
GEEFBB T (ENMERT(AR20184F
ARIR R BB EN AT &) MR ER) - iR
RBR AR HEITER - 2020F12 722
BARI020FF — R ERE -
20204F 55 — /R ARRFERIIR R KE - 2020
FERHBRBERBREASEZABBT
CARMEET (A F1201 84E AR A% 22 B #2348
BErEDER) -

2020 12A28H ' AR AHE+EE
EE2020FF—RBENEE  FTEE
FE2020F F—NMEEH  BaR
BT AN FAR2018F AR IR Z HARE Y
BhRTEITHER  BEYHREZERRT
HEHRETAHED S HENRR) R (8
RRTI2018F AR ZEAE S B B
— AT TR ER) - 1B
ENBI2018FFE — NEHRERE -
2018F F —IRARRIERIRE RS - 2018
FEZRHBBERRRAGHREES
SREB A FRZHEBE RS E
HRABMI185[AEE184% - FTH
MEEREBEMAITENKREZHESZ A
16258 D AR E16208 1%  1THER
fh5.987T, B E5.767T, /10 : B
(2018 F AR IR = ERRE BN AT 81 (B %))
FIMERRE - IR S — TR T
BIEHFEKR - S RN1847 BB E &
EE (AT TR R R AR E
A550.808 1) - EE S HBH RN E
BER  ABERRBEERETIRE B
VEEHHBEERRTBIYER -

20211 A19H A% — (A7 THEH Al 174
K)550.808 () Ik R AR SR L
B - FH152 R 2021F1 A15E#
B BEY 52021-02¢BIR A F2018
FARKRE S BFT82E —EfTHEE
THRERBRMD ETHNASE)RZATA
==Y

ABEHN - ARTEEH AN
fEEHEE .

14.

EEFH(E)

Important Issues (continued)

On 22 October 2020, the Company convened the thirteenth meeting
of the Ninth Board of Directors and the thirteenth meeting of the
Ninth Board of Supervisors, where the resolution of amending the
2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan of the Company was considered
and approved, and submitted to the shareholders’ meeting for
deliberation. On 22 December 2020, the 2020 first extraordinary
general meeting, the 2020 first class meeting of the shareholders of
A shares and the 2020 first class meeting of the shareholders of H
shares considered and approved the resolution of amending the 2018
A Share Option Incentive Plan.

On 28 December 2020, the Company held the first extraordinary
meeting of the Tenth Board of Directors in 2020 and the first
extraordinary meeting of the Tenth Supervisory Committee in 2020,
and considered and approved the “Resolution on the Adjustment of
the Exercise Price, the List of Eligible Participants and the Number
of Options Granted and the Partial Cancellation of the Options in the
2018 A Share Option Incentive Scheme” and the “Resolution on the
Fulfilment of Exercise Conditions for the First Exercise Period of the
Share Option Incentive Scheme of the Company in 2018”. Pursuant
to the authorization of the Board of Directors at the 2018 first
extraordinary general meeting, the 2018 second class meeting of the
shareholders of A shares and the 2018 second class meeting of the
shareholders of H shares, the Board of Directors agreed to adjust the
number of Incentive Targets of the Company’s Stock Option Incentive
Scheme from 185 to 184, the number of options granted but not yet
exercised was adjusted from 16.25 million to 16.2 million, and the
exercise price was adjusted from RMB5.98/share to RMB5.76/share;
according to 2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan, the first exercise
term of the stock option has been fulfilled, and the number of stock
options that the 184 eligible participants vested during the first
exercise period is 5,508,000. The Supervisory Committee carried
out inspections on the qualifications of the eligible participants and
the list of eligible participants, and independent Directors provided
independent opinions on relevant matters.

On 19 January 2021, 5,580,000 share options for the first exercise
period were registered and circulated. For details, please refer to
the announcement on the Exercise Results of the First Exercise
Period of the 2018 A Share Option Incentive Scheme and the
Listing of the Shares of the Company (code: 2021-02), uploaded on
www.cninfo.com.cn on 15 January 2021 and the announcements
before.

There were no changes in accounting policies and accounting
estimation during the reporting period.
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Auditor’s Report
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E R PFISITITES | a4k X e 140 K IR ZAHE - +86(010)6554 2288
g ALK FAREY S telephone: +86(010)6554 2288

BME T ILERFERERHBRAD
AT BB ER L) B H%RE - 821
2020F12A31 B AN RTEE
BERX ' 2020F EME RS ARFE
= AHEERARERER AR
B REIRRESES K - URBESS
HMRMIRE o

BMRE  BHOMIERREMBEKR
FEERBEXSHENNRERE - A
ARME T FERLE2020912 A31BHHY
& O R ER BB IS AR A & 2020 E HY
EHEEAREEKRTIRERE ©

i7:5% Japd X0k 1

BRI B & st e AR
EBITT BT LAF o J|ETIRE MM
SRS B HRREFOEEIROE
—HE T RAEELERTHEE -
RRPBEEMSTaBEEE T &
PIB N EREE - WETT T REBE
TEOEMEE - RAAEE - RIAER
METERERRD  EEN  RERE
IER M T &R -

g ;h . w . 9/F, Block A, Fu Hua Mansion,
. . No. 8, Chaoyangmen Beidajie,
n e n 5’ Shlnerng Dongcheng)I,Jis?rict, Beijing,J fEFC - +86(010)6554 7190
certified public accountants | 100027, PR.China facsimile: +86(010)6554 7190
XYZH/2021JNAA50061 XYZH/2021JNA50061
WRHERER BB AT 2K : To all the shareholders of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.
FIER 1. Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Xinhua
Pharmaceutical”), which comprise the consolidated and the parent
company’s balance sheet as at December 31, 2020, the consolidated
and the parent company’s income statement, the consolidated and
the parent company’s cash flow statement and the consolidated
and the parent company’s statement of changes in shareholders’
equity for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated and the parent company’s
financial position as at December 31, 2020, the consolidated and
the parent company’s results of operations and cash flows for the
year then ended of Xinhua Pharmaceutical in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (ASBE).

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on
Auditing for Chinese Certified Public Accountants. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent from Xinhua Pharmaceutical in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Chinese Certified Public
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
of the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that we consider, in our
professional judgements, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
a whole and, in forming our audit opinion thereon, and we do not
express a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Bad-debt provision for accounts receivable

REFEHER
Key Audit Matter

FrthaES

How the matter was addressed in the audit

BE2020512A318 - MAERELH
BRI TS « 2FTH » EREEY

HFBTHERES AW -

We mainly performed the following audit procedures:

R R4 5843,868.708 T * E5tEH
SR EELHES 877.7TE T ° HEREE
BEHRKERNESRERRARTERA
B FEEEEURERENREEE
ERAEETEERRS - ERNERER
SRHUBRRYEEREA  BYRK
RESREM[AAAE - Rl HKMHRETERE
WERTERER RRET =R

As of December 31, 2020, as stated in
“Note VI.2” of Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s
consolidated financial statements, the
book balance of Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s
accounts receivable was RMB438.687
million and the provision of bad debts was
RMB58.7777 million. The assessment by
Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s management
about expected credit losses (ECL)
of accounts receivable is relatively
complicated. The management was
required to assess and assume whether
credit impairment occurs in accounts
receivable. Given that the amount of bad
debt provision has a significant impact on
the financial statements as a whole which
involves the management’s estimation
and judgement on the future cash flows,
accordingly, we consider the bad debt
provisions of accounts receivable to be a
key audit matter.

T RS AE AR H AR E RN B R R AE TR R TR
A,

To understand Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s credit policy, evaluate and assess the
effectiveness of the design and implementation on the internal control related to the
managing of accounts receivable of Xinhua Pharmaceutical;

BMEG T FELEER RN ERAEREARNEL ERERCRIE R ER
REHERIE - fefmaTEERBARNWERN N ER R MR SR

To review the reasonableness of empirical data and key hypothesis used in the
calculation of historical credit loss by Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s management, thereby
assessing the reasonableness of the management’s assessment and identification of
credit risk for accounts receivable;

ERHERERIRHRNERAELER  RE T EREHRACRBANRRM:T
2 - SMRERKRFEREBOHRKBREERAGE - ENFAEERAIES
BRAER

To obtain the expected credit loss model of accounts receivable of Xinhua
Pharmaceutical, check the management’s assumptions and calculations of expected
credit losses, analyze and check whether the accrual basis of bad debts provision for
accounts receivable is adequate and reasonable, and recalculate whether the amount
of bad debts was accurately accrued;

BRI ERERWERORENEPEEER - TRTRWERHZEF s
BEREHER - HERKERTEREETRN AR

To evaluate the reasonableness of the provisions for bad debt of accounts receivable
by analyzing aging and customer credit situation of Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s accounts
receivable, and perform the procedures such as arranging confirmation for accounts
receivables, and inspect the payments received subsequent to the cut-off date of the
period;

AR EREE R BHEICRTE RGN &t R A KRB G S AR KRR T35
BNRBERESNRE o

To assess the appropriateness of the accounting treatment on the bad debt provision
of accounts receivables made by the management of Xinhua Pharmaceutical and
consider whether the presentation and disclosures of related information in the financial
statements are appropriate.
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Auditor’s Report (continued)

=. RARFEFERGE)
2. FRERERER
HETHER
Key Audit Matter

3. Key Audit Matters (Continued)
2. Provision for inventory
FEathefEs

How the matter was addressed in the audit

HZE2020F12A310  MAEREL G
BRI « 65T - FEREHE
117,987. 718 B RMGEEREBERE
$%5,551.288 T c BEARKH  BE
FRKAE SR FENEN S EETR
£ FERBEGHRES RS HABR
RYERA TARTEEVERFET
EEBEEERAGENEN  [BETEE
MHEBRZRAXEL HEMERT - BR
FESHEXN  BREFEUERFES
REBEBEAHE  ALBRMBTEERE

EHETABRETER -

As of December 31, 2020, as stated in
“Note VI.6"of Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s
consolidated financial statements,
the book balance of inventories was
RMB1,179.8771 million and the accrued
provision for inventories was RMB55.5128
million. On the balance sheet date, the
inventory was measured by the lower of
the cost and net realizable value, whether
the accrued provision of inventories was
sufficient should have a significant impact
on the financial statements; furthermore,
the determination of net realizable value
required management to make judgement
and estimations based on various factors
such as the purpose of inventory-holding,
estimated selling price and cost of sales.
Due to the significant amount of the
inventory and that the determination of
net realizable value required significant
judgement by the management, we
consider the provision for inventory to be a

key audit matter.

HFERTHEEESRFWT -

We mainly performed the following audit procedures:

HMENEE BN EERIBE AR R R EETES TRy - WREARARE
HEETR L

To assess the design and operation of the internal controls related to the provision
of Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s inventories, and test the operational effectiveness of the
relevant internal controls;

HMENEREERER  REFENEE  WARERBIAERR
To carry out inventory stocktaking, check the quantities, conditions and validity period
of the inventories;

HEANMEHEEENER  ERNERE  HERBRRNFEETOTLER  RE
REFEIAIRER :

To perform analytical review procedures on the inventories with a long storage age by
taking the storage age and validity period of the inventories of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
into consideration, and inspect whether the inventories are close to the validity period;

HERHENEFR R  REGTENERFERKANESERE B HEERAEN
HeERNAEN  AHELFERENRR ;

For marketable finished goods, to inspect the reasonableness of the estimated selling
price, the estimated cost-of-sales ratio and the tax rate adopted in the calculation of
net realizable value, in order to make judgement on the risk of inventory provision;

HBPEFLERABBERRROEMH « SE BN R RN S RERN £
ERHEEEN  HMEFNEE

To analyze the reasonableness of raw materials with significant closing balance and
longer storage age, in combination with Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s production and sales
conditions of the corresponding products;

BRMEREFEREERTER WTEERENR - oM EEREREHERE
7

To obtain the work sheets of provision of inventories for Xinhua Pharmaceutical,
carry out tests on the provision of inventories, and analyze whether the accrual of the
provision of inventories is sufficient;

B EHSEREHT EREEGN SRR REBE SR B RER P A5IRAT
RERAIRE o

To evaluate whether the management’s accounting treatment of the provision of
inventories and the presentation and disclosure of related information in financial
statements are appropriate.
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Htiig 2

FEETHEE( NEBEEER)HH
HiEEAE - Ettiz BB IEHER %
2020F FEHEFRREMNEE - BEFE
RIS RR MR IR TR RS o

BAEMBRRERNETERTRE
HibfE8 R THEMEEERE
ATz R ZERE A

EERMIETBRENET - RFINE
ERMEBEMESR - FUBET - ZE
Hib(5 828 B BRI B MER
BT T RBNBERFEERT B
EUFHFEERER -

ERBMEATHIIE - WREMETE
HiEBFEEANER  RAAEERS
ZEE - fEEH 0 BMAEEMEETR
BWE o

EEBMABBHMEERD
"

EEERRRRERSHENNRER
HPBHEK - REBRDARBR - WK

At AT E LB R ERES] - AR
BRI FERR LA RGN
E N E

R BWRE - EEERRNGH
ERENRELEL) BB
LHEEANEEGUER) - WERREL
MTE”‘“ BRIFEREEREMER

R IPBRN R EEMIRERRE o

e
m:d

EEMERENTHERE B

it o

2020 £ 1 B 1 HZE 2020 & 12 B 31 B | From January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020

v LERERERHER AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(B HRAR BRI BIRERA SN » S9N R TTHIT)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)
FEar = (&)
Auditor’s Report (continued)

Other Information

The management of Xinhua Pharmaceutical (hereinafter referred to as
the “Management”) is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report
of Xinhua Pharmaceutical for the year 2020, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our understanding of the situation in the
audit process or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the ASBE to achieve fair presentation;
and designing, implementing and maintaining internal control which
is necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible
for assessing Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Management either intends to liquidate Xinhua Pharmaceutical or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible to supervise Xinhua
Pharmaceutical’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are generally considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

During the course of audit in accordance with auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism.
We also carry out the following work:

1)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Management.

Make conclusions as to the appropriateness of the
Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements in
accordance with the auditing standards or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, we shall modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause Xinhua Pharmaceutical to cease to continue as a going
concern.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements (Continued)

(5)  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, and also evaluate whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

(6) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within Xinhua Pharmaceutical to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
group. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings etc., including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those responsible for governance with a statement
that we have complied with those relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence and related safeguards, where applicable.

From the matters communicated with those responsible for
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation prohibited
public disclosure about the matter or when, in rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

{ERPHEHAEHH (FHEESD)
eI = A - RMRE(REEBA)

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants(special general partnership)
Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Kan Jingping (Project Partner)

FEIFZ AT - Far

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yuan Shangwei

R Eedb X
202143 A30H

Registered in Bejjing, China
March 30, 2021
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SEHEEEEX

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Bfy : ARKT
Unit: RMB Yuan

HH Item Hist 2020%12A31H 20195 12A31H
Notes December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
MDEE - Current assets:
E¥Ee Monetary funds 75 1VIA 855,770,803.34 690,469,765.67
RoOUEHEE Trading financial assets
TEEREE Derivative financial assets
e E IR Notes receivable
JEUTBR R Accounts receivable N 2VI2 379,909,305.44 309,307,455.92
e R IBRLE Receivables financing N 3VI3 138,638,879.69 145,924,204.55
B FE Prepayments N 4VI4 48,957,684.70 29,773,518.97
Ho FEIR Other receivables N 5VIL5 25,163,102.98 19,676,461.89
Hep : EIFS Including: Interest receivable
e AR Dividends receivable N 52VI5.2 29,660.75
TE Inventories 7N~ 6 V.6 1,124,364,262.39 1,130,342,789.68
EREE Contract assets
REREEE Assets held for sale
—FRNEHHIEREEE  Non-current assets due within one
year
Hitms & E Other current assets N TV 114,067,003.20 102,892,339.63
mBEESH Total current assets 2,686,871,041.74 2,428,386,536.31
JERENRE : Non-current assets:
ERERE Debt investment
HibERERE Other debt investment
KA Long-term accounts receivable
REIRERE Long-term equity investments 7N 8VI8 57,795,818.99 60,774,211.24
HipiEm T RIRE Other equity instrument investments 75 9VI.9 258,822,016.00 235,474,096.00
HindEngemaE Other non-current financial assets
REMEE Investment properties 75 10VI.10 50,016,899.09 72,811,661.10
EEEE Fixed assets 75 11 V111 3,117,313,128.81 2,806,949,444.22
FEIRE Construction in progress N 1212 416,989,876.51 392,135,611.07
EEMENEE Productive biological assets
HREE Oil and gas assets
EREEE Right-of-use assets 7N~ 13VIL13 4,549,357.11 1,892,241.67
B EE Intangible assets 75~ 14 VI14 449,247,076.67 411,593,975.21
R H Development expenditure
ey Goodwill 7N~ 15VI15
REFEER Long-term deferred expenses 7N 16 V.16 11,916,370.88
EEFEHEE Deferred income tax assets N7 VT 23,517,396.65 26,006,832.66
HipEREEE Other non-current assets 75 18VI.18 15,913,207.59
EREBEESE Total non-current assets 4,406,081,148.30 4,007,638,073.17
BEER Total assets 7,092,952,190.04 6,436,024,609.48
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

Bfy : ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

1HH ltem HizF 2020%12A31H 2019412 A31H
Notes December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
mEAR: Current liabilities:
ySGIEE Short-term borrowings 75~ 19 V119 200,420,484.28 540,000,000.00
REMEMEE Trading financial liabilities
TELMaE Derivative financial liabilities
APES Notes payable 75+ 20 VI.20 289,972,897.58 364,123,575.62
e BRIR Accounts payable 750 21 V.21 452,930,287.37 434,388,662.65
ERAR Contract liabilities 7N 22 V.22 377,793,225.44 364,947,071.21
R {1 B T S Employee compensation payables 75 23VI1.23 86,354,297.27 79,834,732.56
[ER & Taxes and surcharges payables 75 24 V.24 23,061,985.11 19,178,538.68
HAERR Other payables 75 25 VI.25 495,166,878.89 334,043,971.20
Heh - ERIFLS Including: Interest payable 75~ 251 VI.25.1 4,253,876.86
e AR Dividends payable 75 25.2V1.25.2 5,310,599.53 5,310,599.53
REFEAE Liabilities held for sale
—ERZHHIEREEE  Non-current liabilities due within one
year 75~ 26 VI.26 422,617,238.22 348,997,921.06
HitmEBEE Other current liabilities 7N 27 VIL.27 32,721,948.43
wnEBARSH Total current liabilities 2,381,039,242.59 2,485,514,472.98
JERBNALR : Non-current liabilities:
REIER Long-term loans 75~ 28 VI.28 462,737,939.80 589,779,008.96
HEAR Lease liabilities 75~ 29 VI.29 1,762,899.65 855,959.44
REAFERI X Long-term payables 75+ 30 VI.30 638,556,123.79 50,286,746.46
ETE W Deferred incomes 75+ 31 VI.31 144,690,236.46 141,673,879.14
EEFEHEE Deferred income tax liabilities N7 VT 69,314,505.83 53,823,587.68
HindengaE Other non-current liabilities 75~ 32 VI.32 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
ERBABESE Total non-current liabilities 1,320,623,205.53 839,980,681.68
AESH Total liabilities 3,701,662,448.12 3,325,495,154.66

CECDEER | WRHERERDERAE

135



2020 £ 1 B 1 BZE 2020 & 12 B 31 B | From January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020
URBUES(Y : |LIERETERBERHBERAT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(REA SRR M BR IS BIRERR SN - S9N RBETTHITR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

afEEEER (B)

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

Bfy : ARKT
Unit: RMB Yuan

HH ltem Kzt 20205128 31H 2019F12A31H
Notes December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

FREEER : Shareholders’ equity:
&N Capital stock 75~ 33V1.33 621,859,447.00 621,859,447.00
BARRPTE Capital reserve 7S 34V1.34 644,906,623.85 634,142,967.70

B Less: Treasury stock
Hibtra e Other comprehensive income 75+ 35 V1.35 174,171,424.84 182,008,870.59
B E Special reserve 75~ 36 V1.36 3,039,375.29 1,436,261.16
B#ATE Surplus reserve 7N~ 37 V.37 302,535,302.27 278,949,576.01
ROEFE Undistributed profits 75~ 38 V1.38 1,477,281,646.00 1,250,630,948.35

BERBAFIRRES A Total equity attributable to the

shareholders of parent company 3,223,793,819.25 2,969,028,070.81
DHERES Minority shareholders’ interests 167,495,922.67 141,501,384.01
BRESSH Total shareholders’ equity 3,391,289,741.92 3,110,529,454.82
RRMRRES R Total liabilities and shareholders

equity

7,092,952,190.04

6,436,024,609.48
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Parent Company’s Balance Sheet

Bfy : ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

1HH Item Kzt 20205128 31H 201912 A31H
Notes December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
mEBEE : Current assets:
EEES Monetary funds 349,849,841.84 298,770,314.96
RIMEMEE Trading financial assets
TESMEE Derivative financial assets
EREE Notes receivable
FEUER TR Accounts receivable ++ 1 XVILA 297,382,259.35 274,018,243.04
e IR E Receivables financing +4+ - 2XVI.2 77,678,558.91 94,079,080.33
TaftoE Prepayments 16,369,555.08 13,444,428.58
Hfth e R Other receivables ++ - 3XVIL.3 500,864,154.86 456,056,466.67
Hep : EUFS Including: Interest receivable
JE W AR F Dividends receivable ++ + 32XVIL3.2 18,860,182.44 18,889,843.19
FE Inventories 625,250,916.84 633,343,633.90
AREE Contract assets
BEEEEE Assets held for sale
—FERFHKNIERE  Non-current assets due within one year
BE
HiRBEE Other current assets 60,395,444.95 58,246,508.06
nEHEESH Total current assets 1,927,790,731.83 1,827,958,675.54
JERENEE : Non-current assets:
EERE Debt investment
HinERERE Other debt investment
REBFEMR Long-term accounts receivable
RERERE Long-term equity investments T+ 4Xv4 728,922,422.14 671,380,554.52
HipEm TARE Other equity instrument investments 258,822,016.00 235,474,096.00
HinIBREERMEE  Other non-current financial assets
BB EHE Investment properties 78,965,125.33 103,889,231.54
BE&E Fixed assets 2,517,927,279.62 2,222,838,029.22
FEEIR Construction in progress 279,879,164.02 301,679,067.38
EEREMEE Productive biological assets
HREE Oll and gas assets
FREEE Right-of-use assets 1,456,030.56 1,010,811.58
BRAE Intangible assets 269,549,066.91 227,579,525.65
BT Development expenditure
S Goodwil
ROGFRER Long-term deferred expenses 11,916,370.88
ELEFSHEE Deferred income tax assets
HitEReEE Other non-current assets 15,913,207.59
FnBEESH Total non-current assets 4,163,350,683.05 3,763,851,315.89
HEER Total assets 6,091,141,414.88 5,591,809,991.43
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Parent Company’s Balance Sheet (continued)

138

Bfy : ARKT
Unit: RMB Yuan

1HH Item Kzt 2020%12A31H 2019F12A31H
Notes December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
BREAR : Current liabilities:
AR Short-term borrowings 180,407,956.47 540,000,000.00
RE5EEMBE Trading financial liabilities
TELREaRE Derivative financial liabilities
ENEE Notes payable 406,414,226.92 336,302,214.32
FETER R Accounts payable 333,004,892.70 364,182,344.83
ERAE Contract liabilities 66,504,241.53 75,004,214.72
JFEE 1T B T 55 Employee compensation payables 66,206,602.80 66,720,107.14
JERFHE Taxes and surcharges payables 8,531,905.85 9,540,538.19
E A FET R Other payables 394,295,651.57 303,811,080.08
Hr : EEIFE Including: Interest payable 4,253,876.86
FEAST AR Dividends payable 5,310,599.53 5,310,599.53
BEHFEAE Liabilities held for sale

—FRZHNIER

Non-current liabilities due within one year

FEE 421,794,729.34 348,914,517.54
HEtmehaE Other current liabilities 6,530,150.93
mBRESE Total current liabilities 1,883,690,358.11 2,044,475,016.82
EREAR - Non-current liabilities:
RAEAER Long-term loans 462,737,939.80 589,779,008.96
HESE Lease liabilities 766,650.69 527,072.35
RAEFER R Long-term payables 638,556,123.79 50,286,746.46
FEIEW o Deferred income 141,955,918.70 140,576,163.70
FEFSHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 59,250,257.75 48,906,631.75
HEA3EmEBE Other non-current liabilities 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
ERBARKRSE Total non-current liabilities 1,306,828,390.73 833,637,123.22
BESE Total liabilities 3,190,518,748.84 2,878,112,140.04
FRAERE Shareholders’ equity:
&N Capital stock 621,859,447.00 621,859,447.00
=N Capital reserves 703,482,105.67 672,137,151.96
o EER Less: Treasury stock
HE i s e Other comprehensive income 176,457,193.30 182,111,461.30
HIEGE Special reserve
kYN Surplus reserve 296,281,315.20 272,695,588.94

RO BCHIE

BRRES SR

ERMBEERESMET Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity

Undistributed profits

Total shareholders’ equity

1,102,542,604.87

964,894,202.19

2,900,622,666.04

2,713,697,851.39

6,091,141,414.88

5,5691,809,991.43
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Consolidated Income Statement

BHAER

Bfy : ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

KA ltem Kzt 20205 20196 &
Notes Current period Previous period
— EERKA l. Gross revenue 6,005,586,643.46 5,606,020,863.30
Hep: £ ZIA Including: Operating revenue 75+ 39'V1.39 6,005,586,643.46 5,606,020,863.30
Z. EXURF II. Total operating cost 5,585,070,476.65 5,184,091,468.92
Hep: BERA Including: Operating cost 78~ 39 VI.39 4,190,989,726.77 3,731,385,336.88
i BB an Taxes and surcharges 75+ 40 V1.40 60,276,354.48 58,190,180.49
HEBR Selling expenses 41V 631,597,121.93 789,151,206.79
EEER Administration expenses N 42 V142 320,149,607.17 322,288,237.24
& Research and development
expense N 43 V143 298,347,278.00 235,401,010.43
B ER Financial expenses N 44 V144 83,710,388.30 48,575,497.09
Hep: FEEA Including: Interest expenses 59,759,474.37 55,317,659.59
FIBWA Interest incomes 5,968,298.09 3,601,837.92
i A Add: Other incomes 7N~ 45 V.45 38,647,497.32 40,280,545.11
KA Wz (BRUAT-573E5) Investment incomes (losses to be
listed with “-”) 7N 46 V1.46 5,610,655.75 5,158,909.34
Hib - HEacENSEhE Including: Incomes from investment
ot into affiliates and joint
ventures -2,978,392.25 -2,365,147.75
fEFRERR (BRI I5% Credit impairment loss (losses to be
1#351)) listed with “-) 7N~ 47 V.47 382,455.10 -227,110.48
BERERBRBRU-IHR Assets impairment loss (losses to be
1#51) listed with “-”) 75~ 48 V1.48 -45,159,388.85 -79,646,774.39
BEREWRR(BRUN-5 Gains from asset disposal (losses to
1#351)) be listed with “-”) 75~ 49 V1.49 2,488,084.14 841,324.72
=. BEFBAGGRLU-RER) I11.Operating profits (losses to be listed
with “-”) 422,485,470.27 387,436,288.68
I EEIMRA Add: Non-operating income 78 50 VI.50 1,129,914.39 2,379,714.85
: EEIN Less: Non-operating expenditure 7N 51 V151 11,977,403.91 8,423,382.60
. FI7EE (SREEL-13RET))  IV.Total profits (total loss to be listed
with “-*) 411,637,980.75 381,392,620.93
B EHER Less: Income tax expenses 7N 52 V1.52 64,524,696.58 58,276,863.40
A, BFEPERL-1RES) V. Net profits (net loss
to be listed with “-*) 347,113,284.17 328,115,757.53
() RISERHERLE () Classified by operation continuity
1. BECEFFIECFER 1. Net profit from continued
PAT-I553851)) operations (net loss to be
listed with “-”) 347,113,284.17 323,115,757.53
2. RIEEEFHE0FERE 2. Net profit from discontinued
PAT-J574851)) operations (net loss to be
listed with “-”)
(o) RFEREREHE (I) Classified by ownership
1. BBREARBRRLFH 1. Net profit which belongs to
HCFEIRUA-5RET) shareholders of parent
company (net loss to be
listed with “-”) 324,859,557.55 299,966,265.71
2. DERFE(FEEN 2. Minority interest (net loss to be
[-I57851)) listed with “-”) 22,253,726.62 23,149,491.82
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Consolidated Income Statement (continued)

Bfy : ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

KA ltem Kzt 20205 20196 &
Notes Current period Previous period
N RS kanngse VI. Net of tax of other comprehensive
income 7N~ 53 V153 -8,399,441.03 39,484,025.47
FESARMEENEMEAME  Net of tax of other comprehensive income
HBia SR attributable to the owners of parent
company -7,837,445.75 39,363,799.55
(=) TEENEERSNHMES () Other comprehensive income not
Wiz subject to reclassification to profit
or loss in future 78 53 V153 -5,654,268.00 38,874,688.80
1. HtESTAREAARE 1. Change in fair value of
EZE) other equity instrument
investments 7N~ 53 V153 -5,654,268.00 38,874,688.80
(D) BEHFEEZMEMEAK () Other comprehensive income to be
i reclassified into profit or loss in
future 78~ 53 V153 -2,183,177.75 489,110.75
1. NEBBBRRTEEE 1. Conversion difference of foreign
currency statement 78+ 53 VI.53 -2,183,177.75 489,110.75
FENVERROLMAA MG  Net other comprehensive income
o after-tax which belongs to minority
shareholders -561,995.28 120,225.92
t. Gakaws VII. Total comprehensive income 338,713,843.14 362,599,783.00
FENSARNAENGAREE  Total comprehensive income attributable
# to the shareholders of parent
company 317,022,111.80 339,330,065.26
BERAVERROGANEEE Total comprehensive income attributable
to the minority shareholders 21,691,731.34 28,269,717.74
N, SERKE : VIII. Earnings per share:
(=) BEAEZRKE (T &) () Basic eamings per share 75~ 54 V.54 0.52 0.48
(o) mEsRkE(T &) () Diluted earnings per share 7N 54 VI.54 0.52 0.48
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Parent Company’s Income Statement

Bfy : ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

(Z) RIEEEFFIBOFEENA

- 3RIE51)

() Net profit from discontinued operations

(with “-” for net loss)

ltem Kzt 20205 20195
Notes Current period Previous period
— EERA . Operating revenue ++ 5XVI5 2,989,728,593.60 2,796,386,483.71
B BERA Less: Operating costs ++ - 5XVI5 2,168,316,857.23 1,961,034,019.28
Bie RHm Taxes and surcharges 32,311,662.70 31,820,747.27
HEEH Selling expenses 40,923,905.78 63,515,960.39
EEER Administration expenses 230,695,591.52 226,513,894.00
HEEH Research and development expense 233,212,573.58 185,860,517.63
BsER Financial expenses 85,245,715.19 49,886,244.03
Heb: FISBA Including: Interest expenses 59,572,250.83 54,989,629.85
FIBMA Interest incomes 3,503,850.03 2,486,061.33
= Bl Add: Other incomes 36,404,578.00 38,852,357.82
& Weas (B35 71) Investment incomes (losses to be
listed with “-") +£ 6 XVI.6 54,370,715.51 10,050,704.10
Hb: SRRt Including: Incomes from investment
EMEERE into affilates and joint
ventures -2,978,392.25 -2,355,147.75
fERRERE Credit impairment loss (losses to be
(BBRIAT- 5 E51) listed with “-”) -851,400.76 1,612,239.46
BERBEREL Assets impairment loss (losses to be
(BRUAT-1571871) listed with “-”) -33,087,961.61 -67,887,359.06
BERENG Gains from asset disposal (losses to
(BRA-I573E51) be listed with “-") 2,182,520.20 1,093,899.05
= BRFIESRL-15RET) II. Operating profits (losses to be listed
with “-”) 258,040,738.94 261,476,942.48
- 2NN Add: Non-operating income 867,423.79 2,097,901.13
w : EEINT Less: Non-operating expenditure 7,157,693.57 6,985,995.32
=. FIERE (SHREFELI-5RE) 1. Total profit (with “-” for total loss) 251,750,469.16 256,588,848.29
" FEHER Less: Income tax expenses 15,893,206.58 28,193,585.02
0. S5 GRE B - 5RET) IV. Net profit (with “-” for net loss) 235,857,262.58 228,395,263.27
() BECEFHECFEEN () Net profit from continued operations
[-J53851) (with “-" for net loss) 235,857,262.58 228,395,263.27
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Parent Company’s Income Statement (continued)

Bfy : ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

KA ltem Kzt 20205 20196 &
Notes Current period Previous period
1. Bt ek anRg 38 V. Net of tax of other comprehensive
income -5,654,268.00 38,874,688.80
() THENEEBRMEME () Other comprehensive income not
BlkE subject to reclassification to profit
or loss in future -5,654,268.00 38,874,688.80
1. EtER TAREARE 1. Change in fair value of other equity
EED instrument investments -5,654,268.00 38,874,688.80
(D) BEPBERFNEMEZA ()  Other comprehensive income to be
Wegs reclassified into profit or loss in
future
1. NS B RRITEER 1. Conversion difference of foreign
currency statement
N Sehann V1. Total comprehensive income 230,202,994.58 267,269,952.07
t. SRKE - VII. Earnings per share:
(—) EXEREE () Basic eamings per share
(=) RESRkES () Diuted earnings per share
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Bt EETMER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

&fy - ARET
Unit: RMB Yuan
RE ltem st 20206F B 2019F[E
Notes Current year Previous year
. BEETHEEMRERE I. Cash flow from operating activities:
HERM  REAHREIMES  Cash received from sales of goods or
rendering services 5,269,470,493.81 4,864,320,978.75
WEMHERE Refunds of taxes and levies 118,303,250.38 71,254,169.55
WEEmECLEEERARE  Other cash received from operation-related
activities 7N~ 55 V1,55 96,938,793.93 116,825,590.77
BEEHRAMA et Subtotal of cash outflows from
operating activities 5,484,712,538.12 5,052,400,739.07
BERR  BEXYBXIMRE  Cash paid for goods purchased and labor
services received 3,184,470,403.73 2,803,995,448.07
TEBTIARABT S fHBRE  Cash paid to and for employees 770,976,274.87 757,237,393 44
SNNEERE Cash paid for taxes and surcharges 236,558,393.32 258,502,966.41
TEMELLEHEBNES  Other cash paid related to operating
activities 7~ 55 V1,55 872,520,657.85 884,393,524.98
EEEHRQMH et Subtotal of cash inflows from operating
activities 5,064,525,729.77 4,704,129,332.90
BETHEENHERESHE Net cash flow from operating activities 420,186,808.35 348,271,406.17
. RAEDELENEERE Il. Cash flow generated from investing
activities:
HSZ@&%WJJE’JEE% Cash received from returns on investments
SR B NGRR3R & Cash received from investment incomes 8,589,048.00 7,514,057.09
J&%Elmﬁ? EFEEMEME  Net cash received from disposal of fixed
HEEREMNRSFE assets, intangible assets and other long-
term assets 3,594,041.01 2,825,003.59
RETABNREMEEEMUEIR  Net cash received from disposal of
ReFE subsidiaries and other business entities
W e BEBHRMIEE  Other cash received related to investing
activities
REFHHREMA D& Subtotal of cash inflows from investing
activities 12,183,089.01 10,339,060.68
BRETEE BFEENEME  Cash paid for acquisitions of fixed assets,
HEESLNMRE intangible assets and other long-term
assets 280,188,013.54 366,512,169.12
RESMMRE Cash paid for investments 30,000,000.00 56,766,721.32
STRAIREMEEEN TR Cash paid for investments Net cash paid
ReFE for acquisitions of subsidiaries and other
business entities
STREMEREEFHEMOEE  Other cash paid related to investing
activities 7N 52 V.52
REETDHRQMH et Subtotal of cash outflow from investing
activities 310,188,013.54 423,278,890.44

=
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EHRERER (B)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

&f : ARET
Unit: RMB Yuan
HE ltem Mz 2020 20196 &
Notes Current year Previous year
RETHEENRETERHE Net cash flow from investing activities -298,004,924.53 -412,939,829.76
= BHEDELEMBARE Ill.Cash flows from financing activities:
lera-€llapa Cash received from investment absorption 52,004,800.00

Hep : FRBRRBDEREERZEWR  Including: cash received from subsidiaries’

RS

absorption of investments from

minority shareholders

BEERMEE RS Cash received from loans

W Hh &L EEERMEAE  Other cash received relating to financing

activities

EREHRGRA it

activities

BEEBXTRRE Cash paid for repayment of debts
AERA - FIESERFISHMZET  Cash paid for distributing dividends and

R E profits or paying interest
Hep : FARSHADEIRAA  Including: dividends and profits paid to
7l B minority shareholders by
subsidiaries
TREMESEEFHEHOEE  Other cash paid related to financing
activities
EREHRQMH et Subtotal of cash outflows from

financing activities

EUEHELENEERESH Net cash flows from financing activities

N, EESHHASRASEEMA  IV.Effect of foreign exchange rate
4 changes on cash and cash
equivalents

1. ReRFEEERMBEME V. Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents
m: BRERESEEYHE  Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period

~|

of the period

~

Subtotal of cash inflows from financing

~

N BXRBERBEEFEMRE VI.Cash and cash equivalents at the end

33,000,000.00
426,569,000.00

618,000,000.00

1,096,573,800.00
729,655,801.87

143,287,406.86

16,438,740.24

188,594,318.00

1,061,537,526.73

35,036,273.27

-12,279,523.90

144,938,633.19

5717,624,593.37

722,563,226.56

1,233,791,374.23

50,000,000.00

1,283,791,374.23

1,103,000,000.00

117,838,280.89

1,442,862.04

109,184,510.10

1,330,022,790.99

-46,231,416.76

1,281,291.16

-109,618,549.19

687,243,142.56

577,624,693.37
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ISR ETERBERHEMR AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(B HRAR BRI BIRERA SN » S9N R TTHIT)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

BRARRESRER

Parent Company’s Cash Flow Statement

IRBEEAY

Bfy : A\RKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan
HH ltem Hit 20205 5 20195
Notes Current year Previous year
— REZDELENHARTE: I. Cash flow from operating activities:
HEED  RESEREMIEE  Cashreceived from sales of goods or
rendering services 2,483,839,648.43 2,266,581,616.91
WE| g B RE Refunds of taxes and levies 87,300,566.73 54,604,822.40
B EhREEEEERMNES  Other cash received from operation-related
activities 59,614,342.93 69,328,804.59
BETHHAMA et Subtotal of cash inflows from operating
activities 2,630,754,558.09 2,390,515,243.90

BEAM BEXBBIMNRL
XRRIARAB I RS

XANMBIEHE
XA EREEEHRRNEE

EREHRGRH D&

REEDEEHRETERR
RAEHELHRERE :
Lk el fobn

BERENRRIINE S
REETAE  BEVAENAME
HEEREMRSFE

[ SPN e PR E )
5558
KEEREEEDERIRS

RREHRGAADE

BRETEE EVEAENAME
MEEM RS

REXfHRE
FFRARRAMEREM XA
ReFR

XNEMEREESERNES

RAEBRERH D&

REEHELHRLRE PN

Cash paid for goods purchased and labor
services received

1,406,554,753.35

1,378,265,667.45

Cash paid to and for employees 511,187,915.31 482,769,910.40
Cash paid for taxes and surcharges 44,506,591.28 47,843,642.88
Other cash paid related to operating

activities 373,586,419.19 257,005,833.59
Subtotal of cash outflows from

operating activities 2,335,835,679.13 2,165,885,054.32
Net cash flow from operating activities 294,918,878.96 224,630,189.58

Il. Cash flow generated from investing

activities:
Cash received from redemption of

investments
Cash received from returns on investments 57,349,107.76 10,196,015.05
Net cash received from disposal of fixed

assets, intangible assets and other long-

term assets 2,560,520.00 2,625,710.00
Net cash received from disposal of

subsidiaries and other business entities
Other cash received related to investing

activities 20,000,000.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing

activities 79,909,627.76 12,821,725.05
Cash paid for acquisitions of fixed assets,

intangible assets and long-term assets 226,339,522.50 319,179,463.40
Cash paid for investments 70,705,676.20 76,208,407.32
Net cash paid for acquisitions of

subsidiaries and other business entities
Other cash paid related to investing

activities 43,500,000.00 11,000,000.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from

investing activities 340,545,198.70 406,387,870.72
Net cash flow from investing activities -260,635,570.94 -393,566,145.67

—_=F=—
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(BRI ERRAFBIE A - WUARBTIIR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)
SBARRERER (&)
Parent Company’s Cash Flow Statement (continued)

B A\RKT
Unit: RMB Yuan
HH ltem it 20206 20195 &
Notes Current year Previous year
= ERERELMBSRE Ill. Cash flows from financing activities:
ilera-telfopcka Cash received from investment absorption 19,004,800.00
REEFREHRE Cash received from loans 406,569,000.00 1,228,791,374.23
W Hh &L EBHRMEAE  Other cash received relating to financing
activities 618,000,000.00 50,000,000.00
EREDHAMA et Subtotal of cash inflows from financing
activities 1,043,573,800.00 1,278,791,374.23
BEEBI MRS Cash paid for repayment of debts 729,655,801.87 1,093,000,000.00
AERF - FBKEMHEXFE  Cash paid for distributing dividends and
Be profits or paying interest 126,672,138.84 116,148,375.08
YREMEEEFEEREOES  Other cash paid related to financing
activities 171,480,000.00 88,501,360.00
BREDHQMH s Subtotal of cash outflows from

financing activities
EREIDELEMBORERH Net cash flows from financing activities
], EFEHHESRASSEMBT IV.Effect of foreign exchange rate

& changes on cash and cash
equivalents

1. AeRASEEMBEME V. Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents
n: PR kAL EENHE Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period
N BXFERALEEMEH VI.Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the period

1,027,807,940.71

15,765,859.29

-13,226,899.07

36,822,268.24

230,330,314.96

267,152,583.20

1,297,649,735.08

-18,858,360.85

229,006.46

-187,565,310.48

417,895,625.44

230,330,314.96
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IRBIBEMY LRI ERERHEIRADR | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(B HRAR BRI BIRERA SN » S9N R TTHIT)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

SHRRERZER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

& \f¥T
Untt RUB Yian
NNEE
Amount of Current Year
BERBATRRAR
Equity attributable to the shareholders of parent company
FHREIR
Other equity instruments
B ik il A REMR WRAR RMBORE  WARA  EBAR  -RARER  A0ENR 1] ot JHBERE  BEMRAH
Less: Other Minority Total of
L1 Preferred Perpetual Capital Treasury  comprehensive Special Surplus General  Undistributed shareholders'  shareholders'
Item Capital stock stock bond Others surplus stock income reserve reserve riskreserve profits Others Subtotal equity equity
- LEERRH
I Balance at the end of previous year ~ 621,859,447.00 634,142,967.70 16200887059  1,436,261.16  218,049,576.01 1,250,630,48.35 2969,028,07081 141,501,38401 311052945482
- EEHREE
Add: Changes n accountng poicies
HEEREE
Corectons of prior period
accounfing enors
- eRal
Business merger under joint control
b
Others
I REENRE
II. Balance at the beginning of current
year 621,859,470 634,142,967.70 16200887059 143626116  218,049,576.01 1,260,630,048.35 296902807081 141,501,38401 311052945482
2 SERREDRNRIUL-RAN)
IIl. Current year increase/decrease
(decrease to be lsted with ') 10,763,656.15 TR0 M5T5 160311413 23,585,726.26 206,650,697.65 254,765,74844  25,094538.66  280,760,287.10
() Bekass
) Total comprehensive income 183744575 304,859,557.55 37,022,180  21,691,731.34  336,713,043.4
() RERAIH)ER
(I} Investedt and decreased captal of
shareholders 10,763,656.15 10,763636.15  21,272,767.44 3203642359
1. RREASER
1. Sharefolder’s contrioution
caplal 33,000,000.00 33,000,000.00
2 BfEGTEREARAER
2. Contrbuton capital of holder
of other equity instruments
8 BRRMiARGEAHEE
3. Amount of share-based
payment recognized as
share holder's ineest 12,150,366.71 12,160,366.71 12,150,366.71
4 Eft
4. Others 1,386,710 -1,386,71056 -11,727,28256 -13,113,043.12

T_ZFEFR | LRFERERGERAE
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EOHRREZZEB R (B)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity (continued)

58
Item

NNEE
Amount of Current Year

& \FET
Untt RUB Yian

BERBATRARE
Equity attributable to the shareholders of parent company

FHRRIR
Other equity instruments

(13 BER iR i #OEER  ARRANE
Less: Other
Treasury  comprehensive

stock income

BAER  EBAR -RERER  AOENA

General  Undistributed
risk reserve profits

Preferred Perpetual
stock bond

Capital
surplus

Special
reserve

Surplus

Capital stock Others reserve

A

Others

it

Subtotal

JHRRAS  BREGSH
Minority Total of
shareholders'  shareholders’
equity equity

(5) HEE
(Il Proft distroution
1. REERNE
. Appropriaion of surplus
TESEIVES
R-RaERER
Appropriaton of general isk
TESeIve
iR ERRNAE
Distrbution to owners (or
sharefolders)
4 Efp
4. Others
(B RrEariss

N

R

(V) Intemal camyover in shareholders’

equites

1. BRMESEENER

1. Captal surplus converted to
capial

2 BRLEESRNER

2. Surplus reserve converted fo
capal

3 BADEEREE

3. Surpls resenve o recover
fosses

4 HERed
Pha

4. Change in defined benefi
plan caried forward to
retained eaming

5 Eftfaetadels

5. Other comprehensive income
caried forward toretaned
eaming

6 Eft

6. Others

(B) LhEE

&
%

95LE8

(V) Speciel resene

1 KERR

1. Appropriation in current year

2 KERR

2. Amount used in cunent year
() &

) Others

B XEEREE
IV, Balance at end of current year

23,585,126.26 -96,208,859.90

23,585,726.26 -23,585,126.26

-T4,523,133.64

1,603,114.13
11,115,01940

16,171,905.21

621,859447.00 644,906,623.85 17417142484 303937529 302,535,302.27

1,477,261,646.00

-T4,623,133.64

-T4,623,133.64

1,603,114.13

11,115,01940

16,171,905.21

-16,438,740.25  -91,061,873.89

-16,438,740.25  -91,061,873.89

B321087  1,071,89426

605,042.95 18,380,962.35

1,187,16282  17,309,068.09

3,203,793,819.25 167,495,922.67 3,391,289,741.92
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BB I LREERERHAMRAT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(B HRAR BRI BIRERA SN » S9N R TTHIT)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

EORREZZEB R (B)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity (continued)

& \FET
Unit VB Yien
W195E
Amount of Previous Year
SRRSATRRES
Equity attioutable to the shareholders of parent company
EfETA
Other equity instruments
& Bk KEE A BARR  BCERR  ERRME TR BBDE RERER  AORAE Eft N JURREE  BREEAH
Less: Oter Minorty Totelof
BB Preferred Pemetual Captal Treasury  comprehensive Specil Suplus General  Undistributed shargholders — shareholders”
fiem (Capita stock stock bond Others suplus stock ncome TES8IVe resene  rikresene profs Others Subtotal equly equiy
- LEERRH
I, Balance at the end of previous year  621,859447.00 622,815,654.30 142.645,071.04 266,110,049.68 1,043,618,095.99 208724831801 10930471407 2,796,553032.08
- EEHREE
Add: Changes in accounting poicies
HEEERL
Comections of prior period
accounting erors
A-BH AN
Business merger under joit confrol 16,13420940 12047469 812794232 821110403 1028418570  18496,260.73
A
Others
I REEDRE
II. Balance at the beginning of current
year £21,859447.00 63794995370 14264507104 12047469  256,11004968 1,085,690,15367 2695459422.04 11938880977 281504832181
2 SERREDRNRIUL-RAN)
IIl. Current year increase/decrease
(decrease to be lsted with ') -3,806,986.00 3036379955 23151421 2283952633 21494079468 21356864877 2191248424 295,481,13301
() Grbass
) Total comprehensive income 39,363,799.55 29996626571 339:330,065.26  23,269717.74  362,599,783.00
() BREAWHSBE
(I} Invested and decreased captal of
shareholders -11,076986.00 -11,076.986.00 -11,076986.00
1. BERRAERR
1. Shargholder's contrbution
capital
) EMERTAREERA
03
2. Contrbution capital of holder
of other equity instruments
8 RERGHARREGNLE
3. Amount of share-based
payment recognized as
share holder's inerest 836470000 836470000 836470000
4
4. Others -19.441,686.00 -10,441,686.00 -19441,686.00

“EZFER [ URHEREROGERAA
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EOHRREZZEB R (B)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity (continued)

MY

Amount of Previous Year

£ A\RHT
Ui RUB Yien

SERSATRRES
Equity attioutable to the shareholders of parent company

i

Capital stock

Other equity instruments

frik

Preferred
stock

EfRRIA

HER

Pemetual
bond

Captal
Others suplus

B ERR
Less:
Treasury
stock

Aftirela
Other
comprehensive
income

TR BN

Specil Suplus
Tesene Tesene

—HERER

General
1isk resenve

ROEHE

Unaistributed
profts

4 it

Others Subtotal

JERRES  BREEAT
Minorty Totalof
sharenolders' shareholders'
equty equiy

(5) HEsR
() Proft distrioution
1. RORRLE
1. Appropriaton of surplus
Tesenes
2 RR-HERER
2. Appropriation of generalrisk
TeSene
3 HiREGERNAE
3. Distribution to owners [or
shareholders)
4 B
4 Others
(B RrEardss
(V) Intemal camyover in shareholders’
equites
. BRDNERERNAR
. Capital surplus converted to
capitl
LN L DS
Surplus reserve converted fo
captal
BRIERRER

0>

@ oo

Surplus esee to recover

-

-

. Change i defned beneft plan
cared forward fo refained
eaming

ApfrahakEdrs

Other comprehiensive income
caried forward to retained
eaming

6 Eff

Others

(B) LhEE

(V) Speciel resene

1. FERR
1. Appropriation in current year
2 BERR
2. Amount used in curent year
() £
) Others

o on

=

B XEEREE
IV, Balance at end of current year

62185944700

721000000

63414296770

18200887059

283952633

283052633

28151421

17,809.206.19

1757769098

143626116 278.949,576.01

B5.005471.03

-22,839,526.33

6218594470

1.260630,948.35

-62,185,344.70

6218594470

28151421

17,809.205.19

1757769098

7,210,00000

-1,442862.04-63,628,806.74

-1,442.862.04 -63,628,806.74

86854 8714215
50991445 18,400,110.64
51428591 18,091,976.89

721000000

296902807081 141,501,38401 3,110,52945482
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(B HRAR BRI BIRERA SN » S9N R TTHIT)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

BRARRRERZER

Parent Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

& \RET
Untt RWB Yian
WNEE
Amount of Current Year
ARRIR
Other equity instruments
B Bk KR it RE0R WoERR RftRSHE L | BRAE  ARENR it BRiasit
Other Total of
RE Preferred Less:  comprehensive Undistributed shargholders’
Item Capital Stock stocks  Perpetual bond Others ~ Capital surplus ~ Treasury stock income  Special reserve  Surplus reserve profits Others equity
- LEERRE
I Balance at the end of previous year 621,859,447.00 672,137,151.96 162,111,461.30 212,695,508.94  964,804,202.19 2,713,697,851.39
- BHHRES
Add: Changes in accounting polices
HEEGELE
Corrections of pror period accounting enars
Efo
Others
2 BEEIRE
II. - Balance at the beginning of current year 621,859,447.00 672,137,151.96 162,111,461.30 212,695,584 964,804,202.19 2,713,697,851.39
. ERREDOHEIUL-REN)
IIl. - Current year increase/decrease (decrease to be
listed with ") 31,344953.11 -5,054,268.00 23,585,126.26  137,648,402.68 186,924,814.65
() GRkEER
) Total comprehensive income -5,654,268.00 235,857,262.58 230,202,994.58
(2) BERATRD AR
(I} Invested and decreased capital of shareholders 31,344,953.T1 31,344,953.71
1. RRRASER
1. Shargholder's contrbution captal
2 EfESIEREZRAER
2. Contibution capital of holder of other
equity instruments
3 RARRHARRERHEE
3. Amount of share-based payment
recognized as share holder's inferest 12,150,366.71 12,150,366.71
4 i
4 Others 19,194,567.00 19,194,587.00

CECDEER | WRHERERDERAE
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BRARREDZE R (R)

Parent Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity (continued)

L

Item

b

Capital Stock

ANFE

Amount of Current Year

2 \fET
Untt RWB Yian

AHRATA

Other equity instruments

xR ik

Preferred
stocks  Perpetual bond

] REOR

Others  Capital surplus ~ Treasury stock

AOEER  ReoNE
Other
Less:  comprehensive

Ll |

EROR  AREHR

Undistributed

income  Special reserve  Surplus reserve profits

Others

BRgasH
Total of
shargholders’

equity

@
U

)
m

il
0

()
U

HEAR
Proft ditrbution
1. RERHLE
Aopropriaton of surplus reserves
HRRNAE
Distriouton to shareholders
Efs
Others
RRERNTEE
Intenal caryover in Shereholder's eqities
1. EANEERRIHEA
1. Capital surplus converted to capttal
BRNEEAEIER
‘Surplus reserve converted to capta
BRNERRER
Surolus reserve to recover losses
EiideaaE SR
Change n defined beneft plan caried
forward to retained eaming
5 Ebhayacedrks
5. other comprehensive income carried
forward to refained eaming
Efs
Others
i
Pecia resene
. FERR
Appropration in current year
2 BERR
2. Amount used in curent year
A
Others

B O 2 oo

@ qu S

W $EERER

V. Balance at end of current year

621,859,447.00

703,482,105.67

176467,193.30

1020277297

1028277201

23,585,72626  -98,208,859.90

23,585,72626  -23,985,126.26

-T4,5623,133.64

206,261,315.20 1,102,542,604.87

742313364

-T4,623,133.64

10,292,729

1029077297

2,900,622,666.04
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BB I LREERERHAMRAT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)
SARRRERZ B R (B)
Parent Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity (continued)

& \RET
Untt RWB Yian
DI95R
Amount of Previous Year
AEATA
Other equy instruments
e Bk A Ef ERME H:ERR  AftReks BV BAAE  AARAE i RRERAT
Other Totalof
B Less:  comprenensive Undistrbuted shareholders'
Item Capital Stock ~ Prefemed stocks ~ Perpefual bond Others ~ Capital suplus  Treasury stock income~ Specie reserve  Surplus resenve profts Others equity
- LEEXEE
I Balance at the end of previous year 621,859.447.00 664,453, 337.87 143236,77250 249.856,06261 82152440998 250093002993
1 BHHRES
Add: Changes in accounting poicies
NEERTE
Corections of prior period accounting erars
i
Others
2 BEEIRE
II. - Balance at the beginning of current year 621,859.447.00 664,453,337.87 14323677250 249,856,06261 8215244099 250093002993
. ERREDOHEIUL-REN)
IIl. - Current year increase/decrease (decrease to be
listed with ") 768361409 33,874,688.80 283952635 143369,792.24 212,767 821.46
() FRkaeE
) Total comprehensive income 38,674,688.80 20839526321 26726995201
(2) RREAD &R
(I} Invested and decreased capial of shareholders 41361409 41381409
1. RRRAEAR
1. Shereholder's confrbuton capital
2 ABERTAREERAEA
2. Contioution capital of holder of other equty
nsiruments
8 RARRHARRERHEE
3. Amount of share-based payment recognized a5
share holder's interest 8,364,700.00 8,364,700.00
4 i
4 Others -7,960,885.91 -7,90,880.91
(5) HEAR
(Il Proft cistrbution 28395263 -85,0%471.03 -62,18,344.70
1. REERARE
1. Aporopriation of surplus reserves 283952633 -22,839526.33
2 HRRMAR
2. Distriouton to shareholders -62,185,944.70 -62,18544.70
8 B
3. Others
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BRARRRERSER (F)
Parent Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity (continued)

2 \fET
Untt RWB Yian

A195R
Amount of Previous Year

AbEATA
Other eouty instruments
& Bk ik Efs ERME H:ERR ARk SERR BBNE  APRAE i RREASH
Other Totalof
%A Less:  comprehensive Undistrbuted shareholders'
Item Capial Stock ~ Prefemed stocks  Perpefual bond Others ~ Capital suplus ~ Treasury stock income ~ Specid reserve  Surplus resenve profts Others equity

(m) BoandaE

V) Intemal carryover in sherenolders” equity
1. BRNERARNEA
1. Capial surplus converted to captel
2 BRLESERNER
2. Surplus reserve converted o captal
3 BHLEARER

3. Surplus reserve to recover osses

4

4

. REREiEEDELEINE
- Changg in defined beneft plan carred forward
foretained eaming
5 AbsayasEIRks
5. Ofther comprehensive income carried forward
foretained eaming
6 Eft
6. Oters
1) S5
(V) Special reserve
1. RERR
1. Approprigion n curent year 1017187768 10,171,877.68
2. AERR
2. Amount used i current year 10,171,877.68 10,171,877.68
() &

/A

() Others 7,270,000.00 7,210,00000

B 3EEREH
V. Balance at end of current year 621,859 447.00 672,137,151.96 182,11,461.30 21269,588.94 964,894,201 2,713,697,851.39
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Company Profile

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to
as “the Company”, and collectively referred to as “the Group” when
containing subsidiaries) was established in 1993 by the restructuring
of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory. The Company offered H
shares of the People’s Republic of China to the public in Hong Kong
in December 1996, and offered A share of the People’s Republic
of China to the public in Shenzhen in July 1997. The Company was
transformed into a foreign invested joint stock company after being
approved by the Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation
of the People’s Republic of China in November 1998. In September
2001, the Company was approved the issuance of 30 million shares
of common stock of A shares, while reducing the holding of 3 million
shares of state-owned shares. After the change, the registered capital
of the company was RMB457,312,830.00.

The Company privately issued 21,040,591 RMB-shares to 2 specific
investors with the issued price of RMB11.15 after approval, the
registered capital of the Company increased by RMB21,040,591.00.

The Company implemented the 2017 annual dividend scheme in July
2018, with capital reserve converted into share capital of 143,506,026
shares. After the transfer of capital, the total share capital of the
Company was 621,859,447 shares. The registered capital of the
Company was RMB621,859,447.00.

As of December 31, 2020, the registered capital of the Company was
RMB621,859,447.00, and the capital structure was as follows:

BRHE 1R B A LB

Proportion to

B in%an Class of Shares Quantity of Shares Total Share Capital

(%)

—. BREE4FEBERSE | . Subtotal of tradable shares with 11,602 0.002
restricted sale conditions

AR PR & 54 A share with restricted sale conditions 11,602 0.002

Z. EREE4REBEREE 1. Subtotal of tradable shares without 621,847,845 99.998
restricted sale conditions

AR E AR (ARR) RMB common stocks (A share) 426,847,845 68.640

BHN ETHNE AR (HAR) Overseas listed foreign shares (H share) 195,000,000 31.358

= BipHes lll. Total number of shares 621,859,447 100.00
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Company Profile (Continued)

The Company belongs to the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry.
The Group is principally engaged in the development, manufacturing
and sale of chemical Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs),
pharmaceutical preparations and chemical products; the main
products are “Xinhua brand” antipyretic analgesics, cardiovascular
and cerebrovascular, anti-infectives and central nervous system and
other drugs.

The Controlling Shareholder of the Company was changed to Hualu
Holdings Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Hualu Holdings”). The
general meeting of shareholders is the Company’s authority, which
is entitled to exercise the Company’s business policy, financing,
investment, profit distribution and other resolution rights of significant
events according to the law. The board of directors is responsible to
the general meeting of shareholders, and shall exercise the business
decision-making right of the Company in accordance with law;
the managers are responsible for organizing the implementation of
resolution matters of the general meeting of shareholders and the
board of directors and managing the production and operation of the
Company.

The Company is registered in Chemical Industry Zone, High-tech
Industrial Development Zone, Zibo City, Shandong Province. The
office address is No.1 Lutai Avenue, High-tech Industry Development
Zone, Zibo City, Shandong.

Scope of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group’s consolidated financial statements include 13 second-tier
subsidiaries such as Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Trading Co.,
Ltd., Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Co., Ltd., Shandong Zibo
Xincat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and one third-tier subsidiary of Zibo
Xinhua Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd. Compared with the previous year,
the Company set up a new second-tier holding subsidiary Shandong
Xinhua Health Technology Co., Ltd with 100% equity and part of its
own capital investment in Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd. See
relevant contents of “VIl. Changes in Consolidation Scope” and “VIII.
Interests in Other Entities” in the Notes for details.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Preparation Basis of Financial Statements

s

Preparation basis

On a going-concern basis, the financial statements of the
Company have been prepared based on transactions and
matters that have actually occurred, and in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (ASBE) issued
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, and other relevant
regulations, and China Securities Regulatory Commission’s
“Rules for Compiling Information Disclosure of Public Securities
Companies No. 15 — General Provisions on Financial Reporting”
(Amendment in 2014) and related provisions, then relevant
disclosures required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, and accounting policies and accounting
estimates which are described in notes “IV. important
accounting policies and accounting estimates”.

Going concern

The Group assessed the ability of going concern for the 12
months since the end of the reporting period, and did not find
any significant matters and circumstances which caused a
significant doubt on the ability of going concern. Accordingly,
the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Important Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates

Specific accounting policies and estimates based on actual
production and operation characteristics prepared by the Group
include business cycle, recognition and measurement of bad debts
allowance for accounts receivable, measurement of issued inventories,
measurement of net realizable value of inventories, classification
and depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of intangible assets,
capitalization conditions of research and development expenses,
recognition and measurement of income, etc.

1.

Declaration on compliance with ASBE

The financial statements of the Company have met the
requirements of ASBE and truly and fully reflected the relevant
information such as the financial position, operating results and
cash flows of the Company and the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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IV. Important Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

2.

Accounting period

The accounting period runs from January 1 to December 31 of
Gregorian calendar.

Period of operating cycle

The operating cycle of the Company is 12 months, which is used
as the dividing standard of liquidity of asset and liability.

Recording currency

The recording currency of the Company and its domestic
subsidiaries is RMB, and that of foreign business is local
currency.

The currency adopted by the Group for preparation of the
financial statements is RMB.

Accounting methods for business combinations under
common control and business combinations not under
common control

The assets and liabilities acquired by the Group, as the merging
party, in the business merger under the control of the same
entity are calculated based on the book value in the ultimate
controlling party’s consolidated statements of the merged
party on the merging date. Capital reserve is adjusted for the
difference between the book value of the acquired net assets
and the book value of the merger consideration paid. In case
where the capital reserve is not sufficient for off-setting, retained
earnings are adjusted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IV. Important Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

5.

Accounting methods for business combinations under
common control and business combinations not under
common control (Continued)

The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired from the acquiree in the business merger not under
common control are calculated based on the fair value on
the acquisition date. The merging costs are the cash or non-
cash assets paid, liabilities issued or assumed, the fair value
of equity securities issued by the Group on the acquisition
date for acquiring control rights on the acquiree, as well as
all costs directly related to the business merger (for business
merger completed step by step through multiple transactions,
the merging costs are the sum of costs of all individual
transactions). Where the merging costs are greater than the
fair value of identifiable net assets acquired from the acquiree
during business merger, the difference thereof is recognized
as business goodwill. Where the merging costs are less than
the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired from the
acquiree during business merger, the fair value of all identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired from the
business merger, as well as the fair value of non-cash assets
of the consideration or the issued equity securities etc., are
rechecked. Where the merging costs are, after rechecking, still
less than the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired from
the acquiree during business merger, the difference is included
into current non-business income.

Compilation method of consolidated financial statements

The Group’s consolidation scope includes all subsidiaries and
structured entities.

The scope of consolidation of consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control. Control is the power
achieved by investor over the investee, which allows investor
to gain variable returns from its involvement with the investee;
and it is the ability to use investor’s power to affect the amount
of the returns. Changes in the relevant elements of the control
definition as a result of changes in the relevant facts and
circumstances will result in a reassessment of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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IV. Important Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

6.

Compilation method of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

During preparation of consolidated financial statements, in
the event that the accounting policies or accounting period
adopted by subsidiaries are not in line with that of the
Company, necessary adjustments shall be made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries according to the accounting policy
and accounting period of the Company.

All significant internal transactions, balances and unrealized
profits shall be offset during preparation of consolidated
financial statements. The portion of subsidiary owners’ equity
which does not belong to the parent company and the portion
of minority shareholder’s equity in the current net profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income
must be respectively listed under “minority shareholder’s
equity, minority interest income, other comprehensive
income attributable to the minority shareholders, and
total comprehensive income attributable to the minority
shareholders” in the consolidated financial statements.

For the subsidiary acquired in the business merger under
common control, its business performance and cash flow
are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the beginning of the current period of the merger. During
the preparation and comparison of consolidated financial
statements, related items in the financial statements of the
previous year are adjusted, and it is deemed that the entity of
financial statements formed after the merger has existed since
the beginning of control by the ultimate controlling party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IV. Important Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

6.

Compilation method of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

If the equity of an investee under the common control is
acquired step by step through multiple transactions and
the acquisition eventually form a business combination, the
accounting treatment in the consolidated financial statements
should be disclosed as supplementary in the reporting period
when obtaining control. For example, if the equity of an investee
under the common control is acquired step by step through
multiple transactions and the acquisition eventually forms a
business combination, at the time of preparing the financial
statements, adjustments should be made as if the current
state existed from the beginning of the ultimate controller’s
implementation of control. As for the compilation of comparative
statements, related assets and liabilities of the combined
party should be included in the comparative statements of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, and adjustments,
which refer to the net asset arised from the consolidation,
are made upon the related item of equity in the statements.
However, the above modifications should be made no earlier
than the time that the combined party and the Group are under
the control of the ultimate controller simultaneously. To avoid
double counting of the value of the combined party’s net asset,
the long-term equity investments held by the Group before the
consolidation, and the recognized changes of profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and net asset occur during the
period from the later of the date of the acquisition of the original
equity or the date both the Group and the merged party are
under the control of the ultimate controller simultaneously,
to the combination date, should offset the opening retained
earnings and current profit or loss of comparative statements
separately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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IV. Important Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

6.

Compilation method of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

If the equity of an investee not under the same control is
acquired step by step through multiple transactions and the
acquisition eventually forms a business combination, the
accounting treatment in the consolidated financial statements
should be disclosed as supplementary in the reporting period
when obtaining control. For example, if the equity of an investee
not under the same control is acquired step by step through
multiple transactions and the acquisition eventually forms a
business combination, at the time of preparing the financial
statements, the acquiree’s equity held before the acquisition
date should be re-measured by the fair value at the acquisition
date, and the difference between the fair value and book value
will be recorded into the current period’s investment income;
other comprehensive income and changes in equity except for
the net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution, which arise from the acquiree’s equity held before
the acquisition date and measured by equity method, will be
transferred as investment profit or loss in the period that the
acquisition occurs. However, the principle is not applicable to
the other comprehensive income arising from the changes of
net liabilities and net assets due to the investee’s recalculation
of defined benefit plans.

Where the Group partially disposes of long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries without losing control, in the
consolidated financial statements, for the difference between
disposal price and the share of net assets which should be
entitled by the Group in the subsidiaries continuously c